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Dear Sir, 

Pursuant to the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars issued from time to time, 31st Annual General Meeting 

(AGM) of the Company will be held on Wednesday the 07th day of August, 2024 at 3:30.00 P.M through 

Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means only without the Physical presence of the members and 
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As per Regulation 34 of SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), 2015, Please find enclosed 
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SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMlTEDs

Regd.Off.:Village BARGODAM, Tehsil Kalka, Distt.

Panchkula (Haryana) Tel.No.:0172-5070472;

CIN:L24219HR1993PLC032195,

Website:www.syschem.in; Email:info@syschem.in

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that 31°tAnnuaI General Meeting ofthe shareholders of Syschem (India) Limited

will be held on, Wednesday the07th day of August, 2024 at 3:30.00 P.Mthrough Video Conferencing

(VC)/ Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM)to transact the following business :-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement for the Financial Year ended 31st

March 2024 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon

2. To appointa Director in place of Mr. Ranjan Jain (DIN: 00635274) who retire by rotation and being

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. TO APPROVE MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2025-26:

To Consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as

ordinary resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

Companies (Meeting of Board and Its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the

Companies Act, 2013 and provisions of Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), 2015 (Listing Regulations) as amended till date and in

accordance with the Provisions of Section 188 and all other provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (this

Act) if any and the rules made there under(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment

thereof, for the time being in force) read with Company's Related Party Transactions Policy, approval

of the members be and is hereby accorded forthe related party contracts for the transactions of sale

and purchase with the related parties as detailed in the Explanatory Statement forthe transactions of

availing or rendering of any services and other transactions which will be in ordinary course of business

and at arm's length upto the maximum value of transactions as mentioned herein below:

S.No Name ofRelated Party

1 Pharma Care International

Particular of Contract/Arrangement

Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material,

availing and rendering of services, selling or

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of any

kind, leasing of property of any kind and other

transactions in the ordinary course of the company's

business upto the maximum value of 1000 Cr(One
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March 2024 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ranjan Jain (DIN: 00635274) who retire by rotation and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
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To Consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as 
ordinary resolution. 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Meeting of Board and Its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and provisions of Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
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S.No Name of Related Party Particular of Contract/Arrangement 

1 Pharma Care International Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material, 
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kind, leasing of property of any kind and other 
transactions in the ordinary course of the company’s 
business upto the maximum value of 1000 Cr(One 
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2 JB Khokhani& Co

3 Indosol Export

Thousand Crores)

Sale, purchase, supply of any goods, including raw

materials, finished products, scrap and capital goods,

carrying out/availing job-workand hire of facilities,

availing/ rendering of marketing/ business transfer

and other services, leasing of factory/ office

premises/facilities/ corporate guarantee or any

other transactions of an Amount ofRs. 100 Cr (One

Hundred Crore)

Sale, purchase, supply of any goods, including raw

materials, finished products, scrap and capital goods,

carrying out/availing job-work and hire of facilities,

availing/ rendering of marketing/ business transfer

and other services, leasing of factory/ office

premises/facilities/ corporate guarantee or any

other transactions of an amount up to of Rs.

100Cr.(One Hundred Crores)

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT theBoard of Directors of the Company beand is hereby authorized to do or

cause to be done all such acts, deeds and things, settle any queries, difficulties, doubts that may arise

with regard to any transactions with the related party, make such changes to the terms and conditions

as may be considered necessary or desirable in order to give effect to this resolution in the best interest

of the Company.”

4. TO APPROVE THE REMUNERATION OF THECOST AUDITOR FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING MARCH

31*t, 2025.

To Consider and ifihought Fit, To Pass, with or without Modification(s), The Following Resolution as

Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any Statutory

Modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), M/s Mohit Aggarwal &Co., Cost

Accountant (Firm Reg No.:004301) appointed by the Board on the recommendation of the Audit

Committee ofthe Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company forthefinancial

year ending March 31,2025, be paid the remuneration of Rupee 45000/- as set out in the Statement

annexed tothe Notice convening this Meeting;

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT theBoard of Directors of the Company ortheCompany Secretary be and

are hereby authorized to do all deeds and things which are necessary for the aforesaid appointment

and to send the necessary intimation in prescribed form to Registrar of Companies”.

Thousand Crores) 

2 JB Khokhani& Co Sale, purchase, supply of any goods, including raw 
materials, finished products, scrap and capital goods, 
carrying out/availing job-workand hire of facilities, 
availing/ rendering of marketing/ business transfer 
and other services, leasing of factory/ office 
premises/facilities/ corporate guarantee or any 
other transactions of an Amount of Rs. 100 Cr (One 
Hundred Crore) 

3 Indosol Export Sale, purchase, supply of any goods, including raw 
materials, finished products, scrap and capital goods, 
carrying out/availing job-work and hire of facilities, 
availing/ rendering of marketing/ business transfer 
and other services, leasing of factory/ office 
premises/facilities/ corporate guarantee or any 
other transactions of an amount up to of Rs. 
100Cr.(One Hundred Crores) 
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of the Company.” 
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Accountant (Firm Reg No.:004301) appointed by the Board on the recommendation of the Audit 
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5. TO APPROVE AND RECTIFY THE RELATEDA PARTY TRANSACTIONS BEING CORPORATE GUARANTEE

ISSUED BY THE COMPANY ON BEHALF OF PHARMACARE INTERNATIONAL,A PARTNERSHIP CONCERN

ToConsider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as

ordinary resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 179,read with Section 186 of the Companies

Act, 2013, and the rules made there under, including the statutory modifications and re-enactments

thereof, for the time being in force, and subject to the compliance with the provisions of and the limits

envisaged under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, as amended from

time to time (‘SEBI Listing Regulations”) and subject to such other necessary compliances, permissions

and approval as may be required in the matter, the approval of the members beand is hereby accorded

to ratify the related party contract/arrangement /transactions to extend the corporate guarantee and

provide security(creating charge on the assets of the Company) in respect of credit facilities availed

from banks/financial institutions by M/s Pharmacare International,a partnership concern, in which the

Directors of the company arenotconcerned or interested, for an amount notexceeding Rs 50 crores

(Rupees Fifty Crores only).

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Mr.Ranjan Jain (DIN: 00635274), Managing Director and/or Mr. Suninder

Veer Singh (DIN: 07693557), Whole Time Director of the company be and arehereby jointly and/ or

severally authorized to sign all necessary papers, guarantee agreements, deeds, contracts and

arrangement letters as may be agreed and required in this regard and to do all such acts, things and

deeds as may be required from time to time to give effect to this resolution.”

6. APPOINTMENT OF MR. VIVEK TREHAN, DIN:03140346(AS (NON —EXECUTIVE) DIRECTOR OF THE

COMPANY

ToConsider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as

Special resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152, 161 and other applicable provisions, if

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of

Directors) Rules of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment

thereof for the time being in force) and relevant provision of Listing Obligations and Disclosures

Requirement (LODR), 2015 as amended from time to time and pursuant to the notice received under

section 160 of the Act and the recommendation ofthe Nomination and Remuneration Committee and

the Board of Directors, Mr. Vivek Trehan (DIN: 03140346) who was appointed as an Additional Director

(Non-Executive) of the Company with effect from July 2, 2024 and who holds office upto the date of

this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed asa Non-executive Director of the Company,

liable to retire by rotation, with effect from the original date of appointment i.e. July 2, 2024.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT theBoard of Directors of the Company and/or Company Secretary of the

company be and arehereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may

be considered necessary or expedient for giving effect to this resolution, inter-alia, filings of required

forms/ documents with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Stock Exchanges and / or other

authorities as may be required.”

5. TO APPROVE AND RECTIFY THE RELATED A PARTY TRANSACTIONS BEING CORPORATE GUARANTEE 
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7.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution(s) as

SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(1)(b) and other applicable provisions, if

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under (including any amendment(s) or

modification(s) or re—enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and in accordance with the

Memorandum ofAssociation and Articles of Association of the Company, the applicable provisions of

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”) and other applicable provisions of the Securities and

Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits& Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (“SEBI

SBEB& SE Regulations”), and subject further to such other approval(s), permission(s) and sanction(s)

as may be considered necessary and such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or

imposed while granting such approval(s), permission(s) and sanction(s) and pursuant to the

recommendation received from Board of Directors of the Company, the consent of the members of

theCompany be and is hereby accorded to the introduction and implementation of “Syschem India

Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme— 2024” (“Scheme”) and the Board of Directors of the

Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall be deemed to include any

Committee, including the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which the Board has constituted

to exercise its powers, including the powers, conferred by this resolution) be and is hereby authorized

to create, grant, offer, issue and allot under the scheme, in one or more tranches,a maximum of

10,00,000 (Ten Lakh) Employees Stock options (or such other adjusted figure for any bonus, stock

splits or consolidations or other reorganization of the capital structure of the Company asmay be

applicable from time to time) exercisable into not more than 10,00,000 (Ten Lakh) equity shares of

face value Rs. 10/- each fully paid up, (or such other adjusted figure for any bonus, stock splits or

consolidations or other reorganization of the capital structure of the Company asmay be applicable

from time to time) to or for the benefit of such eligible employee(s)/ person(s) as designated by the

Company, within the Scheme ofthe Company (other than promoters or persons belonging to the

promoter group of the Company, Independent Directors and Directors holding directly or indirectly

more than 10% of the outstanding Equity Shares of the Company), on such terms and conditions as

may be fixed or determined by the Board in accordance with the Scheme.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT consent of the shareholder of the Company be and is hereby accorded to

the Board to create, grant, offer, issue and allot at any time or overa period of time, to or for the

benefit of, such persons, who are permanent employees ofthe Company, whether working in India or

outside India, and/or to the Directors of the Company, whether whole-time or not but excluding

Independent Director(s), (selected on the basis of criteria decided by the Board in consultation with

Nomination and Remuneration Committee) under the “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock

Option Scheme— 2024”Scheme butexcluding employees who are promoters or persons belonging to

the promoter group and director(s) who either himself or through his relatives or through anybody

corporate, directly or indirectly, holds more than 10% of the outstanding equity shares of the

Company, such number ofemployee stock option not exceeding 10,00,000 in number (Hereinafter

referred to as “Options”) ,convertible into equivalent number ofequity shares (orsuch other number

adjusted for change in capital structure or corporate actions in terms of Syschem India Limited

Employees Stock Option Scheme— 2024”Scheme as per applicable law), at such price and on such

terms and conditions as may be fixed or determined by the Board in its sole and exclusive discretion.

7. TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE SYSCHEM INDIA LIMITED EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME – 2024  

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution(s) as 

SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(1)(b) and other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under (including any amendment(s) or 

modification(s) or re–enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and in accordance with the 
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company, the applicable provisions of 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”) and other applicable provisions of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits & Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (“SEBI 

SBEB & SE Regulations”), and subject further to such other approval(s), permission(s) and sanction(s) 

as may be considered necessary and such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or 
imposed while granting such approval(s), permission(s) and sanction(s) and pursuant to the 

recommendation received from Board of Directors of the Company, the consent of the members of 

the Company be and is hereby accorded to the introduction and implementation of “Syschem India 

Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme– 2024” (“Scheme”) and the Board of Directors of the 

Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall be deemed to include any 

Committee, including the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which the Board has constituted 

to exercise its powers, including the powers, conferred by this resolution) be and is hereby authorized 

to create, grant, offer, issue and allot under the scheme, in one or more tranches, a maximum of 

10,00,000 (Ten Lakh) Employees Stock options (or such other adjusted figure for any bonus, stock 

splits or consolidations or other reorganization of the capital structure of the Company as may be 
applicable from time to time) exercisable into not more than 10,00,000 (Ten Lakh) equity shares of 

face value Rs. 10/- each fully paid up, (or such other adjusted figure for any bonus, stock splits or 

consolidations or other reorganization of the capital structure of the Company as may be applicable 

from time to time) to or for the benefit of such eligible employee(s)/ person(s) as designated by the 

Company, within the Scheme of the Company (other than promoters or persons belonging to the 

promoter group of the Company, Independent Directors and Directors holding directly or indirectly 
more than 10% of the outstanding Equity Shares of the Company), on such terms and conditions as 

may be fixed or determined by the Board in accordance with the Scheme. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT consent of the shareholder of the Company be and is hereby accorded to 
the Board to create, grant, offer, issue and allot at any time or over a period of time, to or for the 
benefit of, such persons, who are permanent employees of the Company, whether working in India or 
outside India, and/or to the Directors of the Company, whether whole-time or not but excluding 
Independent Director(s), (selected on the basis of criteria decided by the Board in consultation with 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee) under the “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock 
Option Scheme– 2024”Scheme but excluding employees who are promoters or persons belonging to 
the promoter group and director(s) who either himself or through his relatives or through anybody 
corporate, directly or indirectly, holds more than 10% of the outstanding equity shares of the 
Company, such number of employee stock option not exceeding 10,00,000 in number (Hereinafter 
referred to as “Options”) ,convertible into equivalent number of equity shares (or such other number 
adjusted for change in capital structure or corporate actions in terms of Syschem India Limited 
Employees Stock Option Scheme– 2024”Scheme as per applicable law), at such price and on such 
terms and conditions as may be fixed or determined by the Board in its sole and exclusive discretion. 



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT theBoard be and is hereby authorized to formulate, evolve, decide upon

and implement the “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme— 2024” Scheme on the

terms and conditions contained therein and stated in the explanatory statement annexed hereto

including instances where such Options shall lapse and to grant such number of Options, to such

employees and Directors of the Company, at paror at such other price, at such time and on such

terms and conditions as set out in the “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme—

2024” Scheme and astheBoard may in its absolute discretion think fit, subject to applicable laws and

to make any modification(s), change(s), variation(s), alteration(s) or revision(s) in terms and

conditions of the “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme—2024” Scheme from time

to time including but not limited to amendments with respect to vesting period, exercise price,

eligibility criteria, vesting schedule, vesting conditions, withdraw or revive the “Syschem India Limited

Employees Stock Option Scheme—2024”Scheme, astheBoard may in its absolute discretion think fit,

subject to applicable laws.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT as per its Terms of Reference, the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee, shall act as the Compensation Committee in terms of Regulation 5(1) and 5(2) of the SEBI

SBEB Regulations and shall be authorized to administration, implement, supervise and alter the

Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme— 2024”Scheme, in the manner asit may deem

fit, in accordance with the provisions of the Act, SEBI SBEB Regulations, Listing Regulations, FEMA

(including any statutory amendment, modification(s) or re-enactment of the Act or the SEBI SBEB

Regulations or Listing Regulations or FEMA forthetime being in force) and other rules, regulations and

guidelines, if any, Memorandum andArticles of Associations of the Company and authorized to do all

acts and deeds, which shall include but not limited to, determine the criteria of the employee who will

be eligible to grant of Options under the Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme—

2024”, the quantum and type of Options to be granted to employee ofthe company asdefined in the

Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme— 2024”, the number ofoptions to be granted

in each tranche, the terms or combination ofterms subject to which the said Options are to be granted,

the exercise period, the vesting period, the vesting conditions, instances where such Options shall lapse

and to grant such number ofOptions, to such eligible employees of the Company, at par or atsuch

other price, at such time and on such terms and conditions as set out in the Syschem India Limited

Employees Stock Option Scheme—2024”Scheme andastheNomination and Remuneration Committee

may in its absolute discretion deem fit, and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required,

and to execute all such deeds, documents, writings, including but not limited to the grant letter, award

agreement and to give such directions and/or instructions as may be necessary for proper

administration and implementation of the Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme—

2024”Scheme and todetermine, in its absolute discretion, all the questions of interpretation, disputes,

discrepancy or disagreement which shall arise under, or asa result of, or pursuant to, or in connection

with the Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme—2024”Scheme.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT theequity shares so issued and allotted as mentioned hereinbefore shall

rank pari -passu with the then existing equity shares of the Company.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of any corporate action(s) such as rights issues, bonus issues,

merger, sale of division or other reorganization of capital structure of the Company, asthe case may

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to formulate, evolve, decide upon 

and implement the “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme– 2024” Scheme on the 

terms and conditions contained therein and stated in the explanatory statement annexed hereto  

including instances where such  Options shall lapse and to grant such number of  Options, to such 

employees and Directors of the Company, at par or at such other price, at such time and on such 

terms and conditions as set out in the “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme– 

2024” Scheme and as the Board may in its absolute discretion think fit, subject to applicable laws and 

to make any modification(s), change(s), variation(s), alteration(s) or revision(s) in terms and 

conditions of the “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme– 2024” Scheme from time 

to time including but not limited to amendments with respect to vesting period, exercise price, 

eligibility criteria, vesting schedule, vesting conditions, withdraw or revive the “Syschem India Limited 

Employees Stock Option Scheme– 2024”Scheme, as the Board may in its absolute discretion think fit, 

subject to applicable laws. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT as per its Terms of Reference, the Nomination and Remuneration 
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(including any statutory amendment, modification(s) or re-enactment of the Act or the SEBI SBEB 
Regulations or Listing Regulations or FEMA for the time being in force) and other rules, regulations and 
guidelines, if any, Memorandum and Articles of Associations of the Company and authorized to do all 
acts and deeds, which shall include but not limited to, determine the criteria of the employee who will 
be eligible to grant of Options under the Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme– 
2024”, the quantum and type of Options to be granted to  employee of the company as defined in the 
Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme– 2024”, the number of options to be granted 
in each tranche, the terms or combination of terms subject to which the said Options are to be granted, 
the exercise period, the vesting period, the vesting conditions, instances where such Options shall lapse 
and to grant such number of Options, to such eligible employees of the Company, at par or at such 
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the equity shares so issued and allotted as mentioned hereinbefore shall 

rank pari -passu with the then existing equity shares of the Company.” 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of any corporate action(s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, 
merger, sale of division or other reorganization of capital structure of the Company, as the case may 



be, the number of Options and/ or the shares to be allotted upon exercise of Options shall be

reasonably adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the “Syschem India Limited Employees

Stock Option Scheme— 2024” Scheme and in case of sub-division or consolidation of shares then the

number ofshares and the exercise price shall automatically stand augmented or reduced, as the case

may be, in the same proportion as the present face value of Rs. 10/- per Equity Share bears to the

revised face value of the Equity Shares of the Company after such sub-division or consolidation,

without affecting any other rights or obligations of the grantees who have been granted options

under the Scheme.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT theBoard be and is hereby authorized to take requisite steps for listing of

the equity shares allotted under the Plan on the stock exchanges where the equity shares of the

Company arelisted in due compliance with SEBI SBEB& SE Regulations and other applicable laws.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT theCompany shall conform to the accounting policies prescribed from

time to time under the SEBI SBEB& SE Regulations and any other applicable laws and regulations to

the extent relevant and applicable to the Plan.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT theBoard be and is hereby authorized at any time to modify, change,

vary, alter, amend, suspend or terminate the Plan subject to the compliance with the applicable laws

and regulations and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may deem fit at its absolute

discretion, for such purpose and also to settle any issues, questions, difficulties or doubts that may

arise in this regard without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the Members

andfurther to execute all such documents, writings and to give such directions and or instructions as

may be necessary or expedient to give effect to such modification, change, variation, alteration,

amendment, suspension or termination of the Plan and do all other things incidental and ancillary

thereof in conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI SBEB& SE Regulations, the

Memorandum andArticles of Association of the Company andanyother applicable laws in force.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT theBoard, be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, and

things, as may, at its absolute discretion, deems necessary including authorizing or directing to

appoint merchant Bankers, brokers, solicitors, registrars, compliance officer, investors service Centre

and other advisors, consultants or representatives, being incidental to the effective implementation

and administration of the Plan as also to make applications to the appropriate authorities, parties and

the institutions for their requisite approvals and all other documents required to be filed in the above

connection and to settle all such questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever which may arise and

take all such steps and decisions in this regard.”

Item no.8

7o Consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as

ordinary resolution.

be, the number of  Options and / or the shares to be allotted upon exercise of Options shall be 
reasonably adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the “Syschem India Limited Employees 
Stock Option Scheme– 2024” Scheme and in case of sub-division or consolidation of shares then the 
number of shares and the exercise price shall automatically stand augmented or reduced, as the case 
may be, in the same proportion as the present face value of Rs. 10/- per Equity Share bears to the 
revised face value of the Equity Shares of the Company after such sub-division or consolidation, 
without affecting any other rights or obligations of the grantees who have been granted options 
under the Scheme.  

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take requisite steps for listing of 

the equity shares allotted under the Plan on the stock exchanges where the equity shares of the 

Company are listed in due compliance with SEBI SBEB & SE Regulations and other applicable laws.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company shall conform to the accounting policies prescribed from 

time to time under the SEBI SBEB & SE Regulations and any other applicable laws and regulations to 

the extent relevant and applicable to the Plan.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized at any time to modify, change, 

vary, alter, amend, suspend or terminate the Plan subject to the compliance with the applicable laws 

and regulations and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may deem fit at its absolute 

discretion, for such purpose and also to settle any issues, questions, difficulties  or doubts that may 

arise in this regard without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the Members 

and further to execute all such documents, writings and to give such directions and or instructions as 

may be necessary or expedient to give effect to such modification, change, variation, alteration, 

amendment, suspension or termination of the Plan and do all other things incidental and ancillary 

thereof in conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI SBEB & SE Regulations, the 

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and any other applicable laws in force.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board, be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, and 

things, as may, at its absolute discretion, deems necessary including authorizing or directing to 

appoint merchant Bankers, brokers, solicitors, registrars, compliance officer, investors service Centre 

and other advisors, consultants or representatives, being incidental to the effective implementation 

and administration of the Plan as also to make applications to the appropriate authorities, parties and 

the institutions for their requisite approvals and all other documents required to be filed in the above 

connection and to settle all such questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever which may arise and 

take all such steps and decisions in this regard.” 

 

Item no. 8 

 

TO EXTEND THE LIMIT OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25 

 
To Consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as 
ordinary resolution. 



“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

Companies (Meeting of Board and Its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the

Companies Act, 2013 and provisions of Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), 2015 (Listing Regulations) as amended till date and in

accordance with the Provisions of Section 188 and all other provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (this

Act) if any and the rules made there under(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment

thereof, for the time being in force) read with Company's Related Party Transactions Policy and in

supersession of the earlier resolution passed by the shareholders in this respect in their Annual general

meeting held on 23’d September, 2023, approval of the members ofthecompany be and is hereby

accorded to increase the amount of maximum transactions Limit for the related parties contract(s),

entered or to be entered forthe sale/ purchase/rendering of services etc. with the related parties for

the Financial year 2024-25, ,as detailed in the Explanatory Statement forthe transactions of availing or

rendering of any services and other transactions which will be in the ordinary course of business and at

arm's length upto the maximum value of transactions as mentioned herein below:

Sr. Name ofRelated

No Party

1 Pharma Care

International

2 JB Khokhani& Co

3 Indosol Export

Particular of Contract/Arrangement Maximum Revised

Transactions Transactions

limit approved Limited

in AGM dated

23’
d
Septembe

Sale, purchase or supply of goods

and material, availing and

rendering of services, selling or

otherwise disposing off or buying

properties of any kind, leasing of

property of any kind and other

transactions in the ordinary

course of the company's business.

Sale, purchase, supply of any

goods, including raw materials,

finished products, scrap and

capital goods, carrying

out/availing job-work and hire of

facilities, availing/ rendering of

marketing/ business transfer and

other services, leasing of factory/

office premises/facilities/

corporate guarantee or any other

transactions.

Sale, purchase, supply of any

goods, including raw materials,

finished products, scrap and

capital goods, carrying

out/availing job-work and hire of

facilities, availing/ rendering of

marketing/ business transfer and

2023

500 Cr 1000 Cr

(Five (One

Hundred Thousand

Crores) Crores)

100 Cr 100 Cr

(Hundred (One

Crores) Hundred

Crores)

50 Cr (Fifty 100 (One

Crores) Hundred

Crores)

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Meeting of Board and Its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and provisions of Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), 2015 (Listing Regulations) as amended till date  and in 
accordance with the Provisions of Section 188  and all other provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (this 
Act) if any and the rules  made there under(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment  
thereof,  for the time being in force) read with Company`s Related Party Transactions Policy and in 
supersession of the earlier resolution passed by the shareholders in this respect in their Annual general 
meeting held on 23rd September, 2023, approval of the members of the company be and is hereby 
accorded to increase the amount of maximum transactions Limit for the related parties contract(s), 
entered or to be entered for the  sale/ purchase/rendering of services etc. with the related parties for 
the Financial year 2024-25, ,as detailed in the Explanatory Statement for the transactions of availing or 
rendering of any services and other transactions which will be in the ordinary course of business and at 
arm's length upto the maximum value of transactions as mentioned herein below: 
 

Sr. 
No 

Name of Related  
Party 

Particular of Contract/Arrangement Maximum 
Transactions 

limit approved 
in AGM dated 

23rd September, 
2023 

Revised 
Transactions 

Limited 

1 Pharma Care 
International 

Sale, purchase or supply of goods 
and material, availing and 
rendering of services, selling or 
otherwise disposing off or buying 
properties of any kind, leasing of 
property of any kind and other 
transactions in the ordinary 
course of the company’s business. 

500 Cr 
(Five 
Hundred 
Crores) 

1000 Cr 
(One 
Thousand 
Crores) 

2 JB Khokhani& Co Sale, purchase, supply of any 
goods, including raw materials, 
finished products, scrap and 
capital goods, carrying 
out/availing job-work and hire of 
facilities, availing/ rendering of 
marketing/ business transfer and 
other services, leasing of factory/ 
office premises/facilities/ 
corporate guarantee or any other 
transactions. 

100 Cr 
(Hundred 
Crores) 

100 Cr 
(One 
Hundred 
Crores) 

3 Indosol Export Sale, purchase, supply of any 
goods, including raw materials, 
finished products, scrap and 
capital goods, carrying 
out/availing job-work and hire of 
facilities, availing/ rendering of 
marketing/ business transfer and 

50 Cr (Fifty 
Crores) 

100 (One 
Hundred 
Crores) 



other services, leasing of factory/

office premises/facilities/

corporate guarantee or any other

transactions.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT theBoard of Directors of the Company beand is hereby authorized to do or

cause to be done all such acts, deeds and things, settle any queries, difficulties, doubts that may arise

with regard to any transactions with the related party, make such changes to the terms and conditions

as may be considered necessary or desirable in order to give effect to this resolution in the best interest

of the Company.”

Place: Chandigarh

Date:2ndJuIy, 2024

By order of the Board of Directors

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

Ranjan Jain

(Managing Director)

DIN:00635274

other services, leasing of factory/ 
office premises/facilities/ 
corporate guarantee or any other 
transactions. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do or 

cause to be done all such acts, deeds and things, settle any queries, difficulties, doubts that may arise 

with regard to any transactions with the related party, make such changes to the terms and conditions 

as may be considered necessary or desirable in order to give effect to this resolution in the best interest 

of the Company.” 
 

Place: Chandigarh      By order of the Board of Directors 

   Date:2ndJuly, 2024  SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED 
          

        Ranjan Jain 
        (Managing Director) 
         DIN:00635274 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NOTES

1. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 and 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, setting out the material facts and reasons

for the resolutions in respect of the businesses set out above is annexed hereto.A copy of the Annual

General Meeting (AGM) Notice is also available on the company's www.syschem.in, CDSL Website

www.evotingindia.com and atthe relevant sections of the websites ofthe BSE Limited.

2. The shareholders who have not yet registered their email address are requested to get their email

addresses registered by following the procedure given below:

Pursuant to the Circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, for remote e-voting for this AGM,

shareholders who have not registered their email address and in consequence the e-voting notice could

not be served to them may temporarily get their email address registered with the Company's Registrar

and Share Transfer Agent, M/s Beetal Financial& Computer Services Private Limited, having their

office at Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, Bh. Local Shopping Complex, Near Dada Harsukhdas

Mandir, New Delhi — 110 062.Ph No.: 011-29961281-82. Shareholders may write the request to

register/update their E-mail address with RTA to the email: beetalrta@gmail.com. Post successful

registration of the email, the shareholder would get soft copy of the notice and the procedure for e-

voting along with the User ID and Password to enable e-voting for the AGM.

3. In accordance with the MCA Circulars Nos. 20/2020 Dated5 ^ May 2020, 2/2022 dated Sth May 2022 and

10/2022 dated 28th December 2022 and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 09/2023

dated September 25, 2023read with circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(‘SEBI’) in this regard, dated May 12, 2020, January 15, 2021, May 13, 2022, January 5, 2023, October 6,

2023 and October 7, 2023 (collectively referred to as ‘SEBI Circulars’), the Notice along with the

Integrated Report is being sent electronically to only those Members whose email addresses are

registered with the Company/ Depositories/Registrar& Transfer Agent/Depository Participants.

4. The deemed venue forthe31th AGM will be VlLL-Bargodham Tehsil —Kalka DisttPanchkula, Harayana.

5. In Compliance with the aforesaid, this Notice together with annual report 2023-24 is being sent only

through electronic mode tothose members whose email address are registered with the company/

depositories. Copies of the Notice and annual report will be uploaded on the company's website at

https://www.svschem.in/investors RESOURCES.html, website of stock exchange of India Ltd. at

www.bseindia.com.

6. Members attending AGM through VC/OAVM, shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the

quorum becounted forthe purpose of reckoning the quorum under the provisions of the Act.

7. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM shall be counted forthe

purpose of reckoning the quorum under the provisions of the Act.

8. Since the AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of

Members hasbeen dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility to appoint proxies by the members will not

be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this

Notice.
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Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, setting out the material facts and reasons 
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dated September 25, 2023read with circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
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9. The Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Special Business to

be transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto and forming part of this Notice.

10. The Register of members and share transfer Books of the Company will be closed from 01thAugust,

2024 to07th August 2024 (both days inclusive).

11. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and Secretarial

Standard on General Meetings as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (‘SS-2’), each as

amended, read with other applicable SEBI/MCA Circulars, the Company is providing to its Members the

facility of remote e-Voting before the Meeting as well as during the Meeting in respect of the business to be

transacted at the AGM as provided in the Notice. For this purpose, the Company hasentered into an

agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through

electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes bya member using

remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

12. The Members canjoin the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15minutes before and after the scheduled time

ofthe commencement oftheMeeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility

of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on first

come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more

shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the

Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders

Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on

account of first come first served basis.

13. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM will be counted for the

purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

14. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the

Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company atwww.syschem.in. The

Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at

www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing

the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e.www.evotingindia.com.

15. The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA. datedSth May, 2020 and subsequent circulars issued in this

regards, the latest being general circulars no. 09/2023 dated September, 2023(Collectively referred as

MCA circuIars)has permitted the holding of the Annual General meeting through other Audio —Visual

means(‘OAVM) without Physical presence of the members..

16. In compliance with the MCA Circulars, the Company has publisheda public notice by way of an

advertisement made dated 03.07.2024in Jansatta (In Hindi) and Financial Express (In English) in

Chandigarh and Delhi, advising the members whose e-mail ids are not registered with the Company, its
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(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and  Secretarial 
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15. The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA. dated 5th May, 2020 and subsequent circulars  issued in this 
regards, the latest being general circulars no. 09/2023 dated September, 2023(Collectively referred as 
MCA circulars)has permitted the holding of the Annual General meeting through other Audio –Visual 
means(‘OAVM) without Physical presence of the members.. 
 
 

16. In compliance with the MCA Circulars, the Company has published a public notice by way of an 
advertisement made dated 03.07.2024in Jansatta (In Hindi) and Financial Express (In English) in 
Chandigarh and Delhi, advising the members whose e-mail ids are not registered with the Company, its 

http://www.syschem.in/
http://www.evotingindia.com/


Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) or Depository Participant(s) (DPs), as the case may be, to

register their e-mail ids with them.

17.The Portal for E-voting will remain open forthe Members forexercising their voting from Sunday

04thAugust, 2024 at09:00 AM India Standard Time (‘IST’) till Tuesday, August 06,2024 at 05:00 PM

(IST) both days inclusive. The E-voting needs to be exercised by 05:00 PM (IST) on Tuesday, 06th August,

2024. Please note that E-voting module will be disabled for e-voting by CDSL after the said date and

time. During this period, the Members ofthe company holding shares either in physical form or

dematerialized form, as on Wednesday, 31st July, 2024 (‘cut-off date’), may cast their vote

electronically. Once vote ona resolution is cast by the member, he/she shall not be allowed to change

it subsequently or cast the vote again.

18. Since AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, theRoute Map is not annexed in the Notice.

19. Members holding shares in physical form arerequested to notify/ send the following to the Registrar&

Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company M/s Beetal Financial& Computer Services Private Limited, having

theirs office at Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, Bh. Local Shopping Complex, Near Dada

Harsukhdas Mandir, New Delhi — 110 062. Ph No.: 011-29961281-82.

a. their E-mail ID, in case the same have not been sent earlier, for the purpose of receiving the

communication electronically

b. any change in their address/ E-mail ID/ ECS Mandate/ Bank details

c. Share Certificate(s), held in multiple accounts in identical names orjoint accounts in the same order of

names, forconsolidation of such shareholding into one account

d. their Bank account details in order to receive payment of dividend, whenever declared, through

electronic mode, asand when it would be declared

B. Members holding shares in dematerialized form arerequested to notify to their Depository Participant

a. their E-mail ID.

b. all changes with respect to their address, E-mail ID, ECS mandate and Bank details.

20. The Securities and Exchange Board of India has notified that the shareholders/ transferee of shares

(including joint holders) holding shares in physical form are required to furnisha certified copy oftheir

Income Tax Permanent Account Number (PAN) Card to the Company/ RTA while transacting in the

securities market including transfer, transmission or any other corporate action. Accordingly, all the

shareholders/ transferees of shares (including joint holders) in physical form arerequested to furnisha

certified copy of their PAN Card to the Company/ RTA while transacting in the securities market

including transfer, transmission or any other corporate action.

21. The shares of the Company areunder compulsory Demat trading. Members holding shares in physical

form are requested to convert their shares into dematerialized form in their own interest and

convenience purpose.

22. To support the Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are

requested to register the same with their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) or Depository Participant(s) (DPs), as the case may be, to 
register their e-mail ids with them.   
 

17. The Portal for E-voting will remain open for the Members for exercising their voting from Sunday 
04thAugust, 2024 at 09:00 AM India Standard Time (‘IST’) till Tuesday, August 06, 2024 at 05:00 PM 
(IST) both days inclusive. The E-voting needs to be exercised by 05:00 PM (IST) on Tuesday, 06th August, 
2024. Please note that E-voting module will be disabled for e-voting by CDSL after the said date and 
time. During this period, the Members of the company holding shares either in physical form or 
dematerialized form, as on Wednesday, 31st July, 2024 (‘cut-off date’), may cast their vote 
electronically. Once vote on a resolution is cast by the member, he/she shall not be allowed to change 
it subsequently or cast the vote again. 
 

18. Since AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in the Notice.  
 

19. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify / send the following to the Registrar & 
Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company M/s Beetal Financial & Computer Services Private Limited, having 
theirs office at Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, Bh. Local Shopping Complex, Near Dada 
Harsukhdas Mandir, New Delhi – 110 062. Ph No. : 011-29961281-82. 
 

a. their E-mail ID, in case the same have not been sent earlier, for the purpose of receiving the 
communication electronically  

b. any change in their address / E-mail ID / ECS Mandate / Bank details 
c. Share Certificate(s), held in multiple accounts in identical names or joint accounts in the same order of 

names, for consolidation of such shareholding into one account 
d. their Bank account details in order to receive payment of dividend, whenever declared,  through 

electronic mode, as and when it would be declared 
B. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to notify to their Depository Participant 

:- 
 

a. their E-mail ID. 
b. all changes with respect to their address, E-mail ID, ECS mandate and Bank  details. 

 

20. The Securities and Exchange Board of India has notified  that the shareholders / transferee of shares 

(including joint holders) holding shares in physical form are required to furnish a certified copy of their 

Income Tax Permanent Account Number (PAN) Card to the Company / RTA while transacting in the 

securities market including transfer, transmission or any other corporate action. Accordingly, all the 

shareholders / transferees of shares (including joint holders) in physical form are requested to furnish a 

certified copy of their PAN Card to the Company / RTA while transacting in the securities market 

including transfer, transmission or any other corporate action. 

 

21. The shares of the Company are under compulsory Demat trading. Members holding shares in physical 

form are requested to convert their shares into dematerialized form in their own interest and 

convenience purpose. 

 

22. To support the Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are 

requested to register the same with their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form 



and with M/s Beetal Financial& Computer Services Private Limited in case the shares are held by them

in physical form.

23. Details under Listing Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Directors seeking appointment / re-

appointment at the AGM, is separately annexed hereto. The Directors seeking appointment/ re-

appointment have furnished the declaration under Rule 14 of the Companies (Appointment and

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 read with Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other

requisite declarations for their appointment/ re-appointment.

24. Members holding shares in physical form and desirous of makinga nomination or cancellation/

variation in nomination already made in respect of their shareholding in the Company, as permitted

under Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, are requested to submit to the RTA of the Company M/s

Beetal Financial& Computer Services Pvt. Ltd. the prescribed Form SH 13 fornomination and Form SH

14forcancellation/ variation as the case may be. Members holding shares in demat mode may contact

their respective Depository Participant for availing this facility.

25. The Board of Directors has appointed CS Kanwaljit Singh, Company Secretary in Practice (Membership

No. FCS 5901), as Scrutinizer for scrutinizing the E-voting ina fair and transparent manner.

26.The result of AGM will be posted on the Company*s website www.syschem.in CDSL‘s website

www.evotingindia.com and will be communicated to be BSE Limited (‘BSE’).

27. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of

names will be entitled to vote.

28. Members areadvised to refer to the Shareholders General Information as provided in the Annual

Report.

THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

(i) The voting period begins on, 04thAugust, 2024 at9.00 AM and ends on Tuesday, 06thAugust,

2024 at 5:00 PM. During this period, shareholders ‘of the Company holding shares either in physical

form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Thursday, July 31, 2024 may cast

their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL forvoting thereafter.

(ii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020, under

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its

shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolutions. However, it has been observed that the

participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/ retail shareholders is ata negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed

entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs

and passwords by the shareholders.

and with M/s Beetal Financial & Computer Services Private Limited in case the shares are held by them 

in physical form. 

 

23. Details under Listing Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Directors seeking appointment / re-

appointment at the AGM, is separately annexed hereto. The Directors seeking appointment / re-

appointment have furnished the declaration under Rule 14 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 read with Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other 

requisite declarations for their appointment / re-appointment. 

 

24. Members holding shares in physical form and desirous of making a nomination or cancellation / 

variation in nomination already made in respect of their shareholding in the Company, as permitted 

under Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, are requested to submit to the RTA of the Company M/s 

Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pvt. Ltd. the prescribed Form SH 13 for nomination and Form SH 

14 for cancellation / variation as the case may be. Members holding shares in demat mode may contact 

their respective Depository Participant for availing this facility. 

25. The Board of Directors has appointed CS Kanwaljit Singh, Company Secretary in Practice (Membership 

No. FCS 5901), as Scrutinizer for scrutinizing the E-voting in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

26. The result of AGM will be posted on the Company`s website www.syschem.in CDSL`s website 

www.evotingindia.com and will be communicated to be BSE Limited (‘BSE’). 

 

27. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of 

names will be entitled to vote. 

 

28. Members are advised to refer to the Shareholders General Information as provided in the Annual 

Report. 

 
THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 
 

(i) The voting period begins on, 04thAugust, 2024 at 9.00 AM and ends on Tuesday, 06thAugust, 
2024 at 5:00 PM. During this period, shareholders ‘of the Company holding shares either in physical 
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Thursday, July 31, 2024 may cast 
their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 
 

(ii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020, under 
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its 
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the 
participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/ retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 
 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs 
and passwords by the shareholders. 

http://www.syschem.in/
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In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant toa public consultation, it has been

decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way ofa single login credential,

through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat

accountholders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby,

not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating

ine-voting process.

(iii) In terms ofSEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ClR/P/2020/242 dated December 9,2020,on e-Voting

facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are

allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository

Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method fore-Voting and joining virtual meetings for

Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of

shareholders

Individual

Shareholdersh

olding

securities

inDemat mode

with CDSL

Login Method

1) Users who have opted forCDSL Easi/ Easiest facility, can login

throughtheir existing user id and password. Option will be made

available to remote-Voting page without any further

authentication. The URL for users tologin to Easi / Easiest are

https://web.cdsIindia.com/myeasi/home/login or

www.cdsIindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System

Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi/ Easiest user will be able to see

the e-Voting Menu. On clicking the E voting menu, the user will be

able to see his/her holdings alongwith links of the respective e-

Votingserviceprovideri.e.CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LlNKlNTlMEasperinfor

mationprovided by Issuer / Company. Additionally, we are

providing links to e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can

visit the e-Voting serviceproviders’ site directly.

3) IftheuserisnotregisteredforEasi/Easiest,optiontoregisterisavaila

bleathttps://web.cdsIindia.com/myeasi./Registration/EasiRegistrati

on

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by

providingDemat Account Number and PAN No. from a link

inwww.cdsIindia.comhome page. The system will authenticate the

user by sending OTP

onregisteredMobiIe&EmaiIasrecordedintheDematAccount.Aftersuc

cessfuIauthentication,userwiIIbe provided inksfortherespective

ESP where theE Voting is in progress.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been 
decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, 
through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat 
accountholders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, 
not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating 
ine-voting process. 

(iii) In terms of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9,2020,on e-Voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 
 

Type of 

shareholders 

Login Method 

 

Individual 
Shareholdersh

olding 

securities 
inDemat mode 

with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
throughtheir existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to remote-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users tologin to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System 
Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see 
the e-Voting Menu. On clicking the E voting menu, the user will be 
able to see his/her holdings alongwith links of the respective e-
Votingserviceprovideri.e.CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIMEasperinfor
mationprovided by Issuer / Company. Additionally, we are 
providing links to e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can 
visit the e-Voting serviceproviders’ site directly. 

 3) IftheuserisnotregisteredforEasi/Easiest,optiontoregisterisavaila
bleathttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi./Registration/EasiRegistrati
on 

 4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providingDemat Account Number and PAN No. from a link 
inwww.cdslindia.comhome page. The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP 
onregisteredMobile&EmailasrecordedintheDematAccount.Aftersuc
cessfulauthentication,userwillbe provided inksfortherespective 

  ESP where the E Voting is in progress. 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi./Registration/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi./Registration/
http://www.cdslindia.com/


Individual

Shareholdersh

olding

securities

indemat mode

with NSDL

Individual

Shareholders

(holding

securities in

demat mode)

login through

Their

Depository

IfyouareaIreadyregisteredforNSDLIDeASfaciIity,pIease visit -

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the

followingURL: https://eservices.nsdI.comeither on a Personal

Computer or on amobiIe.Oncethehomepageofe-

ServicesisIaunched,cIickonthe“BeneficiaI Owner” icon under

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’section.A new screen will

open. You will have to enter your User ID

andPassword.AftersuccessfuIauthentication,youwillbeabletosee-

Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting

servicesand you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company

name ore-Voting service provider name andyouwill be re-directed

to e-Votingservice provider website forcasting your vote during the

remote e-Votingperiod or joining virtual meeting& voting during

the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register

isavailable athttps://eservices.nsdI.com.Select “Register Online for

IDeAS“PortaI or click at

https://eservices.nsdI.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.isp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by

typing

thefollowingURL:https://www.evotine.nsdI.com/eitheronaPersonal

Computer or ona mobile. Once thehome page ofe-Voting system

islaunched,cIickontheicon“Login”whichisavaiIabIeunder‘Shareholde

r/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have

toenteryourUserlD(i.e.yoursixteendigitdemataccountnumberholdwi

th NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on

thescreen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to

NSDLDepository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on

companyname or e-Voting service provider name andyou will be

redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting&

voting during the meeting

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account

Through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL

fore-

Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see-

Votingoption

you click one-Voting option, you will be redirected to

NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein

you

Can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name ore-Voting

service

Provider name andyouwill be redirected to e-Voting service

provider

Website forcasting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or

joiningvirtual meeting& voting during the meeting.

 

Individual 
Shareholdersh
olding 

securities 
indemat mode 
with NSDL 

1) IfyouarealreadyregisteredforNSDLIDeASfacility,please visit - 

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
followingURL: https://eservices.nsdl.comeither on a Personal 
Computer or on amobile.Oncethehomepageofe-
Servicesislaunched,clickonthe“Beneficial Owner” icon under 
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’section. A new screen will 
open. You will have to enter your User ID 
andPassword.Aftersuccessfulauthentication,youwillbeabletosee-
Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 
servicesand you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed 
to e-Votingservice provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Votingperiod or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting. 

 2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register 
isavailable athttps://eservices.nsdl.com.Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS“Portal or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

 3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing 
thefollowingURL:https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eitheronaPersonal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system 
islaunched,clickontheicon“Login”whichisavailableunder‘Shareholde
r/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
toenteryourUserID(i.e.yoursixteendigitdemataccountnumberholdwi
th NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
thescreen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDLDepository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
companyname or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting 

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
Shareholders Through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL 

fore- 
(holding Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see-

Votingoption 
securities in  you click one-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
demat mode) NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 

you 
login through Can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 

service 
Their Provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 

provider 
Depository Website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joiningvirtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


Important note: Members who areunable to retrieve UserlD/Password are advised to use Forget User

ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

HelpdeskforlndividualShareholdersholdingsecuritiesindematmodeforanytechnicalissuesrelated to

login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Individual

Login type Helpdesk details

Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in

login can contact

securities in Demat mode with CDSL CDSL helpdesk by sending a

request at

helpdesk.evotine@cdsIindia.comorcontac

tat022-23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in

login can contact

securities in Demat mode with NSDL NSDL helpdesk by sending a

request at

evoting@nsdl.co.inorcaIIattoIIfreeno.:180

01020

990 and 1800 22 44 30

(i) Loginmethodofe-Votingforshareholdersotherthanindividualshareholders&physicalshareholders.

i) The shareholders should logon to the e-voting websitewww.evotingindia.com.

2) Click on “Shareholders” module.

3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL:8 Character DP ID followed by8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) Ifyouareholdingsharesindematformandhadloggedontowww.evotingindia.comandvotedonanearlier e-

voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

PAN

ForShareholdersholdingsharesinDematformotherthanindividualandP

ysical Form

Enteryour10digitaIpha-

numeric”PANissuebyIncomeTaxDepartment(Applicable forboth

demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/

Depository Participant are requested to use these quence number

sent by Company/RTA orcontact Company/RTA.

Participants  

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve UserID/Password are advised to use Forget User 
ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

HelpdeskforIndividualShareholdersholdingsecuritiesindematmodeforanytechnicalissuesrelated to 
login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in 
login can contact 

securities in Demat mode with CDSL CDSL helpdesk by sending a
 request at 

 helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comorcontac
tat022-23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in 
login can contact 

securities in Demat mode with NSDL NSDL helpdesk by sending a
 request at 

 evoting@nsdl.co.inorcallattollfreeno.:180
01020 

 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

 

(i) Loginmethodofe-Votingforshareholdersotherthanindividualshareholders&physicalshareholders. 
1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting websitewww.evotingindia.com. 
2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 
3) Now enter your User ID 

 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 
4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
5) Ifyouareholdingsharesindematformandhadloggedontowww.evotingindia.comandvotedonanearlier e-

voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 
6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 ForShareholdersholdingsharesinDematformotherthanindividualandPh
ysical Form 

PAN Enteryour10digitalpha-
numeric*PANissuebyIncomeTaxDepartment(Applicable for both  

demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 
 
 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/ 
Depository Participant are requested to use these quence number  
sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.inorcallattollfreeno.:18001020
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.inorcallattollfreeno.:18001020
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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Dividend Bank

Details

OR

Date of Birth(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy

format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company recorc

in order to login.

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or

company, please enter the member id/ folio number in the Dividend

Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

(ii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(iii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.

However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein

they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that

this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company

on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is

strongly recommended notto share your password with any other person and take utmost care to

keep your password confidential.

(iv) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the

resolutions contained in this Notice.

(v) Click on the EVSN fortherelevant <Company Name> onwhich you choose tovote.

(vi) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option

“YES/NO” forvoting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to

the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(vii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution

details.

(viii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”.A

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your

vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(ix) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(x) Youcanalsotakeaprintofthevotescastbyclickingon“CIickheretoprint”optionontheVotingpage.

(xi) IfademataccountholderhasforgottentheloginpasswordthenEntertheUserlDandtheimageverification

code and click on Forgot Password& enter the details as prompted by thesystem.

(xii) Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —Remote Voting

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to

log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporate” module.

• A scanned copy ofthe Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to

helpdesk.evoting@cdsIindia.com.

• After receiving the login detailsa Compliance User should be created using the admin login and

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdsIindia.com and on

approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power ofAttorney (POA) which they have issued in favor

of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system forthe scrutinizer to verify the

same.

• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/Authority

letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are

authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company attheemail address viz; info@syschem.in, if
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format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company records 

in order to login. 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or 
company, please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend 

Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v). 
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they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the

scrutinizer to verify the same.

PROCESSFORTHOSESHAREHOLDERSWHOSEEMAILADDRESSESARENOTREGISTERED WITH THE

DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS

PROPOSED INTHIS NOTICE:

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of

shareholder, scanned copy ofthe share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of

PAN card),AADHAR (self attested scanned copy ofAadhar Card) by email to beetalrta@gmail.com.

2. For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit

beneficiary ID orNSDL-16digitDPID+CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account

statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of

AadharCard) to beetalrta@gmail.com.

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an

emailto helpdesk.evoting@cdsIindia.comor contact at 022-23058738 and 022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr.

Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited,A Wing, 25th Floor,

Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds,N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or

send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdsIindia.comor call on 022-23058542/43.

Place: Chandigarh

Date: 02, July, 2024

By order of the Board of Directors

for SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

SD/-

Ranjan Jain

(Managing Director)

DIN:00635274
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Place: Chandigarh  By order of the Board of Directors 
Date: 02, July, 2024  for SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED 
          
        SD/- 

Ranjan Jain 
        (Managing Director) 
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EXPLANATORYSTATEMENT PURSUANT TO PROVDONS OFSECTION 102 OFTHE COMPANIESACT,

2013

ITEM NO.3

The members arehereby informed that the majority of the businesses of the company areexecuted

with Pharmacare International,a partnership concern in which none ofthe director or their relative is

interested asa partner or otherwise. Hence Pharma Care International is not related as per the

Companies Act, 2013. However aspertherecent amendments in Regulation 2(1)(zb) and Regulation 23

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), 2015, any person or entity holding 20% or

more oftheshareholding in the Company shall deemed tobe related Party. Further as per amended

provision 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirement), 2015 prior permission of

members is required for all material related party transactions. Sine Company is doing major business

with the Pharmacare, hence permission of the members is hereby sought. The Audit Committee has

already approved the same. Further the approval in the previous Annual General Meeting has already

been taken for Financial Year 2024-25 and seeking approval forthe Financial Year 2025-26 up toa value

of 1000 Crores (One Thousands Crore).

The members arehereby informed that the company hasexecuted transactions (Purchase and sale)

with JBK Khokhani& Co, in which none of the director or their relative is interested asa partner or

otherwise, But Promoters are the directors in the Co. Hence JBK Khokhani& Co is not related as per the

Companies Act, 2013. However aspertherecent amendments in Regulation 2(1)(zb) and Regulation 23

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), 2015, any person or entity holding 20% or

more oftheshareholding in the Company shall deemed tobe related Party. Further as per amended

provision 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirement), 2015 prior permission of

members is required for all material related party transactions. Sine Company is doing business with

the JBK Khokhani&Co, hence permission of the members is hereby sought. The Audit Committee has

already approved the same. Further the approval has already been taken for Financial Year 2024-25 in

the previous Annual General Meeting and now Company seek approval forthe Financial Year 2025-26

up toa value of 100 Crores (One Hundred Crore).

The members arehereby informed that the company hasexecuted transactions (Purchase and sale)

with Indosol Export, in which none of the director or their relative is interested asa partner or

otherwise, But Promoters are the directors in the Co. Hence Indosol Export is not related as per the

Companies Act, 2013. However aspertherecent amendments in Regulation 2(1)(zb) and Regulation 23

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), 2015, any person or entity holding 20% or

more oftheshareholding in the Company shall deemed tobe related Party. Further as per amended

provision 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirement), 2015 prior permission of

members is required for all material related party transactions. Sine Company is doing business with

the Indosol Export; hence permission of the members is hereby sought. The Audit Committee has

already approved the same. Further the approval has already taken 2024-25 in the previous Annual

General Meeting, and now Company seek approval for the Financial Year 2025-26 up toa value of 100

Crores (One Hundred Crore).

The Board recommends passing of the proposed Ordinary Resolution.
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ITEM NO.4:

The Board on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has approved the appointment of M/s.

Mohit Agrawal& Associates, Cost Auditors at remuneration of Rs. 45,000/- plus Goods and Service Tax

(GST) as applicable to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company forthefinancial year

ending March 31, 2025.In accordance with the provisions of the Sec 148 of the Act read with the

Companies (Audit &Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be

ratified by the shareholders of the Company. Accordingly consent of the members is sought. The

Directors recommends the resolution for members' approval as an Ordinary Resolution. None ofthe

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested,

financially or otherwise in this resolution.

ITEM NO.5:

The members arehereby informed that Pharmacare International,a partnership concern with whom

theCompany is having majority of the business transactions of the company areexecuted, in which

none ofthe Director or their relative is interested asa partner or otherwise. Hence, M/s Pharmacare

International is not a related party to the company as perthe provisions of Companies act, 2013.

However, as per the recent amendment in Regulation 2(1)(zb) and Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), 2015, any person or entity holding 20% or more of the

shareholding in the company shall be deemed tobea related party.

The Company provided corporate guarantee and security on the Credit Facilities taken by Pharmacare

International of an amount of Rs 50 Crores only after Shareholders approval in the Extra Ordinary

General Meeting dated 9th April, 2022. As the partnership concern beinga related party as per SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), 2015 So Now Company hereby seeks approval from

shareholders to extend their approval forthe same. As per recent amendment in the in regulation 23 of

LODR,(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement),2015,prior approval of shareholders is required,

so Company hereby seeks approval from the shareholders to extend Corporate guarantee and security

for the payment ofcredit facilities to HDFC Bank on behalf of Pharmacare. As per Regulation2 (1)(zb) of

Listing Regulation and Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing Regulations. Pharmacare International is an entity

related to promoter group members ofyour Company.

The Particulars of Corporate Guarantee/ Related Party transactions are given below:

Name of Relate Description of Corporate Guarantee / Total Transaction Value

Party Transaction
(Rs. in Crore)

Pharmacare

International

Corporate guarantee and/ created charge 50

on the assets of the Company tosecure

the due repayment ofthe credit facility(ies)

granted in favor of HDFC Bank Limited

of Rs.50 crore by HDFC Bank Limited

The other particulars of aforesaid Corporate Guarantee/Related Party Transaction are as below:
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Name ofRelated Name ofDirector Nature of Material Terms of Any other

Part'/
or Key Manageria

Pharmacare

International

ITEM NO.6

Personnel of the

Company who is

related Party, if an

NIL

Relationship/ the Corporate information

position in Guarantee/ contract relevant or

Pharmacare or important forth‹

International arrangement members totake

a decision on the

proposed

resolution

Pharmacare Guarantee is

International is an provided by company

entity related to to repay the Loan if

Promoters group the Related party fails

members ofthe torepay, Exclusive

Company charge by way of

hypothecation

of 1. all the plant

and machinery

consisting of all

movable assets being

movable properties

now

stored at or being

stored or which may

hereafter be brought

into or stored at orat

present installed

at all the locations.

2. all the security

providers moveable

properties including

its moveable plant

and machinery,

machinery spares,

tools and

Accessories and other

moveable's)

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination& Remuneration/Compensation

committee (NRC), had appointed Mr. Vivek Trehan (DIN: 03140346) as an Additional Director

(Independent) of the Company aspertheprovisions of Sections 152 and 161 of the Companies Act,

2013 (“the Act”) with effective from 2nd July 2024, subject to the approval of the members. In terms of

Regulation 17(1C) of SEBI (Listing Obligations& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (“Listing

Regulations”), the listed entity shall ensure that approval of shareholders for appointment ofa person

on the Board of Directors is taken atthe next general meeting or withina time period of three months

from thedate of appointment, whichever is earlier.
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Mr. Vivek Trehan is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms ofSection 164 of the Act

and has given her consent to act as Director. The Company has also received declarations and

Disclosure of Interests from him that he meets the criteria under the provisions of Listing Regulations.

In the opinion of the Board, he fulfills the conditions for appointment as Director as specified in the Act

and the rules made there under, and the Listing Regulations and is also independent of the

management. The Company received the Notice in written from a member proposing his

recommendation fortheappointment as Director

The Board is of the view that he is having rich experience in corporate affairs would prove of immense

benefit to the Company in its various engagements with regulatory authorities. Considering his

expertise and knowledge, it is in the interest of the Company that he is appointed as Director (Non

Executive) of the Company. The details required under the provisions of Secretarial Standard-2 on

General Meetings read with Listing Regulations are provided as Annexure1 hereto.

Except Mr. Vivek Trehan, none ofthe Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and anyof

their relatives are not in any way, concerned or interested in the resolution, except to the extent of

shares in the company that may be held by them ortheir relatives or any entity in which they may be

deemed tobeconcerned or interested.

The Board recommends theSpecial Resolution set out at Item No.6 of this Notice for approval of the

shareholders

None ofthe Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company ortheir relatives is directly or

indirectly concerned or interested in this Resolution.

ITEM NO.7

In the present competitive scenario, equity based compensation is considered to be an integral part of

employee benefits which enables alignment of personal goals of the employees with the organizational

objectives by giving them an opportunity to participate in the ownership ofthe Company through share

based compensation scheme/plan. The Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as

the “Board”) has identified the need to enhance the employee engagement, to reward the employees

fortheir association and performance as well as to motivate them tocontribute to the overall growth

and profitability of the Company andtocreatea sense of ownership and participation amongst them.

In view ofthis, the Company hasformulated “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme—

2024”,for the present and/or future permanent employees of the Company in accordance with the

applicable laws.

Hence, in terms of the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee

Benefits& Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 and Section 62 and other applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013, issue of Shares to persons other than the existing Members oftheCompany

requires an approval of the existing Members by way ofa Special Resolution and accordingly, the

Special Resolution at Item No. [7], seeks your approval forthe issue of further Equity Shares under the

“Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme—2024”(“Scheme”), tothe eligible employees

oftheCompany, asmay be determined by the Board.
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shares in the company that may be held by them or their relatives or any entity in which they may be 
deemed to be concerned or interested. 

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 6 of this Notice for approval of the 
shareholders 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is directly or 
indirectly concerned or interested in this Resolution. 

 

ITEM NO.7 

In the present competitive scenario, equity based compensation is considered to be an integral part of 
employee benefits which enables alignment of personal goals of the employees with the organizational 
objectives by giving them an opportunity to participate in the ownership of the Company through share 
based compensation scheme/plan. The Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Board”) has identified the need to enhance the employee engagement, to reward the employees 
for their association and performance as well as to motivate them to contribute to the overall growth 
and profitability of the Company and to create a sense of ownership and participation amongst them.  

In view of this, the Company has formulated “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme– 
2024”,for the present and/or future permanent employees of the Company in accordance with the 
applicable laws.  

Hence, in terms of the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 
Benefits & Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 and Section 62 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, issue of Shares to persons other than the existing Members of the Company 
requires an approval of the existing Members by way of a Special Resolution and accordingly, the 
Special Resolution at Item No. [7], seeks your approval for the issue of further Equity Shares under the 
“Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme– 2024”(“Scheme”), to the eligible employees 
of the Company, as may be determined by the Board. 

 

 

 



The main features and other details of the Scheme as per Regulation 6(2) read with PartC of

ScheduleI of SEBI (SBEB& SE)Regulations, 2021 and Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

Rule 12 of Companies (Share capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 areasunder:

1. Brief description of the Scheme

“Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme— 2024” is intended to reward the eligible

employees as selected by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (also referred to as “NRC

Committee”/Compensation Committee)], fortheir performance and to motivate them tocontribute to

the growth and profitability of the Company and also to retain them byway ofissuing employee stock

options. Subject to applicable law and terms and conditions of the Scheme, the eligible employees shall

be entitled to subscribe to the equity shares within certain time period (“Exercise Period”) upon

fulfillment of such conditions (“Vesting”) and payment ofan exercise price (“Exercise Price”).

2. The Objective of the Scheme are:

The Objective of the Scheme includes the followings:

• To attract relevant talent into the Company todrive its growth plans;

•To motivate the Employees to contribute to the growth and profitability of the Company;

•To retain the Employees and reduce the attrition rate of the Company;

•To achieve sustained growth and the creation of shareholder value by aligning the interests of

the Employees with the long-term interests of the Company;

•To createa sense of ownership and participation amongst the Employees to share the value

they create forthe Company in the years to come; and

•To provide additional deferred rewards to Employees.

3. Total number ofOptions to be granted under the Scheme.

The maximum number ofoptions to be granted under Scheme shall not exceed 10,00,000 (Ten Lakh)

options convertibles into equal number ofequity shares of the Company offace value Rs. 10/- each.

It is clarified that, in case of any corporate action(s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, merger, sale of

division or other reorganization of capital structure of the Company, asthecase may be,the number of

Stock Options and/or the shares to be allotted upon exercise of Stock Options, the issue/ exercise price,

shall be reasonably adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the “Syschem India Limited

Employees Stock Option Scheme—2024”, theSEBI Regulations and other applicable laws.

 

 

 

The main features and other details of the Scheme as per Regulation 6(2) read with Part C of 
Schedule I of SEBI (SBEB & SE) Regulations, 2021 and Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 12 of Companies (Share capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 are as under: 

 
1. Brief description of the Scheme  
 

“Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme– 2024” is intended to reward the eligible 
employees as selected by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (also referred to as “NRC 
Committee”/Compensation Committee)], for their performance and to motivate them to contribute to 
the growth and profitability of the Company and also to retain them by way of issuing employee stock 
options. Subject to applicable law and terms and conditions of the Scheme, the eligible employees shall 
be entitled to subscribe to the equity shares within certain time period (“Exercise Period”) upon 
fulfillment of such conditions (“Vesting”) and payment of an exercise price (“Exercise Price”). 
 

2. The Objective of the Scheme are: 
 

The Objective of the Scheme includes the followings: 
 
• To attract relevant talent into the Company to drive its growth plans; 
•To motivate the Employees to contribute to the growth and profitability of the Company; 

•To retain the Employees and reduce the attrition rate of the Company; 
•To achieve sustained growth and the creation of shareholder value by aligning the interests of 

the Employees with the long-term interests of the Company; 

•To create a sense of ownership and participation amongst the Employees to share the value 

they create for the Company in the years to come; and 

•To provide additional deferred rewards to Employees. 
 

3. Total number of Options to be granted under the Scheme. 
 

The maximum number of options to be granted under Scheme shall not exceed 10,00,000 (Ten Lakh) 
options convertibles into equal number of equity shares of the Company of face value Rs. 10/- each. 

 
It is clarified that, in case of any corporate action(s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, merger, sale of 

division or other reorganization of capital structure of the Company, as the case may be, the number of 

Stock Options and/or the shares to be allotted upon exercise of Stock Options, the issue/ exercise price, 

shall be reasonably adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the “Syschem India Limited 

Employees Stock Option Scheme– 2024”, the SEBI Regulations and other applicable laws.   

 
 



4. Identification of classes of employees entitled to participate and be beneficiaries in Scheme.

An Employee shall be eligible to participate in the Scheme, as determined by the NRC Committee. Only

Employees as defined herein are eligible under “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option

Scheme—2024”. Subject to this, the Committee shall, at its sole discretion, determine, which Employee

or category of employees shall be eligible for Grant of Options and the terms of Grant thereof and

accordingly, the company would offer the Options to the identified Eligible Employees based on the

performance, experience, loyalty, etc.

The definition of Employees forthe purpose of “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme—

2024”shaII mean:

(i) apermanent employee on the rolls of the companyas designated by the Company from

time to time, who is exclusively working in India or out of India; or

(ii) a director of the company, whethera whole- time director or not, includinga non-

executive director, who is not a promoter and member ofthepromoter group, but

excluding an independent director; or

but does not include:

(a) a contractual employee oftheCompany; or

(b) an Employee or Director who isa Promoter ora person belonging to the Promoter Group of

theCompany; or

(c) a Director who either himself or through his Relative or through any Body Corporate directly

or indirectly, holds more than ten percent of the outstanding equity shares of the Company;

OF

(d) an Independent Director and Non- Executive Director of the Company;

5. Requirement ofVesting and period of Vesting

The details of vesting and vesting period are as under:

5.1 Vesting Period shall commence from the Grant Date subject to minimum of1 (One) year from

the Grant Date anda maximum of4 (Four) years from the Grant Date, at the discretion of and

in the manner prescribed by the Committee and setout in the Grant Letter.

5.2 Vesting of Options can vary from Grantee to Grantee as per the discretion of the Committee

whose decision shall be final and binding.

5.3 The vesting schedule will be clearly defined in their Grant Letter of respective Grantees subject

to minimum and maximum Vesting Period as specified in article 5.1 above.

 
 
 
 
4. Identification of classes of employees entitled to participate and be beneficiaries in Scheme. 
 

An Employee shall be eligible to participate in the Scheme, as determined by the NRC Committee. Only 
Employees as defined herein are eligible under “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option 
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The definition of Employees for the purpose of “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme– 
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(i) apermanent employee on the rolls of the companyas designated by the Company from 

time to time, who is exclusively working in India or out of India; or 

(ii) a director of the company, whether a whole- time director or not, including a non-

executive director, who is not a promoter and member of the promoter group, but 

excluding an independent director; or  

 

but does not include: 
(a) a contractual employee of the Company; or 
(b) an Employee or Director who is a Promoter or a person belonging to the Promoter Group of 

the Company; or 
(c) a Director who either himself or through his Relative or through any Body Corporate directly 

or indirectly, holds more than ten percent of the outstanding equity shares of the Company; 
or 

(d) an Independent Director and Non- Executive Director of the Company; 
 

5. Requirement of Vesting and period of Vesting 
 
The details of vesting and vesting period are as under:  

 
5.1 Vesting Period shall commence from the Grant Date subject to minimum of 1 (One) year from 

the Grant Date and a maximum of 4 (Four) years from the Grant Date, at the discretion of and 

in the manner prescribed by the Committee and set out in the Grant Letter. 

5.2 Vesting of Options can vary from Grantee to Grantee as per the discretion of the Committee 

whose decision shall be final and binding. 

5.3 The vesting schedule will be clearly defined in their Grant Letter of respective Grantees subject 

to minimum and maximum Vesting Period as specified in article 5.1 above. 

 



However, the Vesting schedule shall be as follows until and unless changed by the Committee:

Time Period

At the end of 1styear from thegrant

date

At the end of 2nd year from thegrant

date

At the end of 3rd year from thegrant

date

At the end of 4th year from thegrant

date

% of Options to be vested

25% ofthe Options Granted

25% ofthe Options Granted

25% ofthe Options Granted

25% ofthe Options Granted

5.4 The Board shall have the freedom to specifya lock-in period for the equity Shares issued

pursuant to the Exercise of Option. Such lock-in period, if any, may be specified in the Offer

Letter.

5.5 As a pre—requisite of vesting, the Grantee is required to be in employment or service of the

Company on thedate of vesting and must neither be serving the notice of termination of

employment/ service, nor be subject to any disciplinary proceedings pending against the

Grantee on such date of vesting. In case of any disciplinary proceedings against any Grantee,

the Committee can keep the relevant vesting in abeyance until disposal of the proceedings and

such Vesting shall be determined accordingly.

5.6 The Vesting would be subject to the continued employment oftheGrantee and may further be

linked with the certain performance and other criteria's, as determined by the Committee and

mentioned in the Grant Letter.

5.7 Further any fraction entitlement, to which the Grantee would become entitled to upon Vesting

of Options (other than the last tranche of vesting), then the Options to be actually vested be

rounded offto the nearest lower integer. Accordingly, in the last vesting, the number ofthe

Options to be vested shall include the Options which were notearlier vested due to fraction

adjustment.

5.8 The Vesting of Options shall be communicated to the eligible Grantees in writing through

vesting letter.

5.9 The Grantee is not required to pay any amount atthetime ofVesting of Options.

 

 

 However, the Vesting schedule shall be as follows until and unless changed by the Committee: 

Time Period % of Options to be vested 

At the end of 1st year from the grant 
date 

25% of the Options Granted 

At the end of 2nd year from the grant 
date 

25% of the Options Granted 

At the end of 3rd year from the grant 
date 

25% of the Options Granted 

At the end of 4th year from the grant 
date 

25% of the Options Granted 

 

5.4 The Board shall have the freedom to specify a lock-in period for the equity Shares issued 

pursuant to the Exercise of Option. Such lock-in period, if any, may be specified in the Offer 

Letter. 

 

5.5 As a pre–requisite of vesting, the Grantee is required to be in employment or service of the 

Company on the date of vesting and must neither be serving the notice of termination of 

employment / service, nor be subject to any disciplinary proceedings pending against the 

Grantee on such date of vesting. In case of any disciplinary proceedings against any Grantee, 

the Committee can keep the relevant vesting in abeyance until disposal of the proceedings and 

such Vesting shall be determined accordingly. 

 

5.6 The Vesting would be subject to the continued employment of the Grantee and may further be 

linked with the certain performance and other criteria’s, as determined by the Committee and 

mentioned in the Grant Letter. 

 

5.7 Further any fraction entitlement, to which the Grantee would become entitled to upon Vesting 

of Options (other than the last tranche of vesting), then the Options to be actually vested be 

rounded off to the nearest lower integer. Accordingly, in the last vesting, the number of the 

Options to be vested shall include the Options which were not earlier vested due to fraction 

adjustment. 

 

5.8 The Vesting of Options shall be communicated to the eligible Grantees in writing through 

vesting letter. 

 

5.9 The Grantee is not required to pay any amount at the time of Vesting of Options. 
 

 



6. Maximum period within which the options shall be vested

The options granted under Scheme shall vest as may be decided by the Committee subject to maximum

period of4 (Four) years. Vesting of Options would be subject to continued employment with the

Company, orasthecase may be, on the date of vesting.

7. Exercise Price or Pricing Formula:

The Exercise Price shall be based on the Market Price of the Company which shall mean thelatest

closing price ona recognized stock exchange on which the shares of the company arelisted on the date

immediately prior to the date of meeting ofcommittee on which grant is to be made.

The Committee hasa power to provide suitable discount on such price as arrived above. However, in

any case the Exercise Price shall not go below the parvalue of equity share ofthe Company.

8. Exercise period and process of Exercise:

The Vested Options shall be exercisable according to the terms and conditions as determined and set

forth under the scheme and thedetails of which aregiven as under.

8.1 After Vesting, Options can be Exercised either wholly or partly, during the exercise window,

within the overall exercise period of3 (Three) years from the date of respective Vesting,

through Cash Mechanism after submitting the Exercise application along with payment ofthe

Exercise Price, applicable taxes and other charges, if any.

8.2 For para8.1, Exercise window within which vested options can be exercised shall be opened

aspertimeline as stated in the SOP as may be decided by the Committee from time to time.

8.3 Failure to comply within this time period, shall result in lapsing of Vested Options in the

hands of Grantee. The amount paid by the Employee, if any, for the Exercise of Options may

be refunded, if the Options are not Exercised by the Employee within the Exercise Period.

8.4 The mode andmanner oftheExercise shall be communicated tothe Grantees individually as

decided by the Committee from time to time.

8.5 Upon valid exercise the Company will allot requisite number ofShares to the Grantee. Shares

so allotted shall rank pari-passu to the existing Shares of the Company.

8.6 Upon such allotment, the Grantee shall becomea member oftheCompany.

8.7 Subject to the approval of the Recognized Stock Exchanges, the Shares issued and allotted

pursuant to Exercise shall be listed on the Recognized Stock Exchanges on which the Shares

of the Company arelisted or proposed to be additionally listed.

8.8 Notwithstanding anything contained elsewhere in the Scheme, the Company, may not allot

Shares, in the event of the Grantee being found to be involved in fraud, misfeasance, moral

turpitude, misconduct, gross negligence, breach of trust and in such an event(s) the rights

under the Options (whether vested or not) shall lapse, forthwith, without any claim on, or

recourse to the Company.

 

 

6. Maximum period within which the options shall be vested 
 

The options granted under Scheme shall vest as may be decided by the Committee subject to maximum 
period of 4 (Four) years. Vesting of Options would be subject to continued employment with the 
Company, or as the case may be, on the date of vesting. 
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The Exercise Price shall be based on the Market Price of the Company which shall mean the latest 
closing price on a recognized stock exchange on which the shares of the company are listed on the date 
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The Committee has a power to provide suitable discount on such price as arrived above. However, in 
any case the Exercise Price shall not go below the par value of equity share of the Company. 

 
8. Exercise period and process of Exercise: 

 
The Vested Options shall be exercisable according to the terms and conditions as determined and set 
forth under the scheme and the details of which are given as under.    
 
8.1 After Vesting, Options can be Exercised either wholly or partly, during the exercise window, 

within the overall exercise period of 3 (Three) years from the date of respective Vesting, 

through Cash Mechanism after submitting the Exercise application along with payment of the 

Exercise Price, applicable taxes and other charges, if any. 

8.2 For para8.1, Exercise window within which vested options can be exercised shall be opened 

as per timeline as stated in the SOP as may be decided by the Committee from time to time. 

8.3 Failure to comply within this time period, shall result in lapsing of Vested Options in the 

hands of Grantee. The amount paid by the Employee, if any, for the Exercise of Options may 

be refunded, if the Options are not Exercised by the Employee within the Exercise Period. 

8.4 The mode and manner of the Exercise shall be communicated to the Grantees individually as 

decided by the Committee from time to time. 

8.5 Upon valid exercise the Company will allot requisite number of Shares to the Grantee. Shares 

so allotted shall rank pari-passu to the existing Shares of the Company. 

8.6 Upon such allotment, the Grantee shall become a member of the Company. 
8.7 Subject to the approval of the Recognized Stock Exchanges, the Shares issued and allotted 

pursuant to Exercise shall be listed on the Recognized Stock Exchanges on which the Shares 

of the Company are listed or proposed to be additionally listed. 

8.8 Notwithstanding anything contained elsewhere in the Scheme, the Company, may not allot 

Shares, in the event of the Grantee being found to be involved in fraud, misfeasance, moral 

turpitude, misconduct, gross negligence, breach of trust and in such an event(s) the rights 

under the Options (whether vested or not) shall lapse, forthwith, without any claim on, or 

recourse to the Company. 



8.9 If the Vesting or Exercise of Options is prevented by any law or regulation in force and/or the

Company is forbidden to allot the Shares pursuant to Exercise of Options under such law or

regulation, then in such an event the Company shall not be liable to compensate the

Grantee.

8.10 The Committee shall have the power to cancel all or any of the Options Granted under the

Scheme, if so required, under any law for the time being in force or the order of any

jurisdictional court. In the event of any such cancellation, the Company shall not be liable to

compensate theGrantee.

8.11 In order to Exercise the Options of the deceased Grantee, the legal heirs/ Nominee have to

submit the documents as stated in the SOP which the company will intimate from time to

time, to the satisfaction of the Committee.

Exercise of the Options shall take place at the time and place designated by the Committee or the

Company and by executing such documents as may be required under the Applicable Laws to passa

valid title to the relevant Shares to the Participant, free and clear of any liens, encumbrances and

transfer restrictions save forthose setout therein.

An Option shall be deemed tobe exercised only when theCommittee receives notice of exercise and

the Exercise Price in accordance with Scheme from the person entitled to exercise the Option.

On exercise, the Participant can subscribe to the shares on the full payment ofthe Exercise price and

taxes, if any, required to be deducted by the company in respect of exercise of the Option, and the

Company shall allot the Shares to the Participants after completing the necessary formalities in this

regard, or, if requested in writing by the Participant, to the Participant jointly with another person,

provided the Committee/ Company finds the Exercise form complete and conditions of the Scheme are

complied with. Subsequent to allotment, no Participant should seek to sell or otherwise transfer the

Shares until there isa confirmation from the Company that the listing procedures with respect to the

allotted Shares have been completed.

In order to make the“Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme—2024”more attractive to

the employee, there would not be any lock-in period for the shares issued consequent upon exercising

the options under the “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme—2024”.

Notwithstanding anything else contained in this Scheme, if the Participant does not Exercise his Vested

Options within the time specified in this Scheme, such unexercised, the Options shall lapse.

There shall be no cashless exercise of the Options. Further there shall not be any funding of financing

by the Company forExercise of Options.
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No.

Events of

Separation

Vested

Options

Unvested Options

Exercise in certain special cases:

1. Death

2. Permanent

Incapacity

All the vested Options Granted as

on date of death would vestin the

legal heirs / nominee of the

Grantee on that day. The Options

would be exercisable by the legal

heirs /nominee during the

exercise window, within the

overall exercise period of1 (One)

year from the date of death,

failing which all the Unexercised

Options shall lapse irrevocably and

the rights there under shall

Be extinguished.

All Vested Options Granted

toGranteeasondateofPermanentln

capacitywouldvestinGranteeontha

tday. The Options would be

exercisable by the Grantee during

the exercise window, within the

overall exercise period of1 (One)

year from the date of permanent

in capacity, failing which all the

Unexercised Options shall lapse

irrevocably and the rights there

under shall be

Extinguished

All the unvested Options as on

date of death would vest in the

legal heirs/nominee of the

Grantee on that day. The Options

would be exercisable by the legal

heirs /nominee during the exercise

window, within the overall

exercise period of 1 (One) year

from the date of death, failing

which all the Unexercised Options

shall lapse irrevocably and the

rights there under shall Be

extinguished.

All Unvested Options Granted to

Grantee as on date of Permanent

Incapacity would vest in Grantee

on that day.

TheOptionswouldbeexercisablebyt

heGranteeduringtheexercisewindo

w,withintheoveraIIexerciseperiod

of 1 (One) year from

thedateofpermanentincapacity,faiI

ingwhichalltheUnexercisedOptions

shalllapse irrevocably and the

rights there under shall be

extinguished

 

 

 

Exercise in certain special cases:  

S. 

No. 

Events of 

Separation 

Vested 

Options 

Unvested Options 

1. Death All the vested Options Granted as 

on date of death would vestin the 

legal heirs / nominee of the 

Grantee on that day. The Options 

would be exercisable by the legal 

heirs /nominee during the 

exercise window, within the 

overall exercise period of 1 (One) 

year from the date of death, 

failing which all the Unexercised 

Options shall lapse irrevocably and 

the rights there under shall 

Be extinguished. 

All the unvested Options as on 

date of death would vest in the 

legal heirs/nominee of the 

Grantee on that day. The Options 

would be exercisable by the legal 

heirs /nominee during the exercise 

window, within the overall 

exercise period of 1 (One) year 

from the date of death, failing 

which all the Unexercised Options 

shall lapse irrevocably and the 

rights there under shall Be 

extinguished. 

2. Permanent 

Incapacity 

All Vested Options Granted 

toGranteeasondateofPermanentIn

capacitywouldvestinGranteeontha

tday. The Options would be 

exercisable by the Grantee during 

the exercise window, within the 

overall exercise period of 1 (One) 

year from the date of permanent 

in capacity, failing which all the 

Unexercised Options shall lapse 

irrevocably and the rights there 

under shall be 

Extinguished 

All Unvested Options Granted to 

Grantee as on date of Permanent 

Incapacity would vest in Grantee 

on that day. 

TheOptionswouldbeexercisablebyt

heGranteeduringtheexercisewindo

w,withintheoverallexerciseperiod 

of 1 (One) year from 

thedateofpermanentincapacity,fail

ingwhichalltheUnexercisedOptions

shalllapse irrevocably and the 

rights there under shall be 

extinguished 



3. Resignation

4. Retirement

/Superannuation

5. Termination

(not

due to

misconduct, moral

turpitude or

ethical/

compliance

violations or like

event)

6. In the event of

cessation of

employment due

to termination

(due to

misconduct ,moral

turpitude or

ethical

compliance

violations or like

event)

All Vested Options shall be

exercisable by the Grantee in the

upcoming exercise

windowfromthelastworkingdayfail

ingwhichalltheUnexercisedOptions

shalllapse irrevocably and the

rights there under shall be

extinguished.

All Vested Options shall be

exercisable by the Grantee in the

upcoming exercise window from

the last working day failing which

all the Unexercised Options shall

lapse irrevocably and the rights

there under shall be extinguished

All Vested Options shall be

exercisable by the Grantee in the

upcoming exercise window from

the last working day failing which

all the Unexercised Options shall

lapse irrevocably and the rights

there under shall be

Extinguished

All the vested Options at the time

of such termination shall stand

cancelled with effect from the

date of such termination.

All Unvested Options, on the date

of last working day

shallexpirestandterminatedwitheff

ectfromthatdateunlessotherwised

eterminedbytheCommittee whose

decision will be final and binding.

All the Unvested Options would

continue to vestin accordance

with the respective vesting

schedules even after the last

working day. The Options upon

getting vest would be exercisable

during the exercise window as

applicable in case of vested

options, failing to which all the

unexercised options shall lapse

irrevocably and the rights there

under shall be extinguished

All Unvested Options, on the date

of termination, shall expire and

stand terminated with immediate

effect.

All the Unvested Options at the

time of such termination shall

stand cancelled with effect from

the date of such termination.

3. Resignation All Vested Options shall be 

exercisable by the Grantee in the 

upcoming exercise 

windowfromthelastworkingdayfail

ingwhichalltheUnexercisedOptions

shalllapse irrevocably and the 

rights there under shall be 

extinguished. 

All Unvested Options, on the date 

of last working day 

shallexpirestandterminatedwitheff

ectfromthatdateunlessotherwised

eterminedbytheCommittee whose 

decision will be final and binding. 

4. Retirement 

/Superannuation 

All Vested Options shall be 

exercisable by the Grantee in the 

upcoming exercise window from 

the last working day failing which 

all the Unexercised Options shall 

lapse irrevocably and the rights 

there under shall be extinguished 

All the Unvested Options would 

continue to vestin accordance 

with the respective vesting 

schedules even after the last 

working day. The Options upon 

getting vest would be exercisable 

during the exercise window as 

applicable in  case  of  vested  

options, failing to which all the 

unexercised options shall lapse 

irrevocably and the rights there 

under shall be extinguished 

5. Termination 

(not 

due to 

misconduct, moral 

turpitude or 

ethical/ 

compliance 

violations or like 

event) 

All Vested Options shall be 

exercisable by the Grantee in the 

upcoming exercise window from 

the last working day failing which 

all the Unexercised Options shall 

lapse irrevocably and the rights 

there under shall be 

Extinguished 

All Unvested Options, on the date 

of termination, shall expire and 

stand terminated with immediate 

effect. 

6. In the event of 

cessation of 

employment due 

to termination 

(due to 

misconduct ,moral 

turpitude or 

ethical  / 

compliance 

violations or like 

event) 

All the vested Options at the time 

of such termination shall stand 

cancelled with effect from the 

date of such termination. 

All the Unvested Options at the 

time of such termination shall 

stand cancelled with effect from 

the date of such termination. 

 

 

 



9. Appraisal process fordetermining the eligibility of the Employees toScheme:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee may on the basis of all or any of the following criteria,

decide on the Employees/ Grantees who are eligible for the grant/ vesting of Options under the

Scheme andtheterms and conditions thereof.

Loyalty: It will be determined on the basis of tenure of employment ofan Employee/ Grantee in the

Company/ Subsidiary Company (ies)/ Associate Company (ies)/ Holding Company.

Performance of Employee/ Grantee: Employee's/ Grantee's performance during the financial year in

the Company/ Subsidiary Company (ies)/ Associate Company (ies)/ Holding Company on thebasis of

the parameters decided by the Board of Directors.

Performance of Company: Performance of the Company as perthe standards set by the Board of

Directors.

Any other criteria as decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in consultation with

Board of Directors from time to time.

10. The Maximum number ofOptions to be granted per employee and in aggregate

The maximum number ofOptions that can be granted to any eligible Employee during any one year

shall not be equal to or exceed 1% of the issued capital of the Company atthetime of grant. The

Committee may decide to grant such number ofOptions equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital

to any eligible employee as the case may be, subject to the obtaining separate approval of the

shareholders ina general meeting.

The maximum number of options to be granted under this scheme shall not exceed 10,00,000 (Ten

Lakh),which shall be convertible into equal number ofEquity Shares.

The Maximum quantum ofbenefits to be provided per Employee under the scheme

The maximum quantum ofbenefits that will be provided to every eligible Employee under the Scheme

will be the difference between the market value of Company's Share on the Stock Exchanges as on the

date of exercise of Options and the Exercise Price paid by the Employee.

12. Whether thescheme(s) is to be implemented and administered directly by the company orthrougha

Trust:

It is clarified that “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme— 2024”, is not proposed to

be implemented through Trust. There won't be any secondary market acquisition for the purpose of

implementation ofthe Scheme. The Scheme will be implemented directly by the Company.

13. Whether thescheme involves new issue of shares by the company orsecondary acquisition by the

Trust or both

Implementation ofthe Scheme would involve new issue of equity shares. There won't be any secondary

market acquisition for the purpose of implementation ofthe Scheme.

 

 

9. Appraisal process for determining the eligibility of the Employees to Scheme: 
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee may on the basis of all or any of the following criteria, 
decide on the Employees / Grantees who are eligible for the grant / vesting of Options under the 
Scheme and the terms and conditions thereof. 

 

 Loyalty: It will be determined on the basis of tenure of employment of an Employee / Grantee in the 
Company/ Subsidiary Company (ies)/ Associate Company (ies)/ Holding Company. 

 Performance of Employee / Grantee: Employee’s / Grantee’s performance during the financial year in 
the Company/ Subsidiary Company (ies)/ Associate Company (ies)/ Holding Company on the basis of 
the parameters decided by the Board of Directors. 

 Performance of Company: Performance of the Company as per the standards set by the Board of 
Directors. 

 Any other criteria as decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in consultation with 
Board of Directors from time to time. 

 

10. The Maximum number of Options to be granted per employee and in aggregate 
  

The maximum number of Options that can be granted to any eligible Employee during any one year 
shall not be equal to or exceed 1% of the issued capital of the Company at the time of grant. The 
Committee may decide to grant such number of Options equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital 
to any eligible employee as the case may be, subject to the obtaining separate approval of the 
shareholders in a general meeting. 

 
The maximum number of options to be granted under this scheme shall not exceed 10,00,000 (Ten 
Lakh),which shall be convertible into equal number of Equity Shares. 

 
11. The Maximum quantum of benefits to be provided per Employee under the scheme 

 
The maximum quantum of benefits that will be provided to every eligible Employee under the Scheme 
will be the difference between the market value of Company’s Share on the Stock Exchanges as on the 
date of exercise of Options and the Exercise Price paid by the Employee. 

 

12. Whether the scheme(s) is to be implemented and administered directly by the company or through a 
Trust:  
It is clarified that “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme– 2024”, is not proposed to 
be implemented through Trust.  There won’t be any secondary market acquisition for the purpose of 
implementation of the Scheme.  The Scheme will be implemented directly by the Company. 

 
13. Whether the scheme involves new issue of shares by the company or secondary acquisition by the 

Trust or both 
 

Implementation of the Scheme would involve new issue of equity shares.  There won’t be any secondary 

market acquisition for the purpose of implementation of the Scheme. 



14. The amount ofloan to be provided for implementation of the scheme by thecompany totheTrust,

its tenure, utilization, repayment terms, etc.;

Subject to Applicable Law, the company may make availablea bridge loan to assist the employee to pay up

and exercise the vested Options. This loan shall be subject to the terms and conditions as the company may

stipulate at the time ofgrant of loan.

15. The Maximum percentage of secondary acquisition (subject to limits specified under the regulations)

that can be made bytheTrust for the purposes ofthe scheme.

There won't be any secondary market acquisition for the purpose of implementation ofthe Scheme.

16. Disclosure and accounting policies:

The Company shall make all the necessary disclosures required under the provisions of the SEBI (SBEB

& SE) Regulations, the relevant parts of ScheduleI of SEBI (SBEB& SE) Regulations, The Companies Act,

2013, and any other Applicable Law for the time being in force. The Company shall comply with the

requirements of IND — AS 102 and shall use Fair value method and thefair value of Options would be

calculated as per the prescribed method under the applicable regulations.

The Company shall comply with the accounting policies prescribed under Regulation 15 of the SEBI

(SBEB& SE) Regulations or as may be prescribed by regulatory authorities from time to time.

17. The method which the Company shall use to value itsOptions.

The Company shall comply with the requirements of IND-AS and shall use Fair Value method.

18. Statement with regard to Disclosure in Director's Report.

As the company is adopting fair value method, presently there is no requirement for disclosure in

director's report. However, if in future, the Company opts for expensing of share based employee

benefits using the intrinsic value, then the difference between the employee compensation cost so

computed and theemployee compensation cost that shall have been recognized if it had used the fair

value, shall be disclosed in the Directors' report and the impact of this difference on profits and on

earnings per share (“EPS”) of the company shall also be disclosed in the Directors' report.'

19. Period of Lock In

There shall bea minimum vesting period of one year between grant and vesting. Options Granted to an

Employee shall not be transferable to any person. Subject to special provisions relating to the case of

death of an employee before exercise of options (as mentioned above), no person, other than the

 

14. The amount of loan to be provided for implementation of the scheme by the company to the Trust, 
its tenure, utilization, repayment terms, etc.;  

 

Subject to Applicable Law, the company may make available a bridge loan to assist the employee to pay up 

and exercise the vested Options. This loan shall be subject to the terms and conditions as the company may 

stipulate at the time of grant of loan.  

 
15. The Maximum percentage of secondary acquisition (subject to limits specified under the regulations) 

that can be made by the Trust for the purposes of the scheme. 
 

There won’t be any secondary market acquisition for the purpose of implementation of the Scheme. 

 
16. Disclosure and accounting policies: 

 
The Company shall make all the necessary disclosures required under the provisions of the SEBI (SBEB 

& SE) Regulations, the relevant parts of Schedule I of SEBI (SBEB & SE) Regulations, The Companies Act, 

2013, and any other Applicable Law for the time being in force. The Company shall comply with the 

requirements of IND – AS 102 and shall use Fair value method and the fair value of Options would be 

calculated as per the prescribed method under the applicable regulations. 

 

The Company shall comply with the accounting policies prescribed under Regulation 15 of the SEBI 

(SBEB & SE) Regulations or as may be prescribed by regulatory authorities from time to time. 

 

17. The method which the Company shall use to value its Options. 
 

The Company shall comply with the requirements of IND-AS and shall use Fair Value method. 
 
18. Statement with regard to Disclosure in Director’s Report. 
 

As the company is adopting fair value method, presently there is no requirement for disclosure in 
director’s report. However, if in future, the Company opts for expensing of share based employee 
benefits using the intrinsic value, then the difference between the employee compensation cost so 
computed and the employee compensation cost that shall have been recognized if it had used the fair 
value, shall be disclosed in the Directors’ report and the impact of this difference on profits and on 
earnings per share (“EPS”) of the company shall also be disclosed in the Directors' report.' 

 
19. Period of Lock In 

 
There shall be a minimum vesting period of one year between grant and vesting. Options Granted to an 

Employee shall not be transferable to any person. Subject to special provisions relating to the case of 

death of an employee before exercise of options (as mentioned above), no person, other than the 



Participant, shall be entitled to the benefit arising out of under “Syschem India Limited Employees

Stock Option Scheme—2024”.

It is also clarified that the stock options granted under the “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock

Option Scheme— 2024”shaII not be pledged, hypothecated, mortgaged or otherwise alienated in any

manner.

There would not be any lock-in period for the shares issued consequent upon exercising the options

under the “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme—2024”.

20. Terms& conditions for buyback, if any, of specified securities covered under these regulations

There is no buyback arrangement orcommitment bytheCompany in respect of any shares or securities

issued/ allotted under “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme—2024”.

21. Conditions under which option vested in employees may lapse

In the event of cessation of employment due toTermination (due to misconduct or ethical/ compliance

violations), all Options, whether vested or unvested shall be dealt with as under in accordance with

Scheme.

In the event of cessation

Of employment due to

termination

(due to misconduct, moral

turpitude or

ethical/compliance

Violations or like event)

All the vested Options at the time

of such termination shall stand

cancelled with effect from the

date of such termination.

All the Unvested Options at the

time of such termination shall

stand cancelled with effect from

the date of such termination.

22. Specified time period within which the employee shall exercise the vested options in the event ofa

proposed termination of employment orresignation of employee

In the event of cessation of employment due to Resignation or Termination (not due to misconduct or

ethical/ compliance vioIations)aII Options, whether vested or unvested shall be dealt with as under in

accordance with Scheme.

Participant, shall be entitled to the benefit arising out of under “Syschem India Limited Employees 

Stock Option Scheme– 2024”.  

.  
 It is also clarified that the stock options granted under the “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock 

Option Scheme– 2024”shall not be pledged, hypothecated, mortgaged or otherwise alienated in any 

manner.  

 
There would not be any lock-in period for the shares issued consequent upon exercising the options 

under the “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme– 2024”.  

 
20. Terms & conditions for buyback, if any, of specified securities covered under these regulations 

 
There is no buyback arrangement or commitment by the Company in respect of any shares or securities 

issued/ allotted under “Syschem India Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme– 2024”.  

 
21. Conditions under which option vested in employees may lapse 
 

In the event of cessation of employment due to Termination (due to misconduct or ethical/ compliance 
violations), all Options, whether vested or unvested shall be dealt with as under in accordance with 
Scheme. 
 

In the event of cessation 

Of employment due to 

termination 

(due to misconduct, moral 

turpitude or 

ethical/compliance 

Violations or like event) 

All the vested Options at the time 

of such termination shall stand 

cancelled with effect from the 

date of such termination. 

All the Unvested Options at the 

time of such termination shall 

stand cancelled with effect from 

the date of such termination. 

 
 
22. Specified time period within which the employee shall exercise the vested options in the event of a 

proposed termination of employment or resignation of employee 
  
In the event of cessation of employment due to Resignation or Termination (not due to misconduct or 
ethical/ compliance violations)all Options, whether vested or unvested shall be dealt with as under in 
accordance with Scheme. 



Retirement

/Superannuation

Termination(not due to

misconduct, moral

turpitude or ethical/

compliance violations or

like event)

All Vested Options shall be exercisable by

the Grantee in the upcoming exercise

window from the last working day failing

which all the Unexercised Options shall

lapse irrevocably and the rights there

under shall be extinguished

All Vested Options shall be exercisable by

the Grantee in the upcoming exercise

windowfromthelastworkingdayfailingwhic

halltheUnexercisedOptionsshalllapse

irrevocably and the rights there under

shall be Extinguished

All the Unvested Options would

continue to vest in accordance

with the respective vesting

schedules even after the last

working day. The Options upon

getting vest would be exercisable

during the exercise window as

applicable in case of vested

options, failing to which all the

unexercised options shall lapse

irrevocably and the rights there

under shall be extinguished

All Unvested Options, on the date

of termination, shall expire and

stand terminated with immediate

effect.

In terms of Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 6(1) of Securities and Exchange

Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits& Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, the approval of the

Shareholders is sought by way of Special Resolution for the approval of the “Syschem India Limited

Employees Stock Option Scheme—2024” and issuance of shares under this Scheme.

Item no.8

The Company had already taken approval of the Related Party transactions under section 188 of

Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant provisions of the SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosures

requirements), 2015 in the previous Annual General Meeting held on 23rd of September, 2023 forthe

financial year 2024-25. However in view of ongoing transaction with the related parties, it is desirable

to increase the transaction limit and on the recommendations ofthe Audit Committee in its meeting

dated 1“ July, 2024, the Board of Directors of the company in its meeting held on 2nd July, 2024

approved the increase in transaction limit and details of the revised approved transaction limit are as

under

Name oftheParty

Pharmacare International

Original Maximum

Transaction Limit approved

500 Cr(Five hundred crores)

Revised Maximum

Transaction Limit

1000 Cr(One thousand crore‹

 

Retirement 

/Superannuation 

All Vested Options shall be exercisable by 

the Grantee in the upcoming exercise 

window from the last working day failing 

which all the Unexercised Options shall 

lapse irrevocably and the rights there 

under shall be extinguished 

All the Unvested Options would 

continue to vest in accordance 

with the respective vesting 

schedules even after the last 

working day. The Options upon 

getting vest would be exercisable 

during the exercise window as 

applicable in  case  of  vested  

options, failing to which all the 

unexercised options shall lapse 

irrevocably and the rights there 

under shall be extinguished 

Termination(not due to 
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compliance violations or 

like event) 

All Vested Options shall be exercisable by 

the Grantee in the upcoming exercise 

windowfromthelastworkingdayfailingwhic

halltheUnexercisedOptionsshalllapse 

irrevocably and the rights there under 

shall be Extinguished 

All Unvested Options, on the date 

of termination, shall expire and 

stand terminated with immediate 

effect. 

 
 
In terms of Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 6(1) of Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits & Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, the approval of the 

Shareholders is sought by way of Special Resolution for the approval of the “Syschem India Limited 

Employees Stock Option Scheme– 2024” and issuance of shares under this Scheme. 

 

Item no.8 

 

The Company had already taken approval of the Related Party transactions under section 188 of 

Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant provisions of the SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosures 

requirements), 2015 in the previous Annual General Meeting held on 23rd of September, 2023 for the 

financial year 2024-25. However in view of ongoing transaction with the related parties, it is desirable 

to increase the transaction limit and on the recommendations of the Audit Committee in its meeting 

dated 1st July, 2024, the Board of Directors of the company in its meeting held on 2nd July, 2024 

approved the increase in transaction limit and details of the revised approved transaction limit are as 

under 

 

Name of the Party Original Maximum 

Transaction Limit approved 

Revised Maximum 

Transaction Limit 

Pharmacare International 500 Cr(Five hundred crores)   1000 Cr(One thousand crores) 



Indosol Export from 50 Cr(Fifty crores)

in one or

more tranches

100 Cr(One hundred crores)

in one or more tranches

 in one or  

more tranches 

Indosol Export from 50 Cr(Fifty crores)   

 

100 Cr(One hundred crores) 

 in one or more tranches 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Annexure

Details of Director seeking appointment/re-appointment atthe Annual General Meeting

(Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015 and SS-2 on General Meeting)

Name oftheDirector

Date ofBirth and Age

Date ofAppointment

Qualifications

Expertise in Specific functional areas

No. of Board Meetings attended during the Financia

Year 2023-24

Remuneration last drawn

Relationship with any Director(s) and Key Manageria

Personnel of the Company

Directorship of other Companies ason 31
st
March,

2024

Chairmanship(s)/Membership(s) of Committees of

other Companies ason 31st March, 2024

Number ofShares held in the Company

Ranjan Jain

09.11.1966

13.01.2015

Graduate in Economics with Working

Experience inthe Pharma field for more than 22

Years.

Mr. Ranjan Jain, the Executive Managing

Director of theCompany having a degree in

Economics and has

over 22 years of experience in the Industry

and associated from 2011 in Syschem India

Limited, has spread headed the Company's

growth and diversification into its respective

business areas. He is deeply involved in the day

to day affairs of the Company and mainly in

Finance sector. He is part of shareholders

committee also, in the long duration with the

Company he has been in various leadership

positions including Whole Time Director,

Managing

Director.

11

27 Lakhs (Twenty Seven Lakhs)

Not Related

NIL

1, Member ofStakeholders Committee

34,80,386

 
 
 
 
Annexure 

Details of Director seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting 
(Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 and SS-2 on General Meeting) 
 

Name of the Director 
 

Ranjan Jain 
Date of Birth and Age 

 
09.11.1966 

Date of Appointment 
 

13.01.2015 

Qualifications Graduate in Economics with Working 
Experience inthe Pharma field for more than 22 
Years. 

Expertise in Specific functional areas Mr. Ranjan Jain, the Executive Managing 
Director of theCompany having a degree in 
Economics and has 
over 22 years of experience in the Industry 
and associated from 2011 in Syschem India 
Limited, has spread headed the Company`s 
growth and diversification into its respective 
business areas. He is deeply involved in the day 
to day affairs of the Company and mainly in 
Finance sector. He is part of shareholders 
committee also, in the long duration with the 
Company he has been in various leadership 
positions including Whole Time Director, 
Managing 
Director. 
 

No. of Board Meetings attended during the Financial 
Year 2023-24 

 

11 

Remuneration last drawn 27 Lakhs (Twenty Seven Lakhs) 

Relationship with any Director(s) and Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company 

 

Not Related 

Directorship of other Companies as on 31stMarch, 
2024 

 

NIL 

Chairmanship(s)/Membership(s) of Committees of 
other Companies as on 31st March, 2024 

 

 1, Member of Stakeholders Committee 

Number of Shares held in the Company 34,80,386 



For other details such as number ofshares held, number ofmeetings of the Board attended during the

year remuneration drawn in respect of the aforesaid Director; please refer to the Corporate

Governance Report.

 

 
For other details such as number of shares held, number of meetings of the Board attended during the 
year remuneration drawn in respect of the aforesaid Director; please refer to the Corporate 
Governance Report. 

  



Information of Directors seeking appointment/change in remuneration

Details of Mr. Vivek Trehan, DIN: DIN: 03140346, forappointment asthe Director of the Company

Particulars

Date of Birth

Age

Date ofAppointment

Qualification

Expertise in specific

Functional area/Brief Profile

Name oftheListed entity in which

he/she hold

Interest in the previous3 years.

Directorship in all other public

Companies except foreign companies

ndcompaniesunderSection8oftheCompan

Act,2013

Membership/ Chairman ofthe

Committees oftheBoard ofother public

limited

companies(Membership/Chairmanshipso

fonlyAuditCommitteesandstakeholdersR

elationshipCommittees in other public

Mr. Vivek Trehan

28.04.1961

62 years

2nd July, 2024

Member ofinstitute of Company Secretaries of
India.(Professional)

Having more than three decades of Professional

and 9 years of pre-qualification experience in

Secretarial, Legal and other allied fields. Have

gained rich experience in all secretarial matters,

legal fields, Board, Audit and Committee

Meetings, Corporate Governance,

Arrangements and mergers, Arbitration

matters, listing, Organizing meetings and

conferences, public issues and various others

allied fields. Have exhibited ability to quickly

assess and prioritize issue of importance to the

organizations and respond to needs effectively.

Demonstrated strong leaderships and team

building skills. Also have steered Secretarial and

Legal departments of many organizations

successfully. Having worked witha Central Govt.

Public Sector Undertaking as Company

Secretary and Legal Head, had liaison with

Union Ministers, Secretaries, Additional and

Joint Secretaries and other high profile

personnel of Central and State Govt., Public and

Private Sector.

NIL

NIL

NIL

Information of Directors seeking appointment/change in remuneration 

Details of Mr. Vivek Trehan, DIN: DIN: 03140346, for appointment as the Director of the Company 

Particulars Mr. Vivek Trehan 
Date of Birth 28.04.1961 

Age 62 years 

Date of Appointment 2nd July, 2024 
Qualification Member of institute of Company Secretaries  of 

India.(Professional) 

 
Expertise in specific 

Functional area/Brief Profile 

Having more than three decades of Professional 
and 9 years of pre-qualification experience in 
Secretarial, Legal and other allied fields. Have 
gained rich experience in all secretarial matters, 
legal fields, Board, Audit and Committee 
Meetings, Corporate Governance, 
Arrangements and mergers, Arbitration 
matters, listing, Organizing meetings and 
conferences, public issues and various others 
allied fields. Have exhibited ability to quickly 
assess and prioritize issue of importance to the 
organizations and respond to needs effectively. 
Demonstrated strong leaderships and team 
building skills. Also have steered Secretarial and 
Legal departments of many organizations 
successfully. Having worked with a Central Govt. 
Public Sector Undertaking as Company 
Secretary and Legal Head, had liaison with 
Union Ministers, Secretaries, Additional and 
Joint Secretaries and other high profile 
personnel of Central and State Govt., Public and 
Private Sector. 

 
Name of the Listed entity in which 

he/she hold 
Interest in the previous 3 years. 

NIL 

Directorship in all other public 

Companies except foreign companies 

andcompaniesunderSection8oftheCompanie
Act,2013 

NIL 

Membership/ Chairman of the 
Committees of the Board of other public 

limited 
companies(Membership/Chairmanshipso
fonlyAuditCommitteesandstakeholdersR

elationshipCommittees in other public 

NIL 



limited Companies have been

considered)

Number ofshares held in the Company

Shareholding of non-executive director

In the listed entity, including shareholdin

as

beneficial owner

Terms and Conditions of appointment

NumberofmeetingsoftheBoardattendedd

ingthefinanciaIyear2023-24

Sitting Fee proposed to be paid

Relationship with directors/Promoters

inter-se

NIL

NIL

As decided by the Board

As appointed with effect from2
nd July, 2024, So

NL

60000 P.A.

Not Related

limited Companies have been 
considered) 

Number of shares held in the Company NIL 

Shareholding of non-executive directors 

In the listed entity, including shareholding 

as 

beneficial owner 

NIL 

Terms and Conditions of appointment As decided by the Board 

NumberofmeetingsoftheBoardattendeddur
ingthefinancialyear2023-24 

As appointed with effect from 2nd July, 2024, So 

NIL 

Sitting Fee proposed to be paid 60000 P.A. 

Relationship with directors/Promoters 
inter-se 

Not Related 



Dear Members,

DIRECTORS' REPORT

TheDirectors have pleasure in presenting before you the 31st Annual Report together with the Audited

Accounts oftheCompany fortheyear ended 31“ March, 2024.

FINANCIAL RESULTS :-

The financial results of the Company fortheyear under review aresummarized foryour consideration:

Particulars

Gross Income(Operations)

Expenses

Profit/ Loss Before Interest and Depreciation

Interest

Depreciation

Exceptional Item

Net Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax

Provision for Tax

Deferred Tax

Net Profit/ (Loss) After Tax

2023-2024 2022-2023

(Amount inLakh) (Amount inLakh)

23347.69 13037.69

22953.39 12447.44

711.13 887.29

20.95 1.96

278.87 270.26

411.31

135.17

276.14

615.07

163.76

451.31

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS/ BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY'S WORKING

DURINGTHE YEAR/ HIGHLIGHTS/ OPERATIONS

During theyear under review, your Company registered total revenue of 23364.69 lakhs as compared tolast

year figure as 13062.51 Lakhs respectively. The net profit of the Company this year is Rs. 276.14 Lakhs as

compared to previous year where Company incurreda Profit of Rs451.31Lakhs due to management

optimistic approach Company is able to grow andconvert its losses into profits.

DIVIDEND :-

Your Directors have notrecommended any dividend inthe current financial year.

GENERAL RESERVE:

TheCompany hasnottransferred any amount toany reserves.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION

FUND

Theprovisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do notapply to the Company asthere were no

amounts due tobe transferred to the fund during the year under review.

DIRECTORS

Inaccordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company,

Mr. Ranjan Jain (DIN: 00635274), Managing Director of the Company retire by rotation in the ensuing

Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer himself forre-appointment. During thefinancial Year 2023-

24,there is no change intheBoard ofDirectors of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

Dear Members, 

 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting before you the 31st Annual Report together with the Audited 

Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS :- 

 

The financial results of the Company for the year under review are summarized for your consideration:  

 

Particulars 2023-2024 
(Amount in Lakh) 

2022-2023 
(Amount in Lakh) 

Gross Income(Operations) 23347.69 13037.69 

Expenses 22953.39 12447.44 

Profit / Loss Before Interest and Depreciation 711.13 887.29 

Interest 20.95 1.96 

Depreciation 278.87 270.26 

Exceptional Item 
 

 

Net Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 411.31 615.07 

Provision for Tax   
 

 

Deferred Tax 135.17 163.76 

Net Profit / (Loss) After Tax 276.14 451.31 

 

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS / BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S WORKING 

DURING THE YEAR / HIGHLIGHTS / OPERATIONS 

During the year under review, your Company registered total revenue of 23364.69 lakhs as compared to last 

year figure as 13062.51 Lakhs respectively. The net profit of the Company this year is Rs. 276.14 Lakhs as 

compared to previous year where Company incurred a Profit of Rs451.31Lakhs due to management 

optimistic approach Company is able to grow and convert its losses into profits. 

 

DIVIDEND :- 

 

Your Directors have not recommended any dividend in the current financial year. 

 

GENERAL RESERVE: 

 

The Company has not transferred any amount to any reserves. 

 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 

FUND 

 

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company as there were no 

amounts due to be transferred to the fund during the year under review. 

 

DIRECTORS 

 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, 

Mr. Ranjan Jain (DIN: 00635274), Managing Director of the Company retire by rotation in the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer himself for re-appointment. During the financial Year 2023-

24, there is no change in the Board of Directors of the Company.  

 



.The Company recently received the Letter of resignation from Ms. Neena Batra having DIN:07846399

dated27.06.2024. The Company took note of the same at the Board Meeting dated2nd July, 2024. The

Company appointed Mr. Vivek Trehan having DIN: 03140346 astheAdditional Non Executive Director of

the Company inthesame Board Meeting held on 02.07.2024.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

AllIndependent Directors of the Company have given declarations that they meet thecriteria of Independence

as laid down under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 16(b) of Securities and

Exchange Board ofIndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements), 2015.

The Independent Directors have confirmed thecompliance of relevant provisions of Rule6 oftheCompanies

s(Appointments and Qualifications of Director) Rule, 2014 asamended from time totime.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

TheKeyManagerial Personnel (KMP) intheCompany asperSection 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act,

2013 areasfollows:

Name

Mr.Ranjan Jain

Mr. Suninder Veer Singh

Ms. ShikhaKataria

Mr. Sanjeev Agrawal

SHARE CAPITAL

Designation

Managing Director

Whole Time Director

Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

The Authorized capital of the Company is Rs. 50,00,00,000 comprising of 4,80,00,000 equity shares of Rs.

10/- each and 2,00,00,000 preference shares of Rs. 1/- each. Issued, paid up and subscribed Share Capital of

the Company is Rs. 39,86,30,000 comprising of 3,98,63,000shares of Rs. 10/- each. During the year the

Company hasincreased the authorized share Capital asunder:

• From Rs.34,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Four Crore Only) divided into 3,20,00,000/- (Thirty Two

Crore only) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and 2,00,00,000/- Preference Shares of

Rs 1/- each to Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Crore only) divided into 4,80,00,000 equity shares of

Rs 10/- each and 2,00,00,000/- PreferenceSharesofRs.1/-each by approval of shareholders in the e-

voting through Postal Ballot dated 19" day of April, 2023.

• During the year Company hasallotted79,72,600 (Seventy Nine Lakhs Seventy Two Thousand Six

Hundred Only) Equityshares of Rs 10/-eachthrough right issue of shares ata price of Rs. 40 including

premium ofRs 30 andRs 10astheFace value.

- The Company hasnotbought back any ofits securities during the year under review.

- The Company hasnotissued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

- No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review.
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.The Company recently received the Letter of resignation from Ms. Neena Batra having DIN:07846399 

dated27.06.2024. The Company took note of the same at the Board Meeting dated 2nd July, 2024. The 

Company appointed Mr. Vivek Trehan having DIN: 03140346 as the Additional Non Executive Director of 

the Company in the same Board Meeting held on 02.07.2024. 

 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

All Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations that they meet the criteria of Independence 

as laid down under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 16(b) of Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements), 2015. 

 

The Independent Directors have confirmed the compliance of relevant provisions of Rule 6 of the Companies 

s(Appointments and Qualifications of Director) Rule, 2014 as amended from time to time. 

 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

The Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) in the Company as per Section 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 

2013 are as follows: 

 

Name Designation 

Mr. Ranjan Jain Managing Director 

Mr. Suninder Veer Singh Whole Time Director 

Ms. ShikhaKataria Company Secretary 

Mr. Sanjeev Agrawal Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 

 

The Authorized capital of the Company is Rs. 50,00,00,000 comprising of 4,80,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 

10/- each and 2,00,00,000 preference shares of Rs. 1/- each. Issued, paid up and subscribed Share Capital of 

the Company is Rs. 39,86,30,000 comprising of 3,98,63,000shares of Rs. 10/- each. During the year the 

Company has increased the authorized share Capital asunder: 

 

• From Rs. 34,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Four Crore Only) divided into 3,20,00,000/- (Thirty Two 

Crore only) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and 2,00,00,000/- Preference Shares of 

Rs 1/- each to Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Crore only) divided into 4,80,00,000 equity shares of 

Rs 10/- each and 2,00,00,000/- PreferenceSharesofRs.1/-each by approval of shareholders in the e-

voting through Postal Ballot dated 19th day of April, 2023. 

 

• During the year Company has allotted79,72,600 (Seventy Nine Lakhs Seventy Two Thousand Six 

Hundred Only) Equityshares of Rs 10/-eachthrough right issue of shares at a price of Rs. 40 including 

premium of Rs 30 and Rs 10 as the Face value. 

 

- The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review. 

- The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review. 

- No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company haszero tolerance policy in case of sexual harassment at workplace and is committed toprovidea

healthy environment to each and every employee of the Company. The Company hasinplace “Policy for

Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment” in line with the requirements of Sexual Harassment ofWomen

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the said Act’) and

Rules made there under. As per the provisions of Section4 of the said Act, the Board ofDirectors has constituted

the Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) at the Registered Office of the Company todeal with the Complaints

received by the Company pertaining to gender discrimination and sexual harassment at workplace.

Further, as per the provisions of Section 21& 22 of the aid Act, the Report in details of the number ofcases filed

under Sexual Harassment and their disposal for the financial year under review, is as under:

Sr. No No. of cases pending as on the

beginning of the financial year

under review

1. NIL

No. of complaints filed No. of cases pending as on

during the financial the end of the financial

year under review year under review

NIL NIL

EVENTS SUBSEOUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Resignation of Ms. Neena Batra from theBoard of Director with effect from dated27 June, 2024 due toher

personal engagement and appointment of Mr. Vivek Trehan as the additional Director of the Company with

effect from2nd July, 2024

The Company hasapproved theSyschem (India) Limited ESOP Scheme 2024 intheBoard Meeting dated

2‘d July, 2024.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAS OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE

FINANCIAL YEAR OFTHE COMPANY TO WHICH THEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE

AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

Thecompany hasinitiated the process of ESOP forwhich approval of the Board inthemeeting dated2nd July,

2024 is taken subject to the approval of Shareholder in the Annual General Meeting.

MAJORCHANGES HAPPENING DURINGTHE FINANCIAL YEAR

Your Directors wish toinform that there have notbeen any changes during the Financial Year under review:

a. In the nature of Company's business

b. Generally in the class of business in which theCompany hasaninterest.

LISTING WITHBSELIMITED

TheEquity Shares of the Company arelisted at BSE Limited and are being regularly traded on the Main

Board ofExchange.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE

EARNINGS & OUTGO

Therequisite information has been given by way of an Annexure D-1 tothis Report.

INSIDERTRADING
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OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 

Your Company has zero tolerance policy in case of sexual harassment at workplace and is committed to provide a 

healthy environment to each and every employee of the Company. The Company has in place “Policy for 

Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment” in line with the requirements of Sexual Harassment of Women 

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the said Act’) and 

Rules made there under. As per the provisions of Section 4 of the said Act, the Board of Directors has constituted 

the Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) at the Registered Office of the Company to deal with the Complaints 

received by the Company pertaining to gender discrimination and sexual harassment at workplace. 

 

Further, as per the provisions of Section 21& 22 of the aid Act, the Report in details of the number of cases filed 

under Sexual Harassment and their disposal for the financial year under review, is as under: 

 

Sr. No. No. of cases pending as on the 

beginning of the financial year 

under review 

No. of complaints filed 

during the financial 

year under review 

No. of cases pending as on 

the end of the financial 

year under review 
1. NIL NIL NIL 

 

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 

Resignation of Ms. Neena Batra from the Board of Director with effect from dated27 June, 2024 due to her 

personal engagement and appointment of Mr. Vivek Trehan as the additional Director of the Company with 

effect from 2nd July, 2024 

 

The Company has approved the Syschem (India) Limited ESOP Scheme 2024 in the Board Meeting dated 

2nd July, 2024. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 

POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAS OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE 

AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT: 

 

The company has initiated the process of ESOP for which approval of the Board in the meeting dated 2nd July, 

2024 is taken subject to the approval of Shareholder in the Annual General Meeting. 

 

MAJOR CHANGES HAPPENING DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

Your Directors wish to inform that there have not been any changes during the Financial Year under review: 

a. In the nature of Company’s business 

b. Generally in the class of business in which the Company has an interest.  

 

LISTING WITH BSE LIMITED 

 

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at BSE Limited and are being regularly traded on the Main 

Board of Exchange. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS & OUTGO 

 

The requisite information has been given by way of an Annexure D-1 to this Report.  

 

 

INSIDER TRADING 



TheBoard of Directors has adopted The Code ofConduct forPrevention of Insider Trading in accordance

with the requirements of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The Insider trading

policy of the Company lays down guidelines and procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while

dealing with shares of the Company, as well as the consequences of violation. Company has also

installedsoftware for PIT disclosures that records UPSI transactions from time totime.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance. As required under

Listing Regulations, 2015, Report on Corporate Governance is annexed herewith and formsa part of this

Annual Report. A Certificate from Mr. Kanwaljit Singh, a Practicing Company Secretary confirming

compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is also annexed with theAnnual Report.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITYREPORT

Regulation 34 (2) (f) the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the Company.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND POLICY ON REMUNERATION

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(e) and Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the

policy on appointment of Board members including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes,

independence ofa Director and the policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Management Personnel and

other employees is attached as Annexure D-2, which forms part of this report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion & Analysis Report fortheyear under review, as stipulated under PartB of Schedule

V to the Securities Exchange Board ofIndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

20l5is presented ina separate section as Annexure D-3 forming part of this Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/ KMP/ EMPLOYEES:-

Theinformation required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule5 of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, will be

provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act 2013, the Report and Accounts are

being sent to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees' particulars

which is available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during business

hours on working days of theCompany uptothedate of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Ifany Member

is interested in obtaininga copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company Secretary in this regard.

The details under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules5 (1) of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 aregiven as Annexure D-4.

HUMANRESOURCES

Syschem acknowledges the pivotal role its employees play asa key asset, understanding that investing in

them directly contributes to creating value for all stakeholders. With thecompany's expansion and execution

of new projects, recruitment receives significant attention, successfully attracting skilled professionals at

various levels.

The Management of Syschem is dedicated to fostering a supportive, nurturing and rewarding work

environment. They achieve this througha range of employee engagement programs, empowering individuals

to excel in their respective fields. Together, we strive to exceed expectations and makea positive impact in

the lives of our stakeholders.
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The Board of Directors has adopted The Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in accordance 

with the requirements of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The Insider trading 

policy of the Company lays down guidelines and procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while 

dealing with shares of the Company, as well as the consequences of violation. Company has also 

installedsoftware for PIT disclosures that records UPSI transactions from time to time. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance. As required under 

Listing Regulations, 2015, Report on Corporate Governance is annexed herewith and forms a part of this 

Annual Report. A Certificate from Mr. Kanwaljit Singh, a Practicing Company Secretary confirming 

compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is also annexed with the Annual Report. 

 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT 

 

Regulation 34 (2) (f) the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the Company.  

 

POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND POLICY ON REMUNERATION 

 

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(e) and Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

policy on appointment of Board members including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 

independence of a Director and the policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Management Personnel and 

other employees is attached as Annexure D-2, which forms part of this report. 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

Management Discussion & Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Part B of Schedule 

V to the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015is presented in a separate section as Annexure D-3 forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS / KMP / EMPLOYEES:- 

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, will be 

provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act 2013, the Report and Accounts are 

being sent to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees’ particulars 

which is available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during business 

hours on working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any Member 

is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company Secretary in this regard. 

The details under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5 (1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given as Annexure D-4. 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

Syschem acknowledges the pivotal role its employees play as a key asset, understanding that investing in 

them directly contributes to creating value for all stakeholders. With the company's expansion and execution 

of new projects, recruitment receives significant attention, successfully attracting skilled professionals at 

various levels. 

The Management of Syschem is dedicated to fostering a supportive, nurturing and rewarding work 

environment. They achieve this through a range of employee engagement programs, empowering individuals 

to excel in their respective fields. Together, we strive to exceed expectations and make a positive impact in 

the lives of our stakeholders. 



We are committed to maintaininga diverse, healthy and thriving workforce that imbibes our culture of

empowerment, innovation, safety and well being. Our associates playa key role in decision making and

providing impactful solutions in transformation of the organization.

The Human Resources department organizes training and development programs to continually enhance the

skills and knowledge oftheemployees, ensuring their growth and success within the organization.

NUMBEROFMEETINGS OF BOARD

During the year 2023-24, 12 (Twelve) Board Meetings were held including1 (One) Independent Directors

meeting asrequired under Schedule IV of Companies Act, 2013 and asperListing Regulations, 2015.

Date ofBoard Meeting

15-05-2023

01-06-2023

20-06-2023

04-07-2023

04-08-2023

04-09-2023

22-09-2023

02-11-2023

08-11-2023

22-11-2023

09-02-2024

11-03-2024

No. of Directors entitled

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

Attendance ofDirectors

4

4

5

4

4

5

4

4

5

4

4

5

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL

DIRECTORS

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board, in

consultation with its Nomination & Remuneration Committee, has formulateda framework containing, inter-

alia, the criteria for performance evaluation of the entire Board of the Company, its Committees and

Individual Directors, including Independent Directors. Accordingly, following is the criteria for evaluation:-

a. Criteria

ii.

iii.

iv.

V.

vi.

Criteria

vii.

viii.

ix.

X.

xi.

for evaluation of the Board ofDirectors asa whole:

The Frequency ofMeetings

Quantum ofAgenda

Administration of Meetings

Flow andquantity of Information from theManagement totheBoard

Number ofCommittees and their role.

Overall performance oftheCompany

forevaluation of the Individual Directors including Independent Directors;

Experience and ability to contribute to the decision making process

Problem solving approach and guidance to theManagement

Attendance and Participation in the Meetings

Personal competencies and contribution to strategy formulation

Contribution towards Statutory compliances, monitoring of controls and Corporate

Governance

The Independent Directors had met separately on 04.08.2023without the presence of Non-Independent

Directors and the members of management and discussed, inter-alia, the performance of non-Independent

Directors and Board asa whole and theperformance of the Chairman of the Company after taking into

consideration the views ofExecutive and Non-Executive Directors.
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We are committed to maintaining a diverse, healthy and thriving workforce that imbibes our culture of 

empowerment, innovation, safety and well being. Our associates play a key role in decision making and 

providing impactful solutions in transformation of the organization.  

The Human Resources department organizes training and development programs to continually enhance the 

skills and knowledge of the employees, ensuring their growth and success within the organization. 
 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD 

 

During the year 2023-24, 12 (Twelve) Board Meetings were held including 1 (One) Independent Directors 

meeting as required under Schedule IV  of Companies Act, 2013 and as per Listing Regulations, 2015.  

 

Date of Board Meeting No. of Directors entitled Attendance of Directors 

15-05-2023 5 4 

01-06-2023 5 4 

20-06-2023 5 5 

04-07-2023 5 4 

04-08-2023 5 4 

04-09-2023 5 5 

22-09-2023 5 4 

02-11-2023 5 4 

08-11-2023 5 5 

22-11-2023 5 4 

09-02-2024 5 4 

11-03-2024 5 5 

 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL 

DIRECTORS 

 

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board, in 

consultation with its Nomination & Remuneration Committee, has formulated a framework containing, inter-

alia, the criteria for performance evaluation of the entire Board of the Company, its Committees and 

Individual Directors, including Independent Directors. Accordingly, following is the criteria for evaluation:- 

 

a. Criteria for evaluation of the Board of Directors as a whole: 

i. The Frequency of Meetings 

ii. Quantum of Agenda  

iii. Administration of Meetings 

iv. Flow and quantity of Information from the Management to the Board 

v. Number of Committees and their role.  

vi. Overall performance of the Company 

Criteria for evaluation of the Individual Directors including Independent Directors;  

vii. Experience and ability to contribute to the decision making process 

viii. Problem solving approach and guidance to the Management 

ix. Attendance and Participation in the Meetings 

x. Personal competencies and contribution to strategy formulation 

xi. Contribution towards Statutory compliances, monitoring of controls and Corporate 

Governance 

The Independent Directors had met separately on 04.08.2023without the presence of Non-Independent 

Directors and the members of management and discussed, inter-alia, the performance of non-Independent 

Directors and Board as a whole and the performance of the Chairman of the Company after taking into 

consideration the views of Executive and Non-Executive Directors.  



The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also carried out evaluation of every Director's

performance. The performance evaluation of all the Independent Directors have been done by the entire

Board, excluding the Director being evaluated. On the basis of performance evaluation done by theBoard, it

shall be determined whether to extend or continue their term of appointment, whenever therespective term

expires. The Directors express their satisfaction with theevaluation process.

STATUTORYAUDITORS & AUDITORS REPORT:-

M/sS TA V & Co,Chartered Accountants (Firm registration No: 024510C), who was appointed as Statutory

Auditors of the Company inthelast Annual General Meeting to hold office till the conclusion of Annual

General Meeting tobe held inthe year 2025.

The Companies Amendment Act, 2017 (Vide Notification dated7th May, 2018 issued by the Ministry of

CorporateAffairs) has dispensed with the requirement of ratification of Auditor's appointment by the

shareholders every year.Hence, the resolution relating to ratification of Auditor's appointment is not included

in the Notice of theensuingAnnual General Meeting.

The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualifications/reservation or adverse remarks. Notes to accounts

are self-explanatory and form an integral part of Financial Statements.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND THEIRREPORT

Mr.Kanwaljit Singh,a Company Secretary in practice having Membership No. 5901,was appointed as

Secretarial Auditor of the Company fortheFinancial Year 2023-24 pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies

Act, 2013. The Secretarial Audit Report submitted by him in the prescribed form MR- 3 is attached as

Annexure D-5 and forms part of this report.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the Secretarial Auditors in the Report issuedon

04"July,2024which were duly complied.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS

There are no frauds reported by Auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 including those which are

reportable to the Central Government.

DISCLOSURE ABOUT COSTAUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Notifications/Circulars issued

by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time and as per the recommendation of the Audit

Committee, the Board of Directors at their meeting dated2nd July, 2024, appointed M/s.Mohit Aggrawal

Associates, Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditors of the Company forthefinancial year 2024-2025. The

remuneration proposed to be paid to the Cost Auditor, subject to the ratification by the members at the

ensuing AGM, would not be exceeding Rs. 45,000/- (Rupees FortyThousandOnly) plus out of pocket

expenses, ifany.The Company is maintaining all Cost Audit Records and there is No Audit Qualifications.
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also carried out evaluation of every Director`s 

performance.  The performance evaluation of all the Independent Directors have been done by the entire 

Board, excluding the Director being evaluated. On the basis of performance evaluation done by the Board, it 

shall be determined whether to extend or continue their term of appointment, whenever the respective term 

expires. The Directors express their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITORS REPORT:- 

 
M/s S TA V & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm registration No: 024510C), who was appointed as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company in the last Annual General Meeting to hold office till the conclusion of Annual 
General Meeting to be held in the year 2025. 
 

The Companies Amendment Act, 2017 (Vide Notification dated 7th May, 2018 issued by the Ministry of 

CorporateAffairs) has dispensed with the requirement of ratification of Auditor’s appointment by the 

shareholders every year.Hence, the resolution relating to ratification of Auditor’s appointment is not included 

in the Notice of the ensuingAnnual General Meeting. 

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualifications/reservation or adverse remarks. Notes to accounts 

are self-explanatory and form an integral part of Financial Statements. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT 

 

Mr. Kanwaljit Singh, a Company Secretary in practice having Membership No. 5901,was appointed as 

Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. The Secretarial Audit Report submitted by him in the prescribed form MR- 3 is attached as 

Annexure D-5 and forms part of this report.  

 

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the Secretarial Auditors in the Report issuedon 

04thJuly,2024which were duly complied. 

 

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS 

 

There are no frauds reported by Auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 including those which are 

reportable to the Central Government. 

 

DISCLOSURE ABOUT COST AUDIT 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Notifications/Circulars issued 

by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time and as per the recommendation of the Audit 

Committee, the Board of Directors at their meeting dated 2nd July, 2024, appointed M/s.Mohit Aggrawal 

Associates, Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2024-2025. The 

remuneration proposed to be paid to the Cost Auditor, subject to the ratification by the members at the 

ensuing AGM, would not be exceeding Rs. 45,000/- (Rupees FortyThousandOnly) plus out of pocket 

expenses, if any.The Company is maintaining all Cost Audit Records and there is No Audit Qualifications. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ESOP ISSUANCE

During the Financial Year 2023-24, Our Company hasnot adopted any ESOP Schemeand also no options

were issued. However during Financial Year 2024-25, the company is in the process of implementation of

ESOP Scheme, subject to the approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidation of financial statement in terms of Rule6 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not

applicable as Company does not have any subsidiary or associates.

BOARDEVALUATION

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and

DisclosureRequirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carriedout an annual evaluation of its own

performance, of the Directors as well as the evaluation ofthe working ofits committees.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has defined the evaluation criteria for the Board, its Committees

and Directors.

The Board's functioning was evaluated on various aspects, including inter alia degree of fulfillment of key

responsibilities, Board structure, composition, establishment and delineation of responsibilities to various

Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning.

Directors were evaluated on aspects such as attendance and contribution at Board/Committee Meetings

andguidance/support to the management outside Board/Committee Meetings. In addition, the Chairman was

alsoevaluated on key aspects of his role, including setting the strategic agenda of the Board, encouraging

activeengagement by all Board members.

Areas on which theCommittees oftheBoard were assessed included degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities,

adequacy ofCommittee composition and effectiveness of meetings.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding

theDirector being evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and theNon-Independent Directorswas

carried out by the Independent Directors who also reviewed the performance of the Board asa whole.

TheNomination and Remuneration Committee also reviewed theperformance of theBoard, its committees and of

theDirectors.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

TheCompany engages invarious operational transactions, including anticipated sales, purchases, and borrowings

that are denominated in foreign currencies. As a result, we are exposed to exchange rate fluctuations. Although

we don't havea significant currency risk as we're an export driven company, however, these fluctuations can

have an impact on our financial results and overall performance, and therefore, managing these exposures is

crucial to mitigate any potential risks and uncertainties associated with currency fluctuations.

To manage therisks arising from currency, our Company hasimplemented robust risk management policies,

namely the Foreign Exchange Risk Management Policy and the Commodity Risk Management Policy. By

adhering to these policies, we actively engage in hedging activities to mitigate the potential impacts of adverse

movements inforeign exchange rates and commodity prices.

Througha systematic and well-structured approach, we aim to safeguard our financial position and ensure

stability and predictability in our operations.
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ESOP ISSUANCE 
 

During the Financial Year 2023-24, Our Company hasnot adopted any ESOP Schemeand also no options 

were issued. However during Financial Year 2024-25, the company is in the process of implementation of 

ESOP Scheme, subject to the approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. 
 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Consolidation of financial statement in terms of Rule 6 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not 

applicable as Company does not have any subsidiary or associates. 

 

BOARD EVALUATION 
 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

DisclosureRequirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carriedout an annual evaluation of its own 

performance, of the Directors as well as the evaluation ofthe working of its committees. 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has defined the evaluation criteria for the Board, its Committees 

and Directors.  

 

The Board’s functioning was evaluated on various aspects, including inter alia degree of fulfillment of key 

responsibilities, Board structure, composition, establishment and delineation of responsibilities to various 

Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning. 
 

Directors were evaluated on aspects such as attendance and contribution at Board/Committee Meetings 

andguidance/support to the management outside Board/Committee Meetings. In addition, the Chairman was 

alsoevaluated on key aspects of his role, including setting the strategic agenda of the Board, encouraging 

activeengagement by all Board members. 

 

Areas on which the Committees of the Board were assessed included degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities, 

adequacy of Committee composition and effectiveness of meetings. 

 

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding 

theDirector being evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directorswas 

carried out by the Independent Directors who also reviewed the performance of the Board as a whole. 

TheNomination and Remuneration Committee also reviewed the performance of the Board, its committees and of 

theDirectors. 
 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK 

 

The Company engages in various operational transactions, including anticipated sales, purchases, and borrowings 

that are denominated in foreign currencies. As a result, we are exposed to exchange rate fluctuations. Although 

we don’t have a significant currency risk as we’re an export driven company, however, these fluctuations can 

have an impact on our financial results and overall performance, and therefore, managing these exposures is 

crucial to mitigate any potential risks and uncertainties associated with currency fluctuations. 

 

To manage the risks arising from currency, our Company has implemented robust risk management policies, 

namely the Foreign Exchange Risk Management Policy and the Commodity Risk Management Policy. By 

adhering to these policies, we actively engage in hedging activities to mitigate the potential impacts of adverse 

movements in foreign exchange rates and commodity prices. 

 

Through a systematic and well-structured approach, we aim to safeguard our financial position and ensure 

stability and predictability in our operations. 

 

 

 



SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

TheCompany has complied with the provisions ofsecretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board

ofDirectors (SS-1) and on General Meetings (SS-2).

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIRADEQUACY

Asrequired pursuant to provisions of section 134(1) (e) of the Act, the Company hasa well placed, proper

and adequate internal financial control system, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its

operations. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is well defined in the Organization. The

internal financial control system ensures that all assets are safeguarded and protected and that the transactions

are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. Ms. Anju, continues to be the Internal Auditor of the

Company.

DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATIONOF RISKMANAGEMENT

TheCompany hasinplace comprehensive risk assessment and minimization procedures, which arereviewed

by the Board periodically. The Board of Directors with responsibility of preparation of Risk Management

Policy, reviewing and monitoring the same on regular basis, to identify and review critical risks on regular

basis The risks faced by the Company andtheir minimization procedures are assessed by the Board. Further,

the Company identifies risks, and control systems are instituted to ensure that the risks in each business

process are mitigated. The Board provides oversight and reviews the Risk Management Policy ona regular

basis. In the opinion of the Board there has been no identification of elements of risk that may threaten the

existence of the Company.

DETAILS OF THE PERFORMANCE OF THE SUBSIDIARY/ ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURE

TheCompany does not have any Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/ Associate Companies. Hence, the provisions

regarding incorporation ofa separate segment fordisclosure of the financial positions and performance of the

Subsidiary, Associate and Joint Venture companies is not applicable to the Company

DEPOSITS

TheCompany hasneither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the Financial Year 2023-24 interms of

Chapter V of theCompanies Act, 2013. Information in this regard, therefore, is NIL.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR

TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERNS STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS

INFUTURE

TheCompany hasnotreceived any significant or material orders passed by any Regulatory Authority, Court

or Tribunal which shall impact thegoing concern status and Company's operations in future.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

TheDirectors wish to inform that in Compliance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Regulation 18 of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 and Audit Committee has been duly constituted. The Audit Committee as on March 31,

2024 comprises of the following Independent Directors:

Ms. Arshdeep Kaur

Mrs. Renu Rawat

Mrs. Neena Batra

Independent Director, Chairman

Non Executive, Independent Director

Non-Executive - Non Independent Director
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SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
 
The Company has complied with the provisions ofSecretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board 
ofDirectors (SS-1) and on General Meetings (SS-2). 
 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY  

 

As required pursuant to provisions of section 134(1) (e) of the Act, the Company has a well placed, proper 

and adequate internal financial control system, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 

operations. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is well defined in the Organization. The 

internal financial control system ensures that all assets are safeguarded and protected and that the transactions 

are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. Ms. Anju, continues to be the Internal Auditor of the 

Company. 

 

DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The Company has in place comprehensive risk assessment and minimization procedures, which are reviewed 

by the Board periodically. The Board of Directors with responsibility of preparation of Risk Management 

Policy, reviewing and monitoring the same on regular basis, to identify and review critical risks on regular 

basis The risks faced by the Company and their minimization procedures are assessed by the Board. Further, 

the Company identifies risks, and control systems are instituted to ensure that the risks in each business 

process are mitigated. The Board provides oversight and reviews the Risk Management Policy on a regular 

basis. In the opinion of the Board there has been no identification of elements of risk that may threaten the 

existence of the Company. 

 

DETAILS OF THE PERFORMANCE OF THE SUBSIDIARY/ ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURE 

 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/ Associate Companies. Hence, the provisions 

regarding incorporation of a separate segment for disclosure of the financial positions and performance of the 

Subsidiary, Associate and Joint Venture companies is not applicable to the Company 

 

DEPOSITS 

 

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the Financial Year 2023-24 in terms of 

Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013. Information in this regard, therefore, is NIL. 

 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERNS STATUS AND COMPANY`S OPERATIONS 

IN FUTURE 

 

The Company has not received any significant or material orders passed by any Regulatory Authority, Court 

or Tribunal which shall impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

The Directors wish to inform that in Compliance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 18 of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and Audit Committee has been duly constituted. The Audit Committee as on March 31, 

2024 comprises of the following Independent Directors: 

 

Ms. Arshdeep Kaur Independent Director, Chairman 

Mrs. Renu Rawat Non Executive, Independent Director 

Mrs. Neena Batra Non-Executive - Non Independent Director 
 



Details of the Audit Committee have been separately given inthe Corporate Governance report. Further, all

recommendations ofAudit Committee were accepted by the Board ofDirectors.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Interms of Regulation 19 of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Nomination & Remuneration Committee ason March 31,2024 comprises of the following Directors:

Mrs. Renu Rawat

Ms. Arshdeep Kaur

Ms. Neena Batra

Independent Director, Chairman

Non-executive, Independent Director

Non- Executive- Non Independent Director

The details of Remuneration Policy and the Committee arefurnished in the Report on Corporate Governance,

which is annexed herewith.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Interms of Regulation 20 of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company hasconstituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee with

following composition as on March 31,2024 :-

Ms. Arshdeep Kaur

Mr. Ranjan Jain

Mr. Suninder veer Singh

Non-Executive- Independent Director

Executive Director

Executive Director

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITYCOMMITTEE

Aspersection 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and relevant regulation of SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure requirement), 2015, the Company is required to constitute the Corporate Social Responsibility

Committeeas during the previous year ended 31" March, 2023 the Company earneda profit of more than

Rs.5.00 Cr. So, the Company is required to constitute CSR Committee. The Corporate Social Responsibility

Committee ason March 31st,2024 Compromised of:

Mrs. Renu Rawat

Ms. Arshdeep Kaur

Mrs. Neena Batra

Independent Director, Chairman

Non-Executive - Independent Director

Non-Executive - Non Independent Director

The details of amount tobe spent on CSR are furnished in the Report on Corporate Social Responsibility.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to section 134(3) of the Act, the Annual Return referred to in section 92(3) of the Act read with

Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return for the

Financial year ended March 31, 2024 is available on the Company's website at

https://syschem.in/investors RESOURCES.html

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186OF THE

COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 particulars of loans, guarantees or investments

under Section 186 of the Act as at end of the Financial Year 2023-24the Company had extended the

Guarantee given against the loan taken by the Pharmacare International for an amount of 50 Crores from 35

Cr subject to the approval from theshareholders in the extra ordinary general meeting held on9'h April, 2022.
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Details of the Audit Committee have been separately given in the Corporate Governance report. Further, all 

recommendations of Audit Committee were accepted by the Board of Directors. 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE  

 

In terms of Regulation 19 of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee as on March 31, 2024 comprises of the following Directors: 

 

Mrs. Renu Rawat Independent Director, Chairman 

Ms. Arshdeep Kaur Non-executive, Independent Director 

Ms. Neena Batra Non- Executive- Non Independent Director 
 

The details of Remuneration Policy and the Committee are furnished in the Report on Corporate Governance, 

which is annexed herewith. 

 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE  

 

In terms of Regulation 20 of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee with 

following composition as on March 31, 2024 :- 

 

Ms. Arshdeep Kaur Non-Executive- Independent Director 
Mr. Ranjan Jain Executive Director 
Mr. Suninder veer Singh  Executive Director 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

 

As per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and relevant regulation of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure requirement), 2015, the Company is required to constitute the Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committeeas during the previous year ended 31st March, 2023 the Company earned a profit of more than 

Rs.5.00 Cr. So, the Company is required to constitute CSR Committee.  The Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee as on March 31st, 2024 Compromised of: 

 

Mrs. Renu Rawat Independent Director, Chairman 

Ms. Arshdeep Kaur Non-Executive - Independent Director 

Mrs. Neena Batra Non-Executive - Non Independent Director 

 

The details of amount to be spent on CSR are furnished in the Report on Corporate Social Responsibility. 

 

ANNUAL RETURN 

 

 Pursuant to  section 134(3) of the Act, the Annual Return referred to  in section 92(3) of the Act read with 

Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return for the 

Financial year ended  March 31, 2024 is available on the Company`s website at 

https://syschem.in/investors_RESOURCES.html 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 particulars of loans, guarantees or investments 

under Section 186 of the Act as at end of the Financial Year 2023-24the Company had extended the 

Guarantee given against the loan taken by the Pharmacare International for an amount of 50 Crores from 35 

Cr subject to the approval from the shareholders in the extra ordinary general meeting held on 9th April, 2022. 

https://syschem.in/investors_RESOURCES.html


CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES UNDER SECTION 188(1) OF

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

With reference to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, all contracts and arrangements with related

parties under Section 188(1) of the Act, entered by the Company during the financial year, were in the

ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis. Hence, provisions of Section 188 (1) are not

applicable. However, as these transactions were inthe ordinary course of business and on an arm's length

basis, in the opinion of the Board these transactions are justified to be executed. The detail of these

transactions is given inAnnexure D-7, which forms part of this report.

During the year, the Company hadnotentered into any contract or arrangement with related parties which

could be considered ‘material’ according to the policy of the Company on Materiality of Related Party

Transactions. Your attention is also drawn to the Related Party disclosures set out in Note no. 16 of the

Financial Statements.

VIGIL MECHANISM

TheCompany hasestablisheda Vigil Mechanism cum Whistle Blower Policy in terms of Section 177 (10) of

the Companies Act, 2013 and also in terms of listing regulations, 2015. The details of the said Vigil

Mechanism cum Whistle Blower Policy are given in the Corporate Governance Section, which is annexed

herewith. The Vigil Mechanism cum Whistle Blower Policy is also available on the Company's website

https:I/syschem.in/investors_RESOURCES.html

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITYSTATEMENT

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed

along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to givea true and fair view ofthestate

of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the Profit and Loss of theCompany

forthat period;

(c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting

records in accordance with theprovisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and

forpreventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts ona going concern basis;

(e) the Directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company andthat such

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

(f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Theinformation required pursuant to section 197(12) read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 pertaining to the top ten employees in terms of

remuneration drawn and their other particulars, also form part of this Report. However, theReport and the

financial statements are being sent to the members excluding the aforesaid annexure. In terms of Section 136

of the Act, the said annexure is open for inspection at the 6 Registered Offices of the Company. Any

shareholder interested in obtaininga copy ofthesame may write to the Company Secretary.

HEALTHAND SAFETY

Thecompany continues to accord high priority to health and safety of employees at all the locations.

During the year the company review and enjoyed cordial relationship with workers and employees at all

levels.
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CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES UNDER SECTION 188(1) OF 
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(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed 

along with proper explanation relating to material departures;  

(b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 

of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the Profit and Loss of the Company 

for that period;  

(c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 

for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  

(d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  

(e) the Directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.  

(f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 

The information required pursuant to section 197(12) read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 pertaining to the top ten employees in terms of 

remuneration drawn and their other particulars, also form part of this Report. However, the Report and the 
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shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary. 

 

HEALTH AND SAFETY 
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During the year the company review and enjoyed cordial relationship with workers and employees at all 

levels. 



COMPLIANCE WITH SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING

OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REOUIRENMENTS), 2015

The Company hasdevised proper systems to ensure compliance of all laws applicable to the Company and

the compliance reports issued by the Departmental Heads are placed before the Board everyQuarter

confirming compliance by theCompany with all applicable Laws.

GREEN INITIATIVES

As part of the Green Initiative, we propose to send documents such as Notices of General Meeting(s), Annual

Reports and other shareholders communications fortheyear ended 31st March 2023 inelectronic form, to the

email addresses provided by you and/or made available to the Company by theDepositories.A copy ofannual

report shall be available on the website of the Company and forinspection at the registered office of the

Company, during office hours. In case any member wishes to getAnnual Report and other communication in

physical form, he may write to the company andthesame will be provided free of cost.

Electronic copies of the Annual Report 2023-24 and Notice of the Syschem (India) Limited dated2nd July,

2024 forAnnual General Meeting would be sent to all members whose email addresses are registered with the

Company/Depository Participant(s). For members who have not registered their email addresses, physical

copies of the same would be sent in the permitted mode.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARDAND GENERAL MEETING

During the Financial year, your Company hascomplied with applicable standards issued by the Institute of

Company Secretaries of India.

CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

Inaccordance with Regulation 17 (8) read with PartB of Schedule V tothe Securities and Exchange Board of

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the CFO have submitted

necessary certificate to the Board ofDirectors stating the particulars specified under the said Regulation. The

Certificate has been reviewed by theAudit Committee and taken on record by the Board ofDirectors.

DEMATERIALIZATIONOF SHARES

As mentioned in Company's earlier Annual Reports, the Company's Equity Shares are in compulsory

Dematmode interms of SEBI Guidelines. This has been facilitated through arrangement with NSDL and

CDSL. About 99.24 % of the shares of the Company arealready in dematerialized form. M/s Beetal Financial

& Computer Services Pvt. Limited, New Delhi is acting as the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents forthis

purpose and acts as common share agency interms of SEBI Guidelines.

TRANSFEROF AMOUNTS TOINVESTOREDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Your Company didnothave any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed fora period of seven years. Therefore there

were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE INSOLVENCY

AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC)

No Insolvency resolution process has been initiated/ filed by a financial or operational creditor or by the

Company it under theIBC before the NCLT.
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COMPLIANCE WITH SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING 

OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIRENMENTS), 2015 

 

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance of all laws applicable to the Company and 

the compliance reports issued by the Departmental Heads are placed before the Board everyQuarter 

confirming compliance by the Company with all applicable Laws.   

 

GREEN INITIATIVES 
 

As part of the Green Initiative, we propose to send documents such as Notices of General Meeting(s), Annual 

Reports and other shareholders communications for the year ended 31st March 2023 in electronic form, to the 

email addresses provided by you and/or made available to the Company by the Depositories.A copy of annual 

report shall be available on the website of the Company and for inspection at the registered office of the 

Company, during office hours. In case any member wishes to get Annual Report and other communication in 

physical form, he may write to the company and the same will be provided free of cost. 

Electronic copies of the Annual Report 2023-24 and Notice of the Syschem (India) Limited dated 2nd July , 

2024 for Annual General Meeting would be sent to all members whose email addresses are registered with the 

Company/Depository Participant(s). For members who have not registered their email addresses, physical 

copies of the same would be sent in the permitted mode.   

 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL MEETING 

 

During the Financial year, your Company has complied with applicable standards issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India. 

 

CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION 

 

In accordance with Regulation 17 (8) read with Part B of Schedule V to the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the CFO have submitted 

necessary certificate to the Board of Directors stating the particulars specified under the said Regulation. The 

Certificate has been reviewed by the Audit Committee and taken on record by the Board of Directors.  

 

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES 

 

As mentioned in Company’s earlier Annual Reports, the Company’s Equity Shares are in compulsory 

Dematmode in terms of SEBI Guidelines. This has been facilitated through arrangement with NSDL and 

CDSL. About 99.24 % of the shares of the Company are already in dematerialized form. M/s Beetal Financial 

& Computer Services Pvt. Limited, New Delhi is acting as the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents for this 

purpose and acts as common share agency in terms of SEBI Guidelines.  

 

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND  

 

Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore there 

were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).  

 

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE INSOLVENCY 

AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC) 

 

No Insolvency resolution process has been initiated/ filed by a financial or operational creditor or by the 

Company it under the IBC before the NCLT. 

 

 

 



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Corporate Social Responsibility is applicable on the Company aspersection 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and

other relevant provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements), 2015, our Company

profitability of last3 years is in negatives (details of which provided in theD-6) as attached which forms part

of the Board Report. The Company hasformulated the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and the

details provided intheBoard report as well as in the annexure as attached. However theCompany's losses are

converting into profitability and soon, our company will adopt theproject as per the applicable law.

OTHERDISCLOSURES

• TheCompany does not have any scheme ofprovision of money forthepurchase of its own shares by

employees orby trustees for the benefit of employees intheFinancial Year 2023-24.

• Neither the Managing Directors nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company have received any

remuneration or commission from any ofits subsidiaries.

• No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee ortheBoard.

• Neither application was made noris any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy

Code, 2016 inthefinancial year 2023-24.

• No settlements have been done with banks or financial institutions.
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Governments and local authorities for their continued co-operation and support.

They also would like to place on record their sincere appreciation for the commitment, hard work, and high

engagement level of every employee oftheCompany.

The Directors would also like to thank various stakeholders of the Company including customers, dealers,

suppliers, lenders, transporters, advisors, local community, etc. for their continued committed engagement

with the Company.

The Directors would also like to thank the shareholders of the Company fortheir confidence and trust

reposed in the management team oftheCompany.

For & On Behalf oftheBoard

(Ranjan Jain)

Managing Director

(DIN 00635274)

PLACE: CHANDIGARH

Date:2"d July, 2024

For& On Behalf ofthe Board
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Whole Time Director
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

 

Corporate Social Responsibility is applicable on the Company as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and 

other relevant provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements), 2015, our Company 

profitability of last 3 years is in negatives (details of which provided in theD-6) as attached which forms part 

of the Board Report. The Company has formulated the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and the 

details provided in the Board report as well as in the annexure as attached. However the Company`s losses are 

converting into profitability and soon, our company will adopt the project as per the applicable law. 

 

OTHER DISCLOSURES  

 

• The Company does not have any scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by 

employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees in the Financial Year 2023-24. 

• Neither the Managing Directors nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company have received any 

remuneration or commission from any of its subsidiaries. 

• No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board. 

• Neither application was made nor is any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 

Code, 2016 in the financial year 2023-24. 

• No settlements have been done with banks or financial institutions. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND APPRECIATION 
 
The Directors take this opportunity to express their deep sense of gratitude to its Central and State 
Governments and local authorities for their continued co-operation and support.  
 
They also would like to place on record their sincere appreciation for the commitment, hard work, and high 
engagement level of every employee of the Company. 
 
The Directors would also like to thank various stakeholders of the Company including customers, dealers, 
suppliers, lenders, transporters, advisors, local community, etc. for their continued committed engagement 
with the Company.  
 
The Directors would also like to thank the shareholders of the Company for their confidence and trust 
reposed in the management team of the Company. 
 

For & On Behalf of the Board   For& On Behalf of the Board 

(Ranjan Jain)      (Suninder Veer Singh) 
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(DIN 00635274)      (DIN 07693557) 
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Information under section 134(3)fm) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule8 of the Companies

Act(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors Report forthe year endine 31" March.

2024.

ANNEXURE D-1TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT:-

A. Conservation ofEnergy

• Though energy does not form a significant portion of the cost for the

Company yet wherever possible and feasible, continuous efforts are being

put forconservation of energy and minimize power cost. The Energy conservation measures

include replacement of incandescent lights with low power consuming LED lights and

compact Fluorescent Lights, replacement of old electrical units with new energy efficient

units. Staff of the Company is regularly educated about conservation of power.

• Up-gradation of technology, modernization of plants/ training and motivation of employees

towards energy conservation. How ever

• There is no capital investment on energy conservation equipments during the year.

B. Technology Absorption

The Company continues to absorb and upgrade modern technologies in its operations and back end

support functions like Accounts, Human Resource Management, Operations and Compliance

functions.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

The Foreign Exchange inward and outward remittances during the Financial Year areasunder:-

Inward Remittance : 90230 USD

Outward Remittance : 553000 USD
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Information under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with  rule 8 of the Companies 

Act(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming  part of the Directors Report for the year ending 31st March, 

2024. 

 

ANNEXURE D-1 TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT:- 

 

A.      Conservation of Energy :  

 

• Though energy does not form a significant portion of the cost for the  

Company yet wherever possible and feasible, continuous efforts are being  

put for conservation of energy and minimize power cost. The Energy conservation measures 

include replacement of incandescent lights with low power consuming LED lights and 

compact Fluorescent Lights, replacement of old electrical units with new energy efficient 

units. Staff of the Company is regularly educated about conservation of power.  

• Up-gradation of technology, modernization of plants/ training and motivation of employees 

towards energy conservation. How ever  

• There is no capital investment on energy conservation equipments during the year. 

 

B. Technology Absorption :  

 

The Company continues to absorb and upgrade modern technologies in its operations and back end 

support functions like Accounts, Human Resource Management, Operations and Compliance 

functions.  

 

C.        Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:  

 

The Foreign Exchange inward and outward remittances during the Financial Year are as under:- 

 

 Inward Remittance : 90230 USD 

 Outward Remittance : 553000 USD 

 

  



ANNEXURE D-2TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the

Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Listing Regulations, 2015, as amended

from time to time. This policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and

Senior Management has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC orthe

Committee) and has been approved by theBoard ofDirectors.

Definitions:

“Remuneration” means any money orits equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by

him and includes perquisites as defined under theIncome-Tax Act, 1961;

“Key Managerial Personnel” means:

i) Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and intheir absence,a Whole-time

Director;

ChiefFinancial Officer;

Company Secretary;

such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Senior Managerial Personnel” mean thepersonnel of the Company who aremembers ofits core management

team excluding Board of Directors. Normally, this would comprise all members of management, of rank

equivalent to General Manager and above, including all functional heads.

Objective:

The objective of the policy is to ensure that

• The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate

Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

• Relationship of remuneration toperformance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

• Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involvesa balance between

fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of

theCompany andits goals.

ROLEOFTHE COMMITTEE:

Therole of the NRC will be the following:

• To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence ofa Director.

• To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

• To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior

Management inaccordance with the criteria laid down inthis policy.

• To carry out evaluation of Director's performance.

• To recommend totheBoard theappointment and removal ofDirectors and Senior Management.

• To recommend totheBoard policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and

Senior Management.

• To devisea policy on Board diversity, composition, size.

• Succession planning forreplacing Key Executives and overseeing.

• To carry out any other function as is mandated by theBoard from time to time and/ or enforced by any

statutory notification, amendment ormodification, as may be applicable.

1414 
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

 
This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Listing Regulations, 2015, as amended 

from time to time. This policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 

Senior Management has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC or the 

Committee) and has been approved by the Board of Directors.  

 

Definitions:  

 

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by 

him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-Tax Act, 1961;  

“Key Managerial Personnel” means:  

i) Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-time 

Director; 

ii) Chief Financial Officer;  

iii) Company Secretary;  

iv) such other officer as may be prescribed.  

“Senior Managerial Personnel” mean the personnel of the Company who are members of its core management 

team excluding Board of Directors. Normally, this would comprise all members of management, of rank 

equivalent to General Manager and above, including all functional heads.  

 

Objective:  

 

The objective of the policy is to ensure that  

• The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 

Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;  

• Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and  

• Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between 

fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of 

the Company and its goals.  

 

ROLEOF THE COMMITTEE : 

 

The role of the NRC will be the following: 

 

• To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director.  

• To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.  

• To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 

Management in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy.  

• To carry out evaluation of Director’s performance.  

• To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management.  

• To recommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 

Senior Management.  

• To devise a policy on Board diversity, composition, size.  

• Succession planning for replacing Key Executives and overseeing.  

• To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any 

statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.  



• To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND

SENIORMANAGEMENT

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the

person for appointment as Director, Key Management Personnel or at Senior Management level and

recommend his/ herappointment, as per Company's Policy.

b)A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is

considered for appointment. The Committee has authority to decide whether qualification, expertise and

experience possessed bya person is sufficient/ satisfactory for the position.

c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment ofany person as Whole-time Director who has

attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of theperson holding this position may be extended

beyond theageofseventy years with theapproval of shareholders by passinga special resolution.

d) Criteria for Determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes& Independence of Director:

TERM

(i) Qualifications:- An Independent Director shall possess appropriate skills, Qualification,

experience and knowledge inone ormore fields of Finance, Law, Management, Sales, Marketing,

Administration, Research, Corporate Governance, Operations or other disciplines related to the

Company's business.

(ii) Positive Attributes:- An Independent Director shall be a person of integrity, who possesses

relevant expertise and experience and who shall uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity;

act objectively and constructively; exercise his responsibilities ina bona-fide manner in the

interest of the Company; devote sufficient time and attention to his professional obligations for

informed and balanced decision making; and assist the Company in implementing the best

Corporate Governance practices.

(iii) Independence:-An Independent Director should meet therequirements of the Companies Act,

2013 and Listing Regulations, 2015 concerning Independence of Directors.

/ TENURE

a) Managing Director/ Whole-Time Director:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director

or Executive Director fora term not exceeding five years ata time. No re-appointment shall be made

earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

b) Independent Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office fora term up to five consecutive years on the Board ofthe

Company andwill be eligible for re-appointment on passing ofa special resolution by the Company

anddisclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. No Independent Director shall hold office

for more than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of5 years each, but such Independent

Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an

Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three

years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company inany other capacity, either directly or

indirectly. At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of

Boards on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven Listed Companies as an

Independent Director and three Listed Companies asan Independent Director in case such person is

serving asa Whole-Time Director ofa Listed Company orsuch other number asmay be prescribed

under theAct.
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• To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.  

 

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT  

 

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the 

person for appointment as Director, Key Management Personnel or at Senior Management level and 

recommend his / her appointment, as per Company’s Policy.  

b) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is 

considered for appointment. The Committee has authority to decide whether qualification, expertise and 

experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the position.  

c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director who has 

attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended 

beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution.  

d) Criteria for Determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes & Independence of Director: 

 

(i) Qualifications:- An Independent Director shall possess appropriate skills, Qualification, 

experience and knowledge in one or more fields of Finance, Law, Management, Sales, Marketing, 

Administration, Research, Corporate Governance, Operations or other disciplines related to the 

Company's business. 

(ii) Positive Attributes:- An Independent Director shall be a person of integrity, who possesses 

relevant expertise and experience and who shall uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity; 

act objectively and constructively; exercise his responsibilities in a bona-fide manner in the 

interest of the Company; devote sufficient time and attention to his professional obligations for 

informed and balanced decision making; and assist the Company in implementing the best 

Corporate Governance practices. 

(iii) Independence:-An Independent Director should meet the requirements of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Listing Regulations, 2015 concerning Independence of Directors. 

 

TERM / TENURE 

 

a) Managing Director / Whole-Time Director:  

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director 

or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made 

earlier than one year before the expiry of term.  

 

b) Independent Director:  

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the 

Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company 

and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. No Independent Director shall hold office 

for more than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of 5 years each, but such Independent 

Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an 

Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three 

years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or 

indirectly. At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of 

Boards on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven Listed Companies as an 

Independent Director and three Listed Companies as an Independent Director in case such person is 

serving as a Whole-Time Director of a Listed Company or such other number as may be prescribed 

under the Act. 

 

 

 



EVALUATION

TheCommittee shall carry out evaluation of performance of Director, Key Management Personnel

and Senior Management Personnel yearly or at such intervals as may be considered necessary.

REMOVAL

TheCommittee may recommend with reasons recorded in writing, removal ofa Director, Key

Management Personnel or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of

theCompanies Act, 2013, rules and regulations and the policy of the Company.

RETIREMENT

TheDirector, Key Management Personnel and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the

applicable provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the

discretion to retain the Director, Key Management Personnel, and Senior Management Personnel in

the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit

of the Company.

POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS/ KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL/

SENIORMANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

1) Remuneration toManaging Director/ Whole-Time Directors:

a) The objective of the policy is directed towards havinga compensation philosophy and structure

that will reward and retain talent. The Remuneration to Managing Director and Whole Time

Directors shall take into account the Company's overall performance, Profitability, MD / WTD's

contribution for the same & trends in the industry in general, ina manner which will ensure and

supporta high performance culture.

b) The Remuneration/ Commission etc. to be paid to Managing Director/ Whole-time Directors,

etc. shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under

or any other enactment forthe time being in force and the approvals obtained from theMembers

oftheCompany.

c) The Company hasno stock option plans and hence, such instruments do not form part of the

remuneration package ofMD / WTDs.

d) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management will involvea

balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives

appropriate to the working oftheCompany andits goals.

e) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations totheBoard of

Directors, as it may consider appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing Director/

Whole-time Directors.

2) Remuneration toNon- Executive/ Independent Directors:

a) The Non-Executive/ Independent Directors may receive sitting fees and such other remuneration

as permissible under theprovisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be

such as may be recommended by theNomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by

theBoard ofDirectors.

b) All the remuneration of the Non - Executive/ Independent Directors (excluding remuneration for

attending meetings as prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be
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EVALUATION  

 

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of Director, Key Management Personnel 

and Senior Management Personnel yearly or at such intervals as may be considered necessary.  

 

REMOVAL 

 

The Committee may recommend with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, Key 

Management Personnel or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of 

the Companies Act, 2013, rules and regulations and the policy of the Company.  

 

RETIREMENT 

 

The Director, Key Management Personnel and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the 

applicable provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the 

discretion to retain the Director, Key Management Personnel, and Senior Management Personnel in 

the same position / remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit 

of the Company.  

 

POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS / KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL / 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

 

1) Remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-Time Directors:  

 

a) The objective of the policy is directed towards having a compensation philosophy and structure 

that will reward and retain talent. The Remuneration to Managing Director and Whole Time 

Directors shall take into account the Company's overall performance, Profitability, MD / WTD's 

contribution for the same & trends in the industry in general, in a manner which will ensure and 

support a high performance culture. 

b) The Remuneration / Commission etc. to be paid to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors, 

etc. shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under 

or any other enactment for the time being in force and the approvals obtained from the Members 

of the Company.  

c) The Company has no stock option plans and hence, such instruments do not form part of the 

remuneration package of MD / WTDs.  

d) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management will involve a 

balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives 

appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. 

e) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the Board of 

Directors, as it may consider appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing Director / 

Whole-time Directors. 

 

2) Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Directors:  

 

a) The Non-Executive / Independent Directors may receive sitting fees and such other remuneration 

as permissible under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be 

such as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by 

the Board of Directors.  

b) All the remuneration of the Non - Executive / Independent Directors (excluding remuneration for 

attending meetings as prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be 



subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or

any other enactment forthe time being in force. The amount ofsuch remuneration shall be such

as may be recommended by theNomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the

Board ofDirectors or shareholders, as the case may be.

c) An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be eligible to

participate in any share based payment schemes oftheCompany.

d)Any remuneration paid to Non - Executive/ Independent Directors for services rendered which are

of professional in nature shall not be considered as part of the remuneration for the purposes of

clause (b) above ifthe following conditions are satisfied:

i) The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and

ii) In the opinion of the Committee, the Director possesses the requisite qualification for the

practice of that profession.

3) Remuneration toKey Managerial Personnel and Senior Management:

a) The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay

and incentive pay, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in

accordance with theCompany's Policy.

b) The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer's contribution to Provident Fund,

where applicable, contribution to Pension Fund etc. as decided from totime.

c) The Incentive pay shall be decided based on thebalance between performance of theCompany and

performance of theKey Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, tobe decided annually or

at such intervals as may be considered appropriate.

IMPLEMENTATION

• TheCommittee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in

supplement and forbetter implementation of this policy as considered appropriate.

• The Committee may Delegate any of its powers toone ormore ofits members.

• The above criteria and policy are subject to review by the Nomination& Remuneration

committee & theBoard ofDirectors of the Company

• TheBoard is authorized to deviate from theRemuneration Policy in deserving case.
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subject to ceiling / limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or 

any other enactment for the time being in force. The amount of such remuneration shall be such 

as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the 

Board of Directors or shareholders, as the case may be.  

c) An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be eligible to 

participate in any share based payment schemes of the Company.  

d) Any remuneration paid to Non - Executive / Independent Directors for services rendered which are 

of professional in nature shall not be considered as part of the remuneration for the purposes of 

clause (b) above if the following conditions are satisfied:  

i) The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and  

ii) In the opinion of the Committee, the Director possesses the requisite qualification for the 

practice of that profession.  

 

3) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management: 

 

a) The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay 

and incentive pay, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in 

accordance with the Company’s Policy.  

b) The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer’s contribution to Provident Fund, 

where applicable, contribution to Pension Fund etc. as decided from to time.  

c) The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance between performance of the Company and 

performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided annually or 

at such intervals as may be considered appropriate.  

 

IMPLEMENTATION 

 

• The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in 

supplement and for better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate.  

• The Committee may Delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members. 

• The above criteria and policy are subject to review by the Nomination & Remuneration 

committee & the Board of Directors of the Company  

• The Board is authorized to deviate from the Remuneration Policy in deserving case. 

 

  



ANNEXURE D-3TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Over thepast year, the pharmacy industry has witnessed greater collaboration, adapted quickly, and adopted

innovative approach to deliver high quality medicines continuously during the pandemic and beyond. The

industry has shown unwavering commitment tosupport the country's healthcare needs as well as enhance its

footprint across the world.According toa recent EY FICCI analysis, witha rising consensus on offering new

breakthrough cures to patients, the Indian pharmaceutical market is expected to reach $130 billion in value by

the end of 2030.

BUSINESS REVIEWAND PRODUCTS

Syschem (India) Limited is engaged in the business of manufacturing of API / Intermediates. It has its

manufacturing facility at Village Bargodam, Tehsil Kalka, Distt. Panchkula (Haryana).

O AmoxycillinTrihydrate

O Ampicillin Trihydrate

O Cloxacillin Sodium

O Dicloxacillin Sodium

O Flucloxacillin Sodium (For export only)

O Cephalexin

O Cefadroxil

Distillation of Speciality Solvents — DMF, Acetonitrile, Ethyl Acetate and THF

SWOTAnalvsis

STRENGTHS

(i) Promoters have worked fora good period of time in same industry. They have sufficient

product knowledge and is thus beneficial for the Industry. We have huge capacities to cater

to the market.

(ii) Lean manufacturing practices being followed by the Company ensure better and stable

margins anda cushion to sustain input price pressures and output price competition. Our

products quality is well accepted inthe market.

Existing relations with agents and potential customers due to past working experience of

promoters.

The location of plant is suitable for such type of Industry.

The plant is located near to Baddi area where more than 600 pharma/formulations

manufacturing units are located

WEAKNESSES

Working Capital

OPPORTUNITIES

Increased usage of contract manufacturing services by large Pharmaceutical Companies/

(i) Pharmaceutical Traders.

Demand ofantibiotics is high in unorganized market for branded as well us unbranded

(ii) products.

Positive outlook forIndian generic business in general due toa lot many products going off

(iii) patent in near future.
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breakthrough cures to patients, the Indian pharmaceutical market is expected to reach $130 billion in value by 
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PRODUCTS  

 

Syschem (India) Limited is engaged in the business of manufacturing of API / Intermediates. It has its 

manufacturing facility at Village Bargodam, Tehsil Kalka, Distt. Panchkula (Haryana).  

 

 AmoxycillinTrihydrate  

 Ampicillin Trihydrate 

 Cloxacillin Sodium 

 Dicloxacillin Sodium 

 Flucloxacillin Sodium (For export only) 

 Cephalexin 

 Cefadroxil 

Distillation of Speciality Solvents – DMF, Acetonitrile, Ethyl Acetate and THF   

 

SWOT Analysis 

 

STRENGTHS 
       

(i) Promoters have worked for a good period of time in same industry. They have sufficient 

product knowledge and is thus beneficial for the Industry. We have huge capacities to cater 

to the market.  
(ii) Lean manufacturing practices being followed by the Company ensure better and stable 

margins and a cushion to sustain input price pressures and output price competition. Our 

products quality is well accepted in the market.  
` Existing relations with agents and potential customers due to past working experience of 

promoters. 
The location of plant is suitable for such type of Industry. 
 
The plant is located near to Baddi area where more than 600 pharma/formulations 

manufacturing units are located  

 

WEAKNESSES 
       

 
Working Capital 

OPPORTUNITIES 
       

   (i)  

Increased usage of contract manufacturing services by large Pharmaceutical Companies / 

Pharmaceutical Traders.  

(ii)  

Demand of antibiotics is high in unorganized market for branded as well us unbranded 

products. 

(iii)  

Positive outlook for Indian generic business in general due to a lot many products going off 

patent in near future. 



Low per capita consumption of medicines in Indian subcontinent offers opportunities for

(iv) growth.

(v)
Increasing income levels and health awareness in Asia is expected to result in increased

spending power andusage of medicines.

Further Govt. of India is also promoting investment in Bulk Drug Industries so as to curtail

the imports from China asmore than 85% of the API Inputs are imported from China.

THREATS

(i) Don't seeany bigthreat until unless we have funds torun the show andtogrow.

(ii) Increasing regulation in US and other major pharmaceutical markets.

Emergence ofnew fully integrated generic firms which areless reliant on Indian “back-end”

(iii) businesses.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT

India is the largest provider of generic drugs globally. Indian pharmaceutical sector supplies over 50 per cent

of global demand forvarious vaccines, 40 per cent of generic demand intheUS and 25 percent of all

medicine inthe UK. India enjoys an important position in the global pharmaceuticals sector. The country also

hasa large pool of scientists and engineers witha potential to steer the industry ahead to greater heights.

Presently, over 80 per cent of the antiretroviral drugs used globally to combat AIDS (Acquired Immune

Deficiency Syndrome) aresupplied by Indian pharmaceutical firms.

Indian pharmaceutical sector is expected to grow toUS$ 100billion, while medical device market is expected

to grow US$ 25 billion by 2025. Pharmaceuticals export from India stood at US$ 22.9 billion in FY23.

Government is also taking several steps to promote thepharmaceutical sector in India.

EXPANSION PLANS

Company haslong term program to increase the production of the pharma products so that meet themarket

demand and increase the sales of the Company forthis, the Company hasset up a new plant which is in

process and will start generating the revenue soon.

RISK& CONCERNS

Ina politically and economically turbulent environment, the risks pharma companies face, especially in

clinical-trial design and execution, drug approval, product quality, and global commercial practices, are

increasing in both frequency and magnitude.

SEGMENTWISE/PRODUCT WISE REPORTING

TheCompany is operating in the single segment and engaged in the manufacture and sales of Pharma

products i.eAmoxycillin Trihydrate, Ampicillin Trihydrate, Cloxacillin Sodium etc. Therefore, segment wise

information has not been disclosed.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSCHEM

TheCompany hasstructured the internal control system. In view of the large size of the business and to

enforce highest levels of transparency, the Company has appointed an internal auditor of the Company

covering nearly all aspects related to the working oftheCompany. The Company haspaid particular attention
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSCHEM 

The Company has structured the internal control system. In view of the large size of the business and to 

enforce highest levels of transparency, the Company has appointed an internal auditor of the Company 

covering nearly all aspects related to the working of the Company. The Company has paid particular attention 



on proper maintenance of equipments to ensure that they are operated at the rated capacities. The Company

hastaken the effective steps for the reduction of cost and to improve thequality of the product. The Company

hasinplace adequate internal controls commensurate with the size and nature of its operations. The integrated

financial accounting system supported by inbuilt controls ensures reliable and timely financial and operational

reporting.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Financial performance of theCompany hasbeen given separately in the Directors' Report.

OUTLOOK

Medicine spending in India is projected to grow 9-12 Per cent over the next five, year, leading India to

become oneoftheTop 10Countries in terms of medicine spending. Going forward, better growth indomestic

salewould also depend on the ability of companies to align their product portfolio towards chronic therapies

for diseases such as such as cardiovascular, anti-diabetes, anti-depressants and anti-cancers that are on the

rise.

ROADAHEAD

Medicine spending in India is projected to grow 9-12 per cent over the next five years, leading India to

become one ofthetop10 countries in terms of medicine spending. Going forward, better growth indomestic

sales would also depend on theability of companies toalign their product portfolio towards chronic therapies

for diseases such as such as cardiovascular, anti-diabetes, anti-depressants and anti-cancers that are on the

rise.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMAND THEIRADEQUACY

OurCompany hasbuilt adequate systems of internal controls towards achieving efficiency and effectiveness

in operations, optimum utilization of resources, and effective monitoring thereof as well as compliance with

all applicable laws The internal control mechanism comprises a well-defined organization structure,

documented policy guidelines, predetermined authority levels and processes commensurate with the level of

responsibility.

RISKAND CONCERNS

TheCompany continues to operate in the challenging and dynamic environment. The Nature of the Pharma

business exposes the Company tovarious competititive and regulatory risks in Long Term:

• Evolving pressures on commoditization in India led by disruptive business models and potential

impact on thebranded generics business.

• Consolidated customer base, high competition, regulatory requirements impacting product approvals

and continued pricing pressure.

• Shifts in drug usage and healthcare delivery in developed and developing markets, on account of

Covid-19

Howeverin spite of the challenges our Company is trying to recover the loss and increase sale.

RESPONSIBILITYFOR THE MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

TheBoard of Directors have reviewed the Management Discussion and Analysis prepared by the

Management. Statement in this report of the Company's objective, projections, estimates, exceptions, and
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predictions are forward looking statements subject to the applicable laws and regulations. The statements may

be subjected to certain risks and uncertainties.

The Company assumes no responsibility in respect of forward looking statements that may be amended or

modified infuture on the basis of subsequent developments, information or events.

KEY INDICATORS

Ratios

Debtors Turnover (No.

of days)

2022-23 2023-24

117 86.28

% Increase/

(Decrease)

Reason forchange

-26.25% No ofDays decrease in Trade Receivables.

Inventory Turnover (No.

of days) 50 64.94 29.88%

No ofDays Increased this year

Interest Coverage Ratio 12302.4 2571.69 -79.09% Decreased due to statutory Liabilities

Current Ratio 1.36 1.31 -3.6s% Decrease during the year

Debt Equity ratio 0.07 0.01 -85.7i%
Due todecrease in Unsecured Loan

Operating Profit Margin 4.72 1.76 -62.71%

Net Profit Margin (%) 3.46 1.18 -65.89%

Change inNet Worth

ratio (%) 221.32% 155.36 -0.42%

DISCLAIMER STATEMENT

Decrease price drop intheMarket(Nationala

International)

Decrease price drop intheMarket(Nationala

International)

Improved due toInternal Arrangement of

Financing Activities.

Statement made inthereport describing the current industry structure, development, development arebased

on certain assumptions and expectations. The Company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and

expectations are accurate.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Chandigarh

Date: 02“July, 2024
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For and on behalf of the Board 
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ANNEXURE D-4TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

DETAILS UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1)

OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL

PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

(i) Ratio of the remuneration of each Executive Director to the median remuneration of the Employees of

the Company forthefinancial year 2023-24, the percentage increase in remuneration of Chief

Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and other Executive Director and Company Secretary

during the financial year 2023-2024.

Sr. No. Name

Director/KMP

1 Ranjan Jain

of Designation

Managing Director

2 Suninder Veer Singh Whole-time Director

3 Sanjeev Agrawal CFO

4 Shikha Kataria CS

The Ratio of the The percentage

remuneration of increase in

each Director to remuneration

the median

remuneration of

the employees

10.94

12.15

6.53

2.24

ii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of Employees forthefinancial year was 7.45%

iii. The Company has105permanent Employees on therolls of Company ason 31st March, 2024.

28.57%

25%

7.5%

10%

iv. Average percentile increase already made inthesalaries of employees other than the managerial personnel

in the last financial year, its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration,

justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial

remuneration:

Average percentage increase made inthesalaries of Employees other than the managerial personnel in the

financial year was 7.45%.

v. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

It is affirmed that the remuneration is as per the ‘Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial

Personnel and other employees’ adopted by theCompany.
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ANNEXURED-5OFTHEDIRECTORS REPORT

Form No.MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FORTHEFINANCIAL YEARENDEDMARCH31,2024

[Pursuant tosection 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Syschem (India) Limited,

Vill-Bargodam, Tehsil Kalka,

District Panchkula,

Haryana.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the

adherence to good corporate practices by SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED (hereinafter called “the

Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted ina manner that provided me a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and

other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,I hereby report

that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on

March 31,2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has

proper Board-processesand compliance-mechanism inplace to the extent, in the mannerand subject to

the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined thebooks, papers, minute books, forms andreturns filed and other records maintained

bySYSCHEM (INDIA)LIMITED (“theCompany”) for the financial year ended on March 31,2024,

according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and therules madethereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) andthe rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and theRegulations and Bye-lawsframed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and therules andregulations made thereunder to the extent of

Foreign Directlnvestment, Overseas Direct Investment and External CommercialBorrowings;
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To, 

 

The Members, 

Syschem (India) Limited, 
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Regulations, 2011 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares

and Takeovers) (Amendment) Regulations, 2013.

b) The Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits And Sweat Equity)

Regulations, 2021; Not applicable to the company during the financial year under review.

d) The Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2018.

e) The Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018: Not Applicable

as there was no instance of Buy-Back during the financial year.

f} Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible Securities) Regulations,

2021: Not applicable during the financial year under review.

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client- Not applicable as the company

is not registered as Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent during the financial year under

review.

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021- Not

applicable as the company hasnotdelisted any securities from any stock exchange during the financial

year under review.

(vi) The major provisions and requirements have also been complied with as prescribed under all applicable

Labour laws viz. The Factories Act, 1948, The Payment ofWages Act, 1936, The Minimum Wages Act,

1948, The Payment ofBonus Act, 1965, The Employees Compensation Act, 1923 etc. and rules framed

there under.

(vii) Environment Protection Act, 1986 and other environmental laws.

(viii) Hazardous Waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989 and theAmendments Rules, 2003.

(ix) The Air(Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

(x) The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

b) The SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 being listed on the BSE

Limited;

During the period under review the Company hascomplied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

Based on ourexamination and the information received and records maintained,I further report that:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive

Director, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes inthe composition of the

Board ofDirectors that took place during the year, were carried out in compliance with the applicable

Act and Regulations.
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(vi) The major provisions and requirements have also been complied with as prescribed under all applicable 

Labour laws viz. The Factories Act, 1948, The Payment of Wages Act, 1936, The Minimum Wages Act, 

1948, The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965, The Employees Compensation Act, 1923 etc. and rules framed 

there under. 

(vii) Environment Protection Act, 1986 and other environmental laws. 

(viii) Hazardous Waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989 and the Amendments Rules, 2003. 

(ix) The Air(Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 

(x) The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 

 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

b) The SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 being listed on the BSE 

Limited; 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

 

Based on our examination and the information received and records maintained, I further report that: 

 
1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Director, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the 

Board of Directors that took place during the year, were carried out in compliance with the applicable 

Act and Regulations. 

 



2. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on

agenda were sent well in advance, anda system exists for seeking and obtaining further information

and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the

meeting.

3. All decisions are carried through majority, while the dissenting members' views, if any, are captured

and recorded as part of the minutes.

4. The company hasproper board processes.

Based on thecompliance mechanism established by the company and on thebasis of the compliance

certificate(s) issued by the Company Secretary/ Officers,I am of an opinion that there are adequate

systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to

monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period:

1. The company has increased the Authorised Share Capital during the year from Rs. 34.00 Crores

divided into 32.00 crores equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and 2.00 crores preference shares of Rs. 1/-

each to Rs. 50.00 Crores divided into 4.80 crores equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and 2.00 crores

preference shares of Rs. 1/- each.

2. The company hasallotted 79,72,600 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each ata premium ofRs.

30/- per share through rights issue.

I further report that, there were no instances of

Public/ Preferential issue of shares/ debentures/ sweat equity

Major decisions taken by the Members inpursuance to Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013

Merger/ amalgamation/ reconstruction etc.

Foreign technical collaborations.

Place: Chandigarh

Date:04.07.2024

UDIN:F005901F000670422
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UDIN:F005901F000670422  
 
 
 

 

       KANWALJIT SINGH THANEWAL 

         FCS No. 5901 

C P No.: 5870 

Peer review Cert No. 2319/2022 
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Annexure toBoard Report

ANNUAL REPORTON CSRACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR2023-24

(Pursuant toD-6 ofthe Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy), 2014)

1. Brief Outline of the Policy: The Corporate social Responsibility is applicable as per section 135 of

the Companies Act, 2013 and as applicable regulation of SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure

requirements), 2015. The Provision is applicable to Company from Financial Year 2023-24.

2. Broad Terms ofReference:

a) Formulate and recommend to theBoard,a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall

indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company inareas or subject specified in Schedule VII

of the Companies Act, 2013;

b) Recommend andmonitor the amount ofexpenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in

clause (a).

c) Monitor theCorporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time; and

d) Any other functions as may deem fit by the CSR Committee/Board or as may be necessitated by

any regulatory framework asamended from time totime.

3. Composition oftheCommittee:

Mrs. Renu Rawat

Mrs. Arshdeep Kaur

Mrs. Neena Batra

Non-Executive - Independent Director

Non-Executive - Independent Director

Non-Executive - Non Independent Director

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Project approved: The Company hasnotapproved any project as

the CSR is applicable from financial year 2023-24 forthe first time, and the Company incur loss as

per Sub section (5)of l35oftheCompanies Act, 2013 intotal. So, Company is not bound tospend 2%

of its net Profits as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013.

5. (a) Average Net profit /loss of the Company aspersection (5)of section 135: -Rs(. 9199666.67)

(b)2 % of average net profits as per subsection (5) section 135: NIL

(c) Surplus arising out of CSR project or programmers oractivity: NIL

of the previous year.

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: NIL

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)].: NIL

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Project (Both ongoing and other): NIL

(b) Amount spent in Administrative overheads: NIL

(c)Amount spent on Impact Assessment, ifapplicable: NIL

(d) Total amount spent for the financial year (a+b+c): NIL

7. CSR amount spent or unspent fortheFinancial year: NIL

8. Excess amount forsetoff, if any: NIL

2626 
 

 

 

D-6 

Annexure to Board Report 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24 

(Pursuant to D-6 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy), 2014) 

 

1. Brief Outline of the Policy: The Corporate social Responsibility is applicable as per section 135 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and as applicable regulation of SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

requirements), 2015. The Provision is applicable to Company from Financial Year 2023-24. 

2. Broad Terms of Reference: 

a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall 

indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company in areas or subject specified in Schedule VII 

of the Companies Act, 2013;  

b) Recommend and monitor the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in 

clause (a). 

c) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time; and  

d) Any other functions as may deem fit by the CSR Committee/Board or as may be necessitated by 

any regulatory framework as amended from time to time. 

 

3.  Composition of the Committee: 

 

Mrs. Renu Rawat 

 

Non-Executive - Independent Director  

Mrs. Arshdeep Kaur Non-Executive - Independent Director 

 

Mrs. Neena Batra Non-Executive - Non Independent Director 

 

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Project approved: The Company has not approved any project as 

the CSR is applicable from financial year 2023-24 for the first time, and the Company incur loss as 

per Sub section (5)of 135of the Companies Act, 2013 in total. So, Company is not bound to spend 2% 

of its net Profits as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013. 

5. (a) Average Net profit /loss of the Company as per section (5)of section 135: -Rs(. 9199666.67) 

(b) 2 % of average net profits as per subsection (5) section 135: NIL 

(c) Surplus arising out of CSR project or programmers or activity: NIL 

    of the previous year.  

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: NIL 

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)].: NIL 

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Project  (Both ongoing and other): NIL 

    (b) Amount spent in Administrative overheads: NIL 

     (c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL  

     (d) Total amount spent for the financial year (a+b+c): NIL 

 
7. CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial year: NIL 

8. Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL 



9. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount fortheProceeding three Financial

Years: NIL

Note: It to be noted that the Corporate Social Responsibility applicable on Company from thefinancial year

2023-24 only forthe first time and before that company incurred losses in the previous years that is in 2021-

22, 2020-21 and thus the aggregate average profit of the Company aspersubsection5 of section l35come

outtobe negative.
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9. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the Proceeding three Financial 

Years: NIL 

 

 

Note: It to be noted that the Corporate Social Responsibility applicable on Company from the financial year 

2023-24 only for the first time and before that company incurred losses in the previous years that is in 2021-

22, 2020-21 and thus the aggregate average profit of the Company as per sub section 5 of section 135come 

out to be negative. 

 

 

  



ANNEXURE D-7TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

FORMNO.AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form forDisclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties

referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length

transaction under third proviso thereto.

a)

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis. — NIL

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis

1

3

SL. No. Particulars

Name (s) of the related party & nature of

relationship

2 Nature of contracts/ arrangements/

transaction

Duration of the

contracts/arrangements/transaction

4 Salient terms of the contracts or

arrangements or transaction including the

value, if any

5 Justification for entering into such

contracts or arrangements or

transactions'

6 Date ofapproval by the Board

7 Amount paid as advances, if any

28

Details

Pharma Care International, as per Regulation 23

& 2(1)(zb)of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirement), 2015, any person or

entity holding 20% or more oftheshareholding in

the Company shall deemed to be related Party.

However none ofthedirector or their relative

is interested asa partner or otherwise.

Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material,

availing and rendering of services, selling or

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and

other transactions in the ordinary course of the

company's business.

One year

Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material,

availing and rendering of services, selling or

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and

other transactions in the ordinary course of the

company's business upto the maximum value of

500 crores (Five Hundred Crores.).

Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material,

availing and rendering of services, selling or

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and

other transactions in the ordinary course of the

company's businessat a very reasonable price

besides good quality of products

15.05.2023

N.A.
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ANNEXURE D-7 TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

FORM NO. AOC -2 

 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties 

referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length 

transaction under third proviso thereto. 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. – NIL 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis 

  

 

a) 

 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)       1 Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
Pharma Care International, as per Regulation 23 

& 2(1)(zb)of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirement), 2015, any person or 

entity holding 20% or more of the shareholding in 

the Company shall deemed to be related Party. 

However none of the director or their relative 

is interested as a partner or otherwise. 

b)      2 Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ 

transaction 
Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material, 

availing and rendering of services, selling or 

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of 

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and 

other transactions in the ordinary course of the 

company’s business. 

)       3 Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 
One year 

d)      4 Salient terms of the contracts or 

arrangements or transaction including the 

value, if any 

Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material, 

availing and rendering of services, selling or 

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of 

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and 

other transactions in the ordinary course of the 

company’s business upto the maximum value of 

500 crores (Five Hundred Crores.). 

e)       5 Justification for entering into such 

contracts or arrangements or 

transactions’ 

Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material, 

availing and rendering of services, selling or 

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of 

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and 

other transactions in the ordinary course of the 

company’s businessat a very reasonable price 

besides good quality of products 

f)        6 Date of approval by the Board 15.05.2023 

g)       7 Amount paid as advances, if any N.A. 

 

 



(b)

(c)

SL. No.

SL. No.

Particulars

Name (s) of the related party & nature of

relationship

Nature of contracts/ arrangements/

transaction

Duration of the

contracts/arrangements/transaction

Salient terms of the contracts or

arrangements or transaction including the

value, if any

Amount paid as advances, if any

Justification for entering into such

contracts or arrangements or

transactions'

Particulars

Name (s) of the related party & nature of

relationship

Nature of contracts/ arrangements/

transaction

Duration of

contracts/arrangements/transaction

Amount paid as advances, if any

the

Salient terms of the contracts or

29

Details

JBK Khokhani& Co, as per Regulation 23&

2(1)(zb) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirement), 2015, any person or

entity holding 20% or more oftheshareholding in

the Company shall deemed to be related Party.

However none ofthedirector or their relative

is interested asa partner or otherwise.

Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material,

availing and rendering of services, selling or

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and

other transactions in the ordinary course of the

company's business.

One year

Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material,

availing and rendering of services, selling or

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and

other transactions in the ordinary course of the

company's business upto the maximum value of

100 crores (One HundredCrores)

NA

Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material,

availing and rendering of services, selling or

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and

other transactions in the ordinary course of the

company's businessat very reasonable price

besides good quality of products

Details

Indosol Export, as per Regulation 23& 2(1)(zb)

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirement), 2015, any person or entity holding

20% or more oftheshareholding in the Company

shall deemed tobe related Party. That is why it is

related., However none ofthedirector or their

relative is interested asa partner or otherwise.

Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material,

availing and rendering of services, selling or

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and

other transactions in the ordinary course of the

company's business.

One year

NA

Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material,

29 
 

(b)  

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
JBK Khokhani& Co, as per Regulation 23& 

2(1)(zb) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirement), 2015, any person or 

entity holding 20% or more of the shareholding in 

the Company shall deemed to be related Party. 

However none of the director or their relative 

is interested as a partner or otherwise. 

b)       Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ 

transaction 
Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material, 

availing and rendering of services, selling or 

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of 

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and 

other transactions in the ordinary course of the 

company’s business.  
Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 
One year 

  Salient terms of the contracts or 

arrangements or transaction including the 

value, if any 

Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material, 

availing and rendering of services, selling or 

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of 

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and 

other transactions in the ordinary course of the 

company’s business upto the maximum value of 

100 crores (One HundredCrores)  
Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

  Justification for entering into such 

contracts or arrangements or 

transactions’ 

Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material, 

availing and rendering of services, selling or 

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of 

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and 

other transactions in the ordinary course of the 

company’s businessat very reasonable price 

besides good quality of products 

 

(c)  

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
Indosol Export, as per Regulation 23& 2(1)(zb)  

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirement), 2015, any person or entity holding 

20% or more of the shareholding in the Company 

shall deemed to be related Party. That is why it is 

related. , However none of the director or their 

relative is interested as a partner or otherwise. 

b)       Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ 

transaction 
Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material, 

availing and rendering of services, selling or 

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of 

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and 

other transactions in the ordinary course of the 

company’s business.  
Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 
One year 

 
Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

  Salient terms of the contracts or Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material, 



arrangements or transaction including the

value, if any

Justification for entering into such

contracts or arrangements or

transactions'

Date ofapproval by the Board

30

availing and rendering of services, selling or

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and

other transactions in the ordinary course of the

company's business up to the maximum value of

50 crores (Fifty Crores).

Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material,

availing and rendering of services, selling or

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and

other transactions in the ordinary course of the

company's businessat very reasonable price

besides good quality of products

15.05.2023

30 
 

arrangements or transaction including the 

value, if any 
availing and rendering of services, selling or 

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of 

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and 

other transactions in the ordinary course of the 

company’s business up to the maximum value of 

50 crores (Fifty Crores). 

  Justification for entering into such 

contracts or arrangements or 

transactions’ 

Sale, purchase or supply of goods and material, 

availing and rendering of services, selling or 

otherwise disposing off or buying properties of 

any kind, leasing of property of any kind and 

other transactions in the ordinary course of the 

company’s businessat very reasonable price 

besides good quality of products 

)        Date of approval by the Board 15.05.2023 

  



REPORTON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Inaccordance with Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [“SEBI (LODR) Regulations”], the

Report containing the details of Corporate Governance of Syschem (India)Limited is as follows:

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OFGOVERNANCE

TheCompany firmly believes in the principal of good Corporate Governance and is committed in adopting

the best global practice of Corporate Governance. The Company fully realizes the rights of its shareholders to

information on the performance of the Company and considers itselfa trustee of its shareholders. The

Company provides detailed information on various issues concerning the Company's business and financial

performance, to its shareholders.

The Company continues to commit itself to maintain the standards of integrity, transparency, accountability

and equity in all facets of its operations and all its interactions with its stakeholders including the

shareholders, employees and government. The basic philosophy of Corporate Governance intheCompany is

to achieve business excellence and dedicate itself for increasing long-term shareholders value, keeping in

view theneeds and interests of all its stakeholders.

The Company is committed totransparency in all its dealings and places emphasis on business ethics.

2. BOARD OFDIRECTORS

(i) Composition and categov of Directors

The strength of Board is5 (Five) Directors as on 31st March 2024. The Board consisted of Two Executive

Directors, one non-Executive non-independent Director, TwoNon-Executive Independent Directors.

The Non-Executive Independent Directors with their diverse knowledge, vast experience and relevant

expertise brings in their independent judgment, knowledgeable and professional view tothedeliberations and

decisions of the Board.

Apart from thesitting fees being paid forattending Board/ Committee Meetings, the non-executive Directors

did not have any material pecuniary relationship or transaction withthe Company during the year 2023-2024

oreven after the close of Financial year upto the date of this report.

The Company hasa Non Executive Independent Director as Chairman and aspertherequirements of Listing

Regulations, the Company shall have one third of the Board consist of Independent Directors. The

Composition oftheBoard ason 31.03.2024 is given below:

1. Mr. Ranjan Jain

2. Mr. Suninder Veer Singh

3. Mrs. NeenaBatra

4. Ms. Arshdeep Kaur

5. Ms. Renu Rawat

- Managing Director

- Wholetime Director

- Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

- Non Executive Independent Director

- Non Executive Independent Director
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

In accordance with Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [“SEBI (LODR) Regulations”], the 

Report containing the details of Corporate Governance of Syschem (India)Limited is as follows: 

 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 

 

The Company firmly believes in the principal of good Corporate Governance and is committed in adopting 

the best global practice of Corporate Governance. The Company fully realizes the rights of its shareholders to 

information on the performance of the Company and considers itself a trustee of its shareholders. The 

Company provides detailed information on various issues concerning the Company’s business and financial 

performance, to its shareholders. 

 

The Company continues to commit itself to maintain the standards of integrity, transparency, accountability 

and equity in all facets of its operations and all its interactions with its stakeholders including the 

shareholders, employees and government. The basic philosophy of Corporate Governance in the Company is 

to achieve business excellence and dedicate itself for increasing long-term shareholders value, keeping in 

view the needs and interests of all its stakeholders. 

 

The Company is committed to transparency in all its dealings and places emphasis on business ethics. 

 

2.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

(i) Composition and category of Directors 

 

The strength of Board is 5 (Five) Directors as on 31st March 2024. The Board consisted of Two Executive 

Directors, one non-Executive non-independent Director, TwoNon-Executive Independent Directors.  

 

The Non-Executive Independent Directors with their diverse knowledge, vast experience and relevant 

expertise brings in their independent judgment, knowledgeable and professional view to the deliberations and 

decisions of the Board.  

 

Apart from the sitting fees being paid for attending Board / Committee Meetings, the non-executive Directors 

did not have any material pecuniary relationship or transaction withthe Company during the year 2023-2024 

or even after the close of Financial year upto the date of this report. 

 

The Company has a Non Executive Independent Director as Chairman and as per the requirements of Listing 

Regulations, the Company shall have one third of the Board consist of Independent Directors. The 

Composition of the Board as on 31.03.2024 is given below: 

 

1. Mr. Ranjan Jain    - Managing Director 

2. Mr. Suninder Veer Singh  - Wholetime Director 

3. Mrs. NeenaBatra   - Non-Executive Non-Independent Director 

4. Ms. Arshdeep Kaur   - Non Executive Independent Director  

5.  Ms. Renu Rawat   - Non Executive Independent Director 

 

 

 

 

 



(ii) The attendance at Board Meetings and at the Last Annual General Meeting and the No. of Other

Directorships and Committee Memberships/ Chairmanships of Directors is given below :-

NAME

CATEGORY

Ranjan Suninde Arshdeep Neena Renu

Jain r Kaur Batra Rawat

Veer

Singh

Executive Executi Independen Non- Independent

ve t &Non Executive &Non

Executive Executive

Director Director

Board Meetings attended during 11

theyear

Attendance attheAGM held

on23.09.2023

11 12 09 09

N

NIL NIL 2

*No. ofother Boards inwhich

Member orChairperson

Member 1

No.ofother Board

Committees in

which Member

Chairperson

*Note:

I 4

r

Chairperson NIL NIL 2

N

NIL 2

2

I

3

2

1. For the above purpose, all Public Limited Companies, whether listed or not, have been included and

all other companies including Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies under

Section8 of the Companies Act, 2013 hasbeen excluded.

2. For the purpose of Membership & Chairmanship ina Committee only Audit Committee, Nomination

and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee have been considered.

3. The above composition and the information is as at 31.03.2024.

None oftheDirectors of the Board serve as Member ofmore than 10 Committees nor do they Chair more

than5 Committees.

(iii) Number ofBoard Meetings held, dates on which held:

Totall 2Board meetings were held during the period from 1st April, 2023 toMarch 31,2024 on the

following dates:

15-05-2023, 01-06-2023, 20-06-2023, 04-07-2023, 04-08-2023, 04-09-2023, 22-09-2023, 02-11-2023, 08-11-

2023, 22-11-2023, 09-02-2024, 11-03-2024

And 1 (One) Independent Directors meeting was held on 04.08.2023as required under Schedule IV of

Companies Act, 2013
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(ii) The attendance at Board Meetings and at the Last Annual General Meeting and the No. of Other 

Directorships and Committee Memberships / Chairmanships of Directors is given below :- 

 

 

NAME Ranjan 

Jain 
Suninde

r  
Veer 

Singh 

Arshdeep  
Kaur 

Neena 

Batra 
Renu  
Rawat 

CATEGORY Executive Executi

ve 
Independen

t &Non 

Executive 

Director 

Non-

Executive 
Independent 

&Non 

Executive 

Director 
Board Meetings attended during 

the year 
11 11 12 09 09 

Attendance at the AGM held 

on23.09.2023 
Y Y N Y N 

 
*No. of other Boards in which 

Member or Chairperson 

NIL NIL 2 NIL 2 

 
No. of other Board 

Committees in 

which Member or 

Chairperson 

  

Member 1 1 4 2 3 

Chairperson NIL NIL 2 1 2 

  

*Note: 

 

1. For the above purpose, all Public Limited Companies, whether listed or not, have been included and 

all other companies including Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies under 

Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been excluded. 

2. For the purpose of Membership & Chairmanship in a Committee only Audit Committee, Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee have been considered. 

3. The above composition and the information is as at 31.03.2024. 

 

None of the Directors of the Board serve as Member of more than 10 Committees nor do they Chair more 

than 5 Committees. 

 

(iii)      Number of Board Meetings held, dates on which held: 

 

Total 12Board meetings were held during the period from 1st April, 2023 to March 31, 2024 on the 

following dates: 

 

15-05-2023, 01-06-2023, 20-06-2023, 04-07-2023, 04-08-2023, 04-09-2023, 22-09-2023, 02-11-2023, 08-11-

2023, 22-11-2023, 09-02-2024, 11-03-2024 

 

And 1 (One) Independent Directors meeting was held on 04.08.2023as required under Schedule IV  of 

Companies Act, 2013 

 



During theyear under review, the gap between two meetings did not exceed 120 days as per SEBI (LODR)

Regulations, 2015 and Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Information placed before the Board

The Agenda is circulated well in advance to the Board Members. The items in the Agenda arebacked by

comprehensive background information to facilitate meaningful discussions and to enable the Board totake

efficient decisions. The Board of Syschem (India) Limited is presented with all relevant information on

various vital matters affecting the working of the Company inaddition to the matters set out in the SEBI

(LODR), Regulations, 2015. Also, extensive information is provided on various critical matters such as Risk

Assessment, Growth, Expansion, Related party transactions, sales, financial performance, foreign exchange

exposure, Appointment of Key Management personnel, legal proceedings, share transfer compliance,

quarterly financial results, significant labour and human relation matters.

3.AUDIT COMMITTEE

TERMS OF REFERENCE:

Powers oftheAudit Committee

The powers oftheAudit Committee shall include the following:

1. To investigate any activity within the terms of reference

2. To seek information from any employee

3. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice

4. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary

Role ofAudit Committee

The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following:

1. Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information

to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

2. Recommending totheBoard, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or

removal oftheStatutory Auditor and the fixation of Audit Fee.

3. Approval ofpayment toStatutory Auditors forany other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors.

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for

approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in

the Board's report in terms of clause (2AA) ofsection 217 of the Companies Act, 1956.

b. Changes, ifany, in accounting policies and practices and reasons forthe same.

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by

management.

d. Significant adjustments made inthefinancial statements arising out of audit findings.

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.

5. Reviewing, with the management, the Quarterly Financial Statements before submission to the Board

forapproval.
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During the year under review, the gap between two meetings did not exceed 120 days as per SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015 and Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Information placed before the Board 

 

The Agenda is circulated well in advance to the Board Members. The items in the Agenda are backed by 

comprehensive background information to facilitate meaningful discussions and to enable the Board to take 

efficient decisions. The Board of Syschem (India) Limited is presented with all relevant information on 

various vital matters affecting the working of the Company in addition to the matters set out in the SEBI 

(LODR), Regulations, 2015. Also, extensive information is provided on various critical matters such as Risk 

Assessment, Growth, Expansion, Related party transactions, sales, financial performance, foreign exchange 

exposure, Appointment of Key Management personnel, legal proceedings, share transfer compliance, 

quarterly financial results, significant labour and human relation matters. 

 

3.AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

TERMS OF REFERENCE: 

 

Powers of the Audit Committee 

 

The powers of the Audit Committee shall include the following: 

 

1. To investigate any activity within the terms of reference 

2. To seek information from any employee 

3. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice 

4. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary  

 

Role of Audit Committee 

 

The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following: 

 

1.  Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information 

to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 

 

2.  Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or 

removal of the Statutory Auditor and the fixation of Audit Fee. 

 

3.  Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors. 

 

4.  Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval, with particular reference to: 

 

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in 

the Board’s report in terms of clause (2AA) of section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956. 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.  

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 

management. 

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions 

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the Quarterly Financial Statements before submission to the Board 

for approval. 

 



is)

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised through an issue

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other

than those stated in the offer Document/ Prospectus/ Notice and the report submitted by the

monitoring agency, monitoring the utilization of proceeds ofa public or rights issue, and making

appropriate recommendations totheBoard totake up steps in this matter.

7) Reviewing, with the management, performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors, and adequacy ofthe

internal control systems.

8) Reviewing theadequacy of Internal Audit function, if any, including the structure of the Internal Audit

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage

and frequency of Internal Audit.

9) Discussion with Internal Auditors any significant findings and follow up there on.

10) Reviewing thefindings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters where there

is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems ofa material nature and

reporting the matter to the Board.

11) Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the Audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as

well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

12) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to thedepositors, debenture holders,

shareholders (in case of non-payment ofdeclared dividends) and creditors.

13) To review thefunctioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, incase the same is existing.

14) Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole-time Finance Director or any other person

heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience

& background, etc. of the candidate.

15) Carrying out any other function which the Board of Directors of the Company canrefer to Audit

Committee from time totime.

16) the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the

Company,

17) review and monitor theAuditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

18) examination of the financial statement and the Auditors' report thereon,

approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties,

20) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

21) valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary,

22) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

23) monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

Review ofinformation by Audit Committee
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6.  Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other 

than those stated in the offer Document / Prospectus / Notice and the report submitted by the 

monitoring agency, monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 

appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter. 

 

7) Reviewing, with the management, performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors, and adequacy of the 

internal control systems. 

 

8) Reviewing the adequacy of Internal Audit function, if any, including the structure of the Internal Audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage 

and frequency of Internal Audit. 

 

9) Discussion with Internal Auditors any significant findings and follow up there on. 

 

10) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters where there 

is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and 

reporting the matter to the Board. 

 

11) Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the Audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 

well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

 

12) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

 

13) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same is existing. 

 

14) Approval  of  appointment  of  CFO  (i.e.,  the  Whole-time  Finance  Director  or  any other person 

heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience 

& background, etc. of the candidate. 

 

15) Carrying out any other function which the Board of Directors of the Company can refer to Audit 

Committee from time to time.  

 

16) the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the 

Company, 

 

17) review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 

 

18) examination of the financial statement  and the Auditors’ report thereon, 

 

19) approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties, 

 

20) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

 

21) valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary, 

 

22) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

 

23) monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.  

 

Review of information by Audit Committee 

 

javascript:openwindow('ShowSectionRules.aspx?5864')


The Audit Committee shall review thefollowing information:

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by

management;

3. Management letters/ letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors;

4. Internal Audit Reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor shall be subject to

review by theAudit Committee

Composition ofAudit Committee

As on 31.03.2024, the Audit Committee of the Company comprises of one non-executive Independent

Directors and Two non-executive Non-Independent Director, who are well qualified and financially literate.

Following is the composition of theAudit Committee:

Ms. Arshdeep Kaur

Mrs. Renu Rawat

Mrs. Neena Batra

Independent Director, Chairman

Independent Director, Member

Non-executive Director, Member

Meetings ofAudit Committee and attendance during thevear 2023-24

8 meetings of theAudit Committee have been held during the year 2023-24 on thefollowing dates:

13.05.2023, 31.05.2023, 03-08-2023, 22-08-2023, 02-11-2023, 08-11-2023, 28-01-2024 and 08-02-2024

The attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings during the period from 01.04.2023 till 31.03.2024 is given

below:

Name Title No. of Meetings No. of Meetings

held attended

Ms. Arshdeep Independent Director and Chairman 8 8

Kaur ofCommittee

Mrs. Renu Rawat Independent Director

Mrs. Neena Batra Non-executive Director

8

8

5. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF TERMS OFREFERENCE

8

4

Nomination and Remuneration Committee oftheBoard ofDirectors is in place in terms of Section 178 of the

Companies Act, 2013, Listing Regulations, 2015 and RBI Guidelines. The Committee, earlier known as

Nomination Committee was reconstituted as Nomination and Remuneration Committee interms of Section
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The Audit Committee shall review the following information:  

 

1.  Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 

 

2.  Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by 

management; 

 

3.  Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors; 

 

4.  Internal Audit Reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 

 

5.  The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor shall be subject to 

review by the Audit Committee 

 

Composition of Audit Committee 

 

As on 31.03.2024, the Audit Committee of the Company comprises of one non-executive Independent 

Directors and Two non-executive Non-Independent Director, who are well qualified and financially literate. 

Following is the composition of the Audit Committee: 

 

 

Ms. Arshdeep Kaur Independent Director, Chairman 

Mrs. Renu Rawat Independent Director, Member 

Mrs. Neena Batra Non-executive Director, Member 

 

Meetings of Audit Committee and attendance during the year  2023-24 

 

8 meetings of the Audit Committee have been held during the year 2023-24 on the following dates: 

 

13.05.2023, 31.05.2023, 03-08-2023, 22-08-2023, 02-11-2023, 08-11-2023, 28-01-2024 and 08-02-2024 

 

 

The attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings during the period from 01.04.2023 till 31.03.2024 is given 

below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE  

 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors is in place in terms of Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, Listing Regulations, 2015 and RBI Guidelines. The Committee, earlier known as 

Nomination Committee was reconstituted as Nomination and Remuneration Committee in terms of Section 

Name Title No. of Meetings 

held 
No. of Meetings 

attended 
Ms. Arshdeep 

Kaur 
Independent Director and  Chairman 

of Committee 
8 8 

Mrs. Renu Rawat Independent Director 8 8 

Mrs. Neena Batra Non-executive Director 8 4 



178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee hasbeen formed witha view tocarry out the objectives as

enshrined in these respective Statutes. The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee include:-

a. To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior

Management inaccordance with the criteria laid down intheCompanies Act, 2013, Rules framed

there under from time totime, Listing Regulations, 2015 and RBI Guidelines.

b. To make recommendations to the Board about appointment and removal of Directors and Senior

Management.

c. To carry out evaluation of every Director's performance.

d. To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence ofa

Director

e. To formulate and recommend totheBoarda Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

COMPOSITION:-

Following was thecomposition of theNomination and Remuneration Committee ason 31-03-2024:

Mrs. Renu Rawat

Mrs. Neena Batra

Ms. Arshdeep Kaur

Independent Director, Chairperson

Non-Executive Director, Member

Independent Director, Member

Meetings ofNomination and Remuneration Committee andattendance during thevear 2023-24

One meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been held during the year 2023-24 on

03.08.2023

4. STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

TheStakeholders' Relationship Committee of theBoard has been constituted to look into complaints like

Transfer of Shares, non-receipt of Balance Sheet, non-receipt of Annual Report etc. The Committee is headed

by Mrs. Arshdeep Kaur, who isa Non Executive Independent Director. Mr. Ranjan Jain and Mr. Suninder

Veer Singh, Directors are other Members of the Committee. One meeting of the committee held on

22.11.2023

NAMEANDDESIGNATION OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mrs. ShikhaKataria, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company. The Compliance Officer

can be contacted at:

info@syschem.in, shikhakataria@syschem.in

TEL: 0172-5070472

COMPOSITION:

Following is the composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee:

M. Arshdeep Kaur Non-Executive Independent Director,
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178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee has been formed with a view to carry out the objectives as 

enshrined in these respective Statutes. The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee include:- 

 

a. To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 

Management in accordance with the criteria laid down in the Companies Act, 2013, Rules framed 

there under from time to time, Listing Regulations, 2015 and RBI Guidelines.  

b. To make recommendations to the Board about appointment and removal of Directors and Senior 

Management. 

c. To carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance. 

d. To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

Director 

e. To formulate and recommend to the Board a Nomination and Remuneration Policy. 

 

COMPOSITION:- 

 

Following was the composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on 31-03-2024: 

 

Mrs. Renu Rawat Independent Director, Chairperson 

Mrs. Neena Batra Non-Executive Director, Member 

Ms. Arshdeep Kaur Independent Director, Member 

 

Meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee andattendance during the year  2023-24 

 

One meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been held during the year 2023-24 on 

03.08.2023 

 

4. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Board has been constituted to look into complaints like 

Transfer of Shares, non-receipt of Balance Sheet, non-receipt of Annual Report etc. The Committee is headed 

by Mrs. Arshdeep Kaur, who is a Non Executive Independent Director. Mr. Ranjan Jain and Mr. Suninder 

Veer Singh, Directors are other Members of the Committee. One meeting of the committee held on 

22.11.2023 

 

NAME AND DESIGNATION OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER  

 

Mrs. ShikhaKataria, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company.  The Compliance Officer 

can be contacted at: 

 

info@syschem.in, shikhakataria@syschem.in 

 

TEL: 0172-5070472 

 

COMPOSITION: 

 

Following is the composition of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee: 

 

M. Arshdeep Kaur Non-Executive Independent Director, 

mailto:info@syschem.in


Mr Ranjan Jain

Mr. Suninder Veer Singh

Chairman

Executive Director, Member

Executive Director, Member

No shareholder complaint has been received by the Company during the year under review.

5. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITYCOMMITTEE

TheCorporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee has been constituted by the Board in

compliance with therequirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

i) Broad Terms ofReference

a) Formulate and recommend totheBoard,a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the

activities to be undertaken by the Company inareas or subject specified in Schedule VII of the Companies

Act, 2013;

b) Recommend andmonitor the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause

c) Monitor theCorporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time totime; and

d) Any other functions as may deem fit by the CSR Committee/Board or as may be necessitated by any

regulatory framework asamended from time totime.

ii. Composition oftheCommittee

Mrs. Renu Rawat

Mrs. Arshdeep Kaur

Mrs. Neena Batra

iii. Meetings and Attendance

Non-Executive - Independent Director

Non-Executive - Independent Director

Non-Executive - Non Independent Director

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, four meetings were held through Physical Mode and/ or

Video Conferencing as permitted by relevant SEBI Circulars and MCA Circulars read with Rule3 of the

Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 under provisions of Companies Act, 2013 on

25"March, 2024.

6. GENERAL BODYMEETINGS

(i) Location and time of Annual General Meetings, Extra-Ordinary General Meeting and Postal Ballot e-

voting held inthe last3 years:

YEAR 2021

Type of AGM

Meeting

Date

Venue

2022

AGM

2023

AGM

28'
h

August, l6
t
' September, 23’

d
day of

2021 2022 September,

2023

Village Village Village

Bargodam, Bargodam, Bargodam,

Tehsil Kalka, Tehsil Kalka, Tehsil Kalka,

Distt. Panchkula, Distt. Panchkula, Distt. Panchkula,

Haryana. Haryana. Haryana.
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Chairman 

Mr Ranjan Jain Executive Director, Member 

Mr. Suninder Veer Singh Executive Director, Member 

 

No shareholder complaint has been received by the Company during the year under review.   

 
5. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

 

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee has been constituted by the Board in 

compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

i)  Broad Terms of Reference 
 

a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the 

activities to be undertaken by the Company in areas or subject specified in Schedule VII of the Companies 

Act, 2013;  

b) Recommend and monitor the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause 

(a). 

c) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time; and  

d) Any other functions as may deem fit by the CSR Committee/Board or as may be necessitated by any 

regulatory framework as amended from time to time. 

 

ii. Composition of the Committee 

 

Mrs. Renu Rawat Non-Executive - Independent Director  

Mrs. Arshdeep Kaur Non-Executive - Independent Director 

 

Mrs. Neena Batra Non-Executive - Non Independent Director 

 

iii. Meetings and Attendance 

 
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, four meetings were held through Physical Mode and/ or 

Video Conferencing as permitted by relevant SEBI Circulars and MCA Circulars read with Rule 3 of the 

Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 under provisions of Companies Act, 2013 on 

25thMarch, 2024. 
 

6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 

(i) Location and time of Annual General Meetings, Extra-Ordinary General Meeting and Postal Ballot e-

voting held in the last 3 years: 

 

YEAR 2021 2022 2023 
Type of 

Meeting    
AGM AGM AGM 

Date 28th August, 

2021 

16th September, 

2022 

23rd day of 

September, 

2023 
Venue  Village 

Bargodam, 

Tehsil Kalka, 

Distt. Panchkula, 

Haryana. 

Village 

Bargodam, 

Tehsil Kalka, 

Distt. Panchkula, 

Haryana. 

Village 

Bargodam, 

Tehsil Kalka, 

Distt. Panchkula, 

Haryana. 



Time 4.00 PM 4:00 PM

Special YES

Resolution

Passed

YES

Also give details of EGM held during last three years.

SNO YEAR

1 Date

2 Type ofMeeting

3 Deemed Venue

4 Time

5 Special

Resolution

Passed

2021

3:30 PM

YES

2022 2022

NIL 9TH April, 2022 17,June, 2022

EGM EGM

Village Bargodam,

Tehsil Kalka,

Distt. Panchkula,

Haryana

11:30 A.M.

Yes

Details of Special resolution passed intheExtra Ordinary General Meeting

Year 2022-23

Special Resolution passed inthemeeting dated9
th

April, 2022

Village Bargodam,

Tehsil Kalka,

Distt. Panchkula,

Haryana.

11:30 P.M.

Yes

• To extend the Guarantee inrespect of the Credit facilities availed by M/S Pharmacare International,a

partnership Concern.

• To approve related Party transactions

• To approve theappointment and re-designation of Mr. Ranjan Jain, (DIN: 00635274) astheManaging

Director and payment ofRemuneration.

• To Approve theappointment and re-designation of Mr. Suninder Veer Singh, (DIN:07693557) as

Whole Time Director and payment ofRemuneration.

Special Resolution passed inthemeeting dated l7
th

June, 2022

• To Increase the Authorized Share Capital of the Company and Consequently Alteration of

Memorandum ofAssociation

• To AmendtheArticles of Association

• To approve theissuance of Equity shares on Preferential Basis.
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Also give details of EGM held during last three years. 

 

 

SNO YEAR 2021 2022 2022 

1 Date NIL 9TH April, 2022 17, June, 2022 

2 Type of Meeting    

 

EGM EGM 

3 Deemed Venue 

 

Village Bargodam, 

Tehsil Kalka, 

Distt. Panchkula, 

Haryana 

Village Bargodam, 

Tehsil Kalka, 

Distt. Panchkula, 

Haryana. 

4 Time 

 

11:30 A.M. 11:30 P.M. 

5 Special  

Resolution  

Passed 

Yes Yes 

 

Details of Special resolution passed in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting 

Year 2022-23 

Special Resolution passed in the meeting dated 9th April, 2022 

 

• To extend the Guarantee in respect of the Credit facilities availed by M/S Pharmacare International, a 

partnership Concern. 

• To approve related Party transactions 

• To approve the appointment and re-designation of Mr. Ranjan Jain, (DIN: 00635274) as the Managing 

Director and payment of Remuneration. 

• To Approve the appointment and re-designation of Mr. Suninder Veer Singh, (DIN:07693557) as 

Whole Time Director and payment of Remuneration. 

 

Special Resolution passed in the meeting dated 17th June, 2022 

 

• To Increase the Authorized Share Capital of the Company and Consequently Alteration of 

Memorandum of Association 

• To Amend the Articles of Association 

• To approve the issuance of Equity shares on Preferential Basis. 

 

 
  

Time 
 

4.00 PM 4:00 PM 3:30 PM 

Special  
Resolution  
Passed 

YES YES YES 



Details of the Postal Ballot held during last3 years.

Year 2023

Type ofMeetings Postal Ballot

• Last date of receipt of 19-04-2023

Postal Ballot Forms

• Last date of receipt of
0 07 2023

Postal Ballot Forms

• Last date of receipt of 6-01-2023

Postal Ballot Forms

Special Resolutions Passed inthePostal Ballots meeting dated 06-01-2023

• To approve the appointment of Ms. Arshdeep Kaur asIndependent Director

• To approve the appointment of Mrs. Renu Rawat asIndependent Director

Special Resolutions Passed inthePostal Ballots meeting dated 19.04.2023

• To Increase the Authorized Share Capital of the Company and Consequently Alteration of

Memorandum ofAssociation

• To AmendtheArticles of Association

Special Resolutions Passed inthePostal Ballots meeting dated 05-07-2023

• To approve and rectify related Party Transactions being Corporate Guarantee issued by the Company

onbehalf of Pharmacare International, partnership concern.

• To approve thematerial Related Party Transactions to be entered by the Company

(ii) Details of the Special Resolutions passed inthe last three Annual General Meetings

Year 2020-21

1. To AmendtheMemorandum ofAssociation.

2. To Amend Articles of Association.

3. Preferential Allotment of Convertible Warrants/Equity shares of the Company.

4. Preferential Allotment of Equity shares of the Company

5. To approve therelated party transactions

6. To Approve theremuneration of the Cost Auditor forthe Financial year ending March 31,2022

7. To consider payment ofremuneration to Mr. Ranjan Jain, the whole time director of the Company

8. To consider payment of remuneration to Mr. Suninder Veer Singh, the Managing Director of the

Company

9. To re-classify the status of Mr. Rajesh Gupta from Promoter category to Public category of the

Company.
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Details of the Postal Ballot held during last 3 years. 

 

Year  2023 

Type of Meetings Postal Ballot 

• Last date of receipt of 

Postal Ballot Forms 

• Last date of receipt of 

Postal Ballot Forms 

• Last date of receipt of 

Postal Ballot Forms 

19-04-2023 

 

05-07-2023 

 

 

6-01-2023 

   

Special Resolutions Passed in the Postal Ballots meeting dated 06-01-2023 

 

• To approve the appointment of Ms. Arshdeep Kaur as Independent Director 

• To approve the appointment of Mrs. Renu Rawat as Independent Director 

Special Resolutions Passed in the Postal Ballots meeting dated 19.04.2023 

 

• To Increase the Authorized Share Capital of the Company and Consequently Alteration of 

Memorandum of Association 

• To Amend the Articles of Association 

Special Resolutions Passed in the Postal Ballots meeting dated 05-07-2023 

 

• To approve and rectify related Party Transactions being Corporate Guarantee issued by the Company  

on behalf of Pharmacare International, partnership concern. 

• To approve the material Related Party Transactions to be entered by the Company 

 

(ii) Details of the Special Resolutions passed in the last three Annual General Meetings  

 

 

Year 2020-21 

 

 

1. To Amend the Memorandum of Association. 

2. To Amend Articles of Association. 

3. Preferential Allotment of Convertible Warrants/Equity shares of the Company. 

4. Preferential  Allotment of Equity shares of the Company 

5. To approve the related party transactions 

6. To Approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditor  for the Financial year ending March 31, 2022 

7. To consider  payment of remuneration to Mr. Ranjan Jain, the whole time director of the Company 

8. To consider  payment of remuneration to Mr. Suninder Veer Singh, the Managing Director of the 

Company 

9. To re-classify the status of Mr. Rajesh Gupta from Promoter category to Public category of the 

Company. 

 

 



Year 2021-22

1. To approve therelated party transactions.

2. To approve theremuneration of the Cost Auditors forthe Financial Year ended 2022-23.

YEAR2022-23

1. To approve material related party transactions for the Financial Year 2024-25.

2. To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31,

2024.

3. To approve and ratify the Related Party Transactions being the Corporate Guarantee issued

by the Company onbehalf of the Pharmacare International,a Partnership Concern.

8. DISCLOSURES

(i) Related Partv Transactions

The Audit Committee accords omnibus approval to Related Party Transactions which are foreseen and

repetitive in nature. The Audit Committee reviews, on a quarterly basis, the details of the Related Party

Transaction entered pursuant to the aforementioned omnibus approval.

The details of Related Party Transactions under Section 188(1) of the Act required to be disclosed under

Form AOC -2 pursuant to Section 134(3) of the Act is enclosed as Annexure D-8.

The Company hasframeda policy on determining materiality of Related Party Transaction and dealing with

Related Party Transaction. The said policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company andcanbe

accessed at the following link:http://www.syschem.in/DOWNLOAD/RPT Policy.pdf.

(ii) Details of Non-Compliances:

There was penalty imposed forlate/Non compliance with certain provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and

DisclosureRequirement) Regulations, 2015. The details of which aregiven below:

Quarter/ Regulation of SEBI

Year end (LODR) Regulations, 201

Half Regulation 23 (9)

year end

3 1
St

March, 2023

Total

Fine Levied (in

Rs.)

(Including GST@18%)

Fine Paid

Rs. 11800 Rs.

(Eleven Thousand 10800 only

Eight Hundred)

Inthis regards, company had already paid thePenalty.

(iii) Whistle Blower Policy

Rs.10800

NIL

0/sFine

Payable

The ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ cum Vigil Mechanism is in place which is reviewed by theAudit Committee on

regular basis and the text of the same is given at the end of this Corporate Governance Report. No personnel

has been denied access to the Audit Committee. The same is also available on the Website of the Company

http://www.syschem.irrDOWNLOAD/Whist1eb1ower Policy.pdf.
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Year 2021-22 

 

1. To approve the related party transactions. 

2. To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year ended 2022-23. 

YEAR 2022-23 

 

1. To approve material related party transactions for the Financial Year 2024-25. 

2. To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 

2024. 

3. To approve and ratify the Related Party Transactions being the Corporate Guarantee issued 

by the Company on behalf of the Pharmacare International, a Partnership Concern. 

 
8. DISCLOSURES 

 

(i) Related Party Transactions 

 

The Audit Committee accords omnibus approval to Related Party Transactions which are foreseen and 

repetitive in nature. The Audit Committee reviews, on a quarterly basis, the details of the Related Party 

Transaction entered pursuant to the aforementioned omnibus approval. 

 

The details of Related Party Transactions under Section 188(1) of the Act required to be disclosed under 

Form AOC - 2 pursuant to Section 134(3) of the Act is enclosed as Annexure D-8. 

 

The Company has framed a policy on determining materiality of Related Party Transaction and dealing with 

Related Party Transaction. The said policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company and can be 

accessed at the following link:http://www.syschem.in/DOWNLOAD/RPT_Policy.pdf. 

 

(ii) Details of Non-Compliances: 

 

There was penalty imposed for late/Non compliance with certain provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

DisclosureRequirement) Regulations, 2015. The details of which are given below: 

 

Quarter/ 
Year end 

Regulation of SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 

Fine Levied (in  
Rs.)  
(Including GST@18%) 

Fine Paid 
O/s Fine  
Payable 

Half  

year ended 

31st 

March, 2023 

Regulation 23 (9)  Rs. 11800 
(Eleven Thousand 
 Eight Hundred) 

Rs.  
10800 only- 

NIL 

Total  Rs.10800  

 
   

 

In this regards, company had already paid the Penalty. 

 

(iii) Whistle Blower Policy 

 

The ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ cum Vigil Mechanism is in place which is reviewed by the Audit Committee on 

regular basis and the text of the same is given at the end of this Corporate Governance Report. No personnel 

has been denied access to the Audit Committee. The same is also available on the Website of the Company 

http://www.syschem.in/DOWNLOAD/Whistleblower_Policy.pdf. 

 

http://www.syschem.in/DOWNLOAD/RPT_Policy.pdf
http://www.syschem.in/DOWNLOAD/Whistleblower_Policy.pdf


(iv) Compliance With Mandatory Requirements Of SEBI fLODR), Regulations. 2015

The Company hascomplied with all the mandatory conditions of Corporate Governance and is planning to

adopt non-mandatory requirements also ina phased manner.

(v) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The Financial Statement of Company areprepared as per the prescribed Accounting standards and reflects

“true and fair view ofthebusiness transactions in the Corporate Governance.

(vi) Reconciliation Of Share Capital Audit

A reconciliation of Share Capital Audit was carried out by a qualified practicing Company Secretary on

quarterly basis for reconciling the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)

and Central Depositary Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and thetotal Issued & Listed Capital. The Audit

inter alia confirms that the total Issued/ Paid up Capital is in agreement with the total number ofshares held

inPhysical Form andthetotal number ofdematerialized shares with NSDL& CDSL.

(vii) Code ForPrevention Of Insider Trading

The Company hasinstituteda comprehensive Code of Conduct forPrevention of Insider Trading for its

designated employees, in compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider

Trading) Regulations, 1992, as amended from time to time. After these Regulations having been amended by

SEBI in2015, the Code of Fair Disclosure and Prevention of Insider Trading Code under Securities and

Exchange Board ofIndia (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015 have been adopted and displayed

on the website of the Company www.syschem.in. These Codes laydown guidelines vide which it advises the

designated employees on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made, while dealing with the shares

of the Company andcaution them oftheconsequences of violations.

(viii) Material Subsidiaries

The Company hasno subsidiary as defined under Listing Regulations.

(vii) Disclosure Regarding Appointment Or Re-appointment Of Directors:

Mr.Suninder Veer Singh, Director of the Company retire by rotation in the ensuing Annual General Meeting

and being eligible offer himself for re-appointment. Their brief Resumes arealready given as part of the

Notice of Annual General Meeting.

RELATIONSHIP OF DIRECTORS INTER SE

• No directors are related to each other in any manner.

(vi) COMPLIANCE WITHNON-MANDATORY RE5tUIREMENTS

1. The Board

The Chairman of theCompany is an Executive Director. His office is maintained at the Company's

expense and also allowed reimbursement of expenses incurred in performance ofhisduties.

2. Shareholder Rights
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(iv)  Compliance With Mandatory Requirements Of SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015 

 

The Company has complied with all the mandatory conditions of Corporate Governance and is planning to 

adopt non-mandatory requirements also in a phased manner.  

 

(v) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment 

 

The Financial Statement of Company are prepared as per the prescribed Accounting standards and reflects 

`true and fair view of the business transactions in the Corporate Governance.  

 

 

(vi) Reconciliation Of Share Capital Audit 

 

A reconciliation of Share Capital Audit was carried out by a qualified practicing Company Secretary on 

quarterly basis for reconciling the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 

and Central Depositary Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total Issued & Listed Capital. The Audit 

inter alia confirms that the total Issued / Paid up Capital is in agreement with the total number of shares held 

in Physical Form and the total number of dematerialized shares with NSDL & CDSL.  

 

(vii) Code For Prevention Of Insider Trading 

The Company has instituted a comprehensive Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading for its 

designated employees, in compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 

Trading) Regulations, 1992, as amended from time to time. After these Regulations having been amended by 

SEBI in 2015, the Code of Fair Disclosure and Prevention of Insider Trading Code under Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015 have been adopted and displayed 

on the website of the Company www.syschem.in. These Codes lay down guidelines vide which it advises the 

designated employees on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made, while dealing with the shares 

of the Company and caution them of the consequences of violations.  

 

(viii) Material Subsidiaries 

 

The Company has no subsidiary as defined under Listing Regulations.  

 

(vii) Disclosure Regarding Appointment Or Re-appointment Of Directors: 

 

Mr.Suninder Veer Singh, Director of the Company retire by rotation in the ensuing Annual General Meeting 

and being eligible offer himself for re-appointment. Their brief Resumes are already given as part of the 

Notice of Annual General Meeting. 

 

RELATIONSHIP OF DIRECTORS INTER SE 

 

• No directors are related to each other in any manner.   

 

(vi) COMPLIANCE WITH NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS 

    

1. The Board 

 

The Chairman of the Company is an Executive Director. His office is maintained at the Company's 

expense and also allowed reimbursement of expenses incurred in performance of his duties. 

 

2. Shareholder Rights  

http://www.emeraldfin.com/


Since the Company publishes its Quarterly

Results in Newspapers (English and Hindi) having wide circulation and the results are also displayed

on the website of the Company andtheStock Exchanges, theCompany does not send any declaration

of HalfYearly performance tothe shareholders.

3. Audit Qualifications

There areno Audit qualifications on the Financial Statements of the Company fortheyear 2023-24.

4. Reporting ofInternal Auditor

At themoment, thereporting of the Internal Audit is not directly to the Audit Committee. However,

thesignificant findings of the internal audit are placed before the Audit Committee on regular basis.

(viii)Code of Conduct

(i) The Board ofDirectors has laid down Code ofConduct forall Board Members andSenior Management of

theCompany. The copy ofCode ofConduct as applicable to the Directors (including Senior Management of

theCompany) is uploaded on thewebsite of the Company www.svschem.in.

(ii) The Members oftheBoard of Directors and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance

with the Code applicable to them during the year ended March 31,2020. The Annual Report of the Company

containsa Certificate duly signed by the Director in this regard.

(ix)Board Disclosures - Risk Management

The Company manages risks as an integral part of its decision making process. The Company haslaid down

procedures to inform the Board of Directors about the Risk Management and its minimization procedures.

The Audit Committee and theBoard ofDirectors review these procedures periodically.

(x)Proceeds from Public Issues, Rights Issues, Preferential Issues, etc.

The company hasraised Rs. 318,904,000 during the year under review.-. The company hasissued and allotted

79,72,600 Equity shares on Right Issue Basis The proceeds from the Right Issue were to support the

expansion of business, general corporate purpose and working capital of the company.

s

9. Management Discussion & Analysis Report:

Management Discussion& Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report and include discussions on

various matters specified under Listing Regulations, 2015.

10. MEANS OFCOMMUNICATIONS

a. Ouarterly Results:

The Quarterly, Half yearly and Annual Results of the Company aresent to BSE Limited in

accordance with theListing Agreement. The said Results are normally published in English and Hindi

newspapers and also displayed on Company's website www.syschem.in.

b. Presentations to the Institutional Investors or to the Analvsts:
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Since the Company publishes its Quarterly 

Results in Newspapers (English and Hindi) having wide circulation and the results are also displayed 

on the website of the Company and the Stock Exchanges, the Company does not send any declaration 

of Half Yearly performance to the shareholders. 

 

3. Audit Qualifications 

 

There are no Audit qualifications on the Financial Statements of the Company for the year 2023-24. 

 

4. Reporting of Internal Auditor  

 

At the moment, the reporting of the Internal Audit is not directly to the Audit Committee. However, 

the significant findings of the internal audit are placed before the Audit Committee on regular basis. 

 

 (viii)Code of Conduct 

 

(i) The Board of Directors has laid down Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of 

the Company. The copy of Code of Conduct as applicable to the Directors (including Senior Management of 

the Company) is uploaded on the website of the Company www.syschem.in. 

 

(ii) The Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance 

with the Code applicable to them during the year ended March 31, 2020. The Annual Report of the Company 

contains a Certificate duly signed by the Director in this regard. 

 

(ix)Board Disclosures - Risk Management 

 

The Company manages risks as an integral part of its decision making process. The Company has laid down 

procedures to inform the Board of Directors about the Risk Management and its minimization procedures. 

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors review these procedures periodically. 

 

(x)Proceeds from Public Issues, Rights Issues, Preferential Issues, etc. 

 

The company has raised Rs. 318,904,000 during the year under review.-. The company has issued and allotted 

79,72,600  Equity shares on Right Issue Basis The proceeds from the Right Issue were to support the 

expansion of business, general corporate purpose and working capital of the company.  

s 

9. Management Discussion & Analysis Report: 

 

Management Discussion & Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report and include discussions on 

various matters specified under Listing Regulations, 2015.  

 

10. MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONS 

 

 

a. Quarterly Results : 

The Quarterly, Half yearly and Annual Results of the Company are sent to BSE Limited in 

accordance with the Listing Agreement. The said Results are normally published in English and Hindi 

newspapers and also displayed on Company’s website www.syschem.in.  

 

b. Presentations to the Institutional Investors or to the Analysts: 

 

http://www.syschem.in/
http://www.emeraldfin.com/


No presentations have been made toinstitutional investors or to the analysts during the year under

review.

c. BSE Corporate Compliance and Listing Centre:-

All periodical compliance filings like Shareholding Pattern, Corporate Governance Report, and

Quarterly Results etc. are filed electronically with theListing Centre of BSE. Company is also regular

in paying annual listing fee.

11. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERINFORMATION

AGM: Date, time

AGM venue

Financial year

Date ofBook closure

Dividend Payment

Date

Listing on Stock

Exchanges

Wednesday, the07'h day of August, 2024 at 3.30 P.M.

Through VC/OAVM

April 1“, 2023 toMarch 31“, 2024

01.08.2024 to 07.08.2024 (both days inclusive)

N/A

BSE Limited

ISIN INE121D01036

Sscrip Code 531173

Market Price Data: Month

High, Low during

each month ins last

financial year

Performance in

comparison to broad-

based indices such as

BSE Sensex, CRISIL

index estc.

Apr-23

May-23

Jun-23

Jul-23

Aug-23

Sep-23

Oct-23

Nov-23

Dec-23

Jan-24

Feb-24

Mar-24

High Price

49.20

53.40

44.90

42.64

62.70

69.50

58.00

54.90

57.30

73.90

64.98

60.08

43

Low Price

39.ll

40.73

36.37

36.32

40.50

50.50

44. 19

48.02

47.58

48.55

55:00

54.20

43 
 

No presentations have been made to institutional investors or to the analysts during the year under 

review. 

 
c. BSE Corporate Compliance and Listing Centre:- 

 

All periodical compliance filings like Shareholding Pattern, Corporate Governance Report, and 

Quarterly Results etc. are filed electronically with the Listing Centre of BSE. Company is also regular 

in paying annual listing fee. 

 

11. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION   

 

AGM : Date, time Wednesday, the 07th day of August, 2024 at 3.30 P.M. 
AGM venue Through VC/OAVM 
Financial year April 1st,  2023 to March 31st, 2024 
Date of Book closure 01.08.2024 to 07.08.2024 (both days inclusive) 
Dividend Payment 

Date 
N/A 

Listing on Stock 

Exchanges 
BSE Limited 

ISIN INE121D01036 
Sscrip Code 531173 
Market Price Data: 

High, Low during 

each month ins last 

financial year   

Month High Price Low Price 

Apr-23 49.20 39.11 

May-23 53.40 40.73 

Jun-23 44.90 36.37 

Jul-23 42.64 36.32 

Aug-23 62.70 40.50 

Sep-23 69.50 50.50 

Oct-23 58.00 44.19 

Nov-23 54.90 48.02 

Dec-23 57.30 47.58 

Jan-24 73.90 48.55 

Feb-24 64.98 55:00 

Mar-24 60.08 54.20 
 

Performance in 

comparison to broad-

based indices such as 

BSE Sensex, CRISIL 

index estc. 
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Chart Title

■ Series1 ■ Series2

Beetal Financial& Computer Services Pvt. Ltd ,Beetal House, 99, Madangir

behind Local Shopping Centre, Near Dada Harsukh DassMandir, New Delhi,

110 062

To expedite the share transfer process in the physical segment, the process is

undertaken by Common Registry M/s Beetal Financial & Computer Services

Pvt. Ltd, New Delhi. Share Transfers are processed and approved by them and

taken note of by Share Transfer Committee, i.e. Stakeholders' Relationship

Committee. The said Committee of the Company meets on regular basis to

review the work of Transfer, transmission and issue of duplicate Share

Certificates etc. The Equity Shares of the Company aretraded in dematerialized

form only.

Presently, the share transfers, which are received in physical form, are

processed and the Share Certificates returned withina period of 15 days from

thedate of receipt by the RTA, subject to documents being valid and complete

in all respects.

All requests for Dematerialization of Shares are processed and the confirmation

is given to the Depositories within 15 days by RTA subject to documents being

valid and complete in all respects. Grievances received from Members andother

miscellaneous correspondence on change of address, mandates etc. are

processed by the Registrar within 15 days.

Liquidity:-99.24%ofthe shareholding of the Company have been dematerialized

as on 31.03.2024 and there is sufficient liquidity in the stock.

The Compliance Officer, SCO No. -825, 1" Floor, NAC, Mani Majra

Chandigarh.

E-mail: info@syschem.in, shikhakataria@syschem.in

(a) Distribution of Shareholding (No. of Shares) as on March 31,2024 is as under :-

No. of Shares No. of % of Total No. of Shares % ofHolding

Shareholders Shareholders

1 — 5000

5001 — 10000

11248 80.677

1197 8.586

44

1453034

998339

3.6451

2.5044

44 
 

 
Registrar and 

Transfer Agents 
Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pvt. Ltd ,Beetal House, 99, Madangir 

behind Local Shopping Centre, Near Dada Harsukh DassMandir, New Delhi,  - 

110 062 
Share Transfer 

System 
To expedite the share transfer process in the physical segment, the process is 

undertaken by Common Registry M/s Beetal Financial & Computer Services 

Pvt. Ltd, New Delhi. Share Transfers are processed and approved by them and 

taken note of by Share Transfer Committee, i.e. Stakeholders’ Relationship 

Committee. The said Committee of the Company meets on regular basis to 

review the work of Transfer, transmission and issue of duplicate Share 

Certificates etc. The Equity Shares of the Company are traded in dematerialized 

form only. 
 
Presently, the share transfers, which are received in physical form, are 

processed and the Share Certificates returned within a period of 15 days from 

the date of receipt by the RTA, subject to documents being valid and complete 

in all respects.  

 
All requests for Dematerialization of Shares are processed and the confirmation 

is given to the Depositories within 15 days by RTA subject to documents being 

valid and complete in all respects. Grievances received from Members and other 

miscellaneous correspondence on change of address, mandates etc. are 

processed by the Registrar within 15 days. 

 
Dematerialization of 

shares  
and liquidity   

Liquidity:-99.24%of the shareholding of the Company have been dematerialized 

as on 31.03.2024 and there is sufficient liquidity in the stock.  

Address for 

correspondence 
The Compliance Officer, SCO No. -825, 1st Floor, NAC, Mani Majra 

Chandigarh. 
E-mail: info@syschem.in, shikhakataria@syschem.in 

 
 

(a) Distribution of Shareholding (No. of Shares) as on March 31, 2024 is as under :- 

No. of Shares No. of 

Shareholders 
% of  
Shareholders 

Total No. of Shares % of Holding 

  1       –   5000 11248 80.677 1453034 3.6451 
5001   –  10000 1197   8.586   998339 2.5044 
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10001 — 20000

20001 30000

30001 — 40000

40001 50000

50001 — 100000

100001 and above

Total

612 4.390

233 1.671

117 0.839

97 0.696

187 1.341

251 1.800

Shareholding Pattern as on 31" March, 2024:-

Category

Promoters

Institutional Investors

Mutual Funds & UTI

Banks, Financial Institutions and

Insurance Companies

FII's

Others

Private Corporate Bodies

Indian Public

NRIs/OCBs

HUF

Clearing Members

932519

602355

419558

460138

1406878

33590170

No. ofShares held

12. Total Fees for all services paid by the listed and its subsidiaries.

The detail of payment oftotal fees to the Statutory Auditor is as under:

Statutory Audit (Including Tax 2,50,000

Audit)

Total

13. CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

2,50,000

2.3393

1.5111

1.0525

1.1543

3.5293

84.264

10

13314

109

236

273

0

In terms of the requirements of SEBI (LODR), 2015, the Director and the CFO have submitted necessary

certificate to the Board ofDirectors stating the particulars specified under thesaid Clause. The Certificate has

been reviewed by theAudit Committee and taken on record by the Board ofDirectors.

14. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

TheCompany hasno subsidiary.

15. FAMILIARISATIONPROGRAMME

Your Company followsa structured orientation and familiarization programme through various programs/

presentations for Independent Directors witha view to update them on the Company's policies and

procedures ona regular basis. Periodic presentations are made at the Board Meetings on Company's strategy,

business model, operations, service and product offerings, markets, organization structure, finance, human

resources, technology, quality, facilities and risk management and such other areas as may arise from time to
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10001   –  20000 612 4.390 932519 2.3393 
20001   –  30000 233 1.671 602355 1.5111 
30001   –  40000 117 0.839 419558 1.0525 
40001 – 50000 97 0.696 460138 1.1543 
50001  – 100000 187 1.341 1406878 3.5293 
100001 and above 251   1.800 33590170 84.264 
Total     

 

Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2024:- 

 

Category   No.  of Shares held 

Promoters   10 

Institutional Investors - 

Mutual Funds & UTI - 

Banks, Financial Institutions and 

Insurance Companies 

- 

FII’s - 

Others 13314 

Private Corporate Bodies 109 

Indian Public  

NRIs/OCBs 236 

HUF 273 

Clearing Members 0 

 

12. Total Fees for all services paid by the listed and its subsidiaries. 

 

 The detail of payment of total fees to the Statutory Auditor is as under: 

 

 

  

13. CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION 

 

In terms of the requirements of SEBI (LODR), 2015, the Director and the CFO have submitted necessary 

certificate to the Board of Directors stating the particulars specified under the said Clause. The Certificate has 

been reviewed by the Audit Committee and taken on record by the Board of Directors.  

 

14. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

 

The Company has no subsidiary.  

 

15. FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME 

 

Your Company follows a structured orientation and familiarization programme through various programs / 

presentations for Independent Directors with a view to update them on the Company’s policies and 

procedures on a regular basis. Periodic presentations are made at the Board Meetings on Company’s strategy, 

business model, operations, service and product offerings, markets, organization structure, finance, human 

resources, technology, quality, facilities and risk management and such other areas as may arise from time to 

Statutory Audit (Including  Tax 

Audit) 

2,50,000 

Total 2,50,000 



time. The details of familiarization programme have been posted on the website of the Company under the

web link http://www.syschem.in/DOWNLOAD/Familiarization Policy.pdf.
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time. The details of familiarization programme have been posted on the website of the Company under the 

web link http://www.syschem.in/DOWNLOAD/Familiarization_Policy.pdf. 
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1. General

VIGIL MECHANISM CUM WHISLTE BLOWERPOLICY

Syschem (India) Limited (the Company) expects its Directors, Officers, Employees, and other representatives

to observe high standards of business and personal ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities. As

employees and representatives of the Company, we must practice honesty and integrity in fulfilling our

responsibilities and comply with all applicable laws and regulations.

Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule7 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its

Powers) Rules, 2014 mandates thefollowing classes of companies toconstitutea vigil mechanism

TEvery Listed Company;

TEvery other Company which accepts deposits from thepublic;

TEvery Company which hasborrowed money from banks and public financial institutions in excess of Rs. 50

crores.

Further, Listing Regulations, 20l5provides fora mandatory requirement for all listed companies toestablisha

mechanism called the ‘Whistleblower Policy’ for Directors and Employees to report concerns of unethical

behaviour, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company's Code ofConduct orEthics Policy.

2. Definitions

The definitions of some ofthekeyterms used inthis Policy are given below.

a. “Audit Committee” means theAudit Committee constituted by the Board ofDirectors of the Company in

accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and read with Listing Regulations, 2015

b. “Employee” means every employee of the Company including the Directors in the employment of the

Company.

e. “Protected Disclosure” means any communication made ingood faith that discloses or demonstrates

information that may evidence unethical or improper activity.

c. “Whistleblower” means an employee or director makinga Protected Disclosure under this Policy.

3. Reporting Responsibility

It is the responsibility of all directors, officers, and employees toreport Wrongful Conduct inaccordance with

this Whistleblower Policy.

4. Wrongful Conduct

“Wrongful Conduct” is defined in this Whistleblower Policy to includesa serious violation of Company's

policy;a violation of applicable state and federal law; or the use of Company's property, resources, or

authority for personal gain or other non organization-related purpose except as provided under thepolicy

This definition of Wrongful Conduct is not intended to be an exclusive listing of the illegal or improper

activity encompassed by theWhistleblower Policy. Rather, the Whistleblower Policy is intended to serve asa

means ofreporting all serious improprieties that potentially impact the integrity and effective operation of the

Company.

5. No Retaliation

No Director, Officer, or Employee who in good faith reports Wrongful Conduct will suffer harassment,

retaliation or adverse employment consequence. Any Director, officer, or employee who retaliates against

anyone who has reported Wrongful Conduct in good faith is subject to discipline up to and including

termination of employment orremoval from theboard or directors, as applicable. This Whistleblower Policy

4747 
 

VIGIL MECHANISM CUM WHISLTE BLOWER POLICY 

 

1. General 

 

Syschem (India) Limited (the Company) expects its Directors, Officers, Employees, and other representatives 

to observe high standards of business and personal ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities. As 

employees and representatives of the Company, we must practice honesty and integrity in fulfilling our 

responsibilities and comply with all applicable laws and regulations. 

 

Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its 

Powers) Rules, 2014 mandates the following classes of companies to constitute a vigil mechanism – 

Every Listed Company; 

Every other Company which accepts deposits from the public; 

Every Company which has borrowed money from banks and public financial institutions in excess of Rs. 50 

crores. 

 

Further, Listing Regulations, 2015provides for a mandatory requirement for all listed companies to establish a 

mechanism called the ‘Whistleblower Policy’ for Directors and Employees to report concerns of unethical 

behaviour, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. 

 

2. Definitions 

 

The definitions of some of the key terms used in this Policy are given below. 

 

a. “Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company in 

accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and read with Listing Regulations, 2015 

b. “Employee” means every employee of the Company including the Directors in the employment of the 

Company. 

e. “Protected Disclosure” means any communication made in good faith that discloses or demonstrates 

information that may evidence unethical or improper activity. 

c. “Whistleblower” means an employee or director making a Protected Disclosure under this Policy. 

 

3. Reporting Responsibility 

 

It is the responsibility of all directors, officers, and employees to report Wrongful Conduct in accordance with 

this Whistleblower Policy. 

 

4. Wrongful Conduct 

 

“Wrongful Conduct” is defined in this Whistleblower Policy to includes a serious violation of Company’s 

policy; a violation of applicable state and federal law; or the use of Company’s property, resources, or 

authority for personal gain or other non organization-related purpose except as provided under the policy 

This definition of Wrongful Conduct is not intended to be an exclusive listing of the illegal or improper 

activity encompassed by the Whistleblower Policy. Rather, the Whistleblower Policy is intended to serve as a 

means of reporting all serious improprieties that potentially impact the integrity and effective operation of the 

Company. 

 

5.  No Retaliation 

 

No Director, Officer, or Employee who in good faith reports Wrongful Conduct will suffer harassment, 

retaliation or adverse employment consequence. Any Director, officer, or employee who retaliates against 

anyone who has reported Wrongful Conduct in good faith is subject to discipline up to and including 

termination of employment or removal from the board or directors, as applicable. This Whistleblower Policy 



is intended to encourage and enable employees and others to raise serious concerns within the Company prior

to seeking resolution outside the Company.

6. Reporting Wrongful Conduct

Syschem (India) Limited encourages its Directors, Officers, and Employees toshare their questions, concerns,

suggestions, or complaints with someone who can address them properly. Any Director, officer, or employee

may report Wrongful Conduct to theExecutive Director or the Chairman oftheBoard of Directors/ Audit

committee. Ifthe Wrongful Conduct implicates one or both of the Executive Director or the Chairman ofthe

Board ofDirectors/ Audit Committee, or if the reporting individual is not comfortable speaking with or not

satisfied with response of the foregoing individuals, the issue may be reported to any member oftheBoard of

Directors. The Executive Director, Chairman of theBoard of Directors, and all members oftheBoard of

Directors to whoma report of Wrongful Conduct is made arerequired to immediately advise the full Board of

Directors of such report of Wrongful Conduct.

7. Acting inGood Faith

Anyone filinga complaint of Wrongful Conduct must be acting in good faith and have reasonable grounds for

believing the information disclosed indicates Wrongful Conduct. Any allegations that prove not to be

substantiated and which prove to have been made maliciously or knowingly to be false will be viewed asa

serious disciplinary offense.

8. Confidentiality

Reports of Wrongful Conduct or suspected Wrongful Conduct may be submitted ona confidential basis by

the complainant or may be submitted anonymously. Reports of Wrongful Conduct or suspected Wrongful

Conduct will be kept confidential to the extent possible, consistent with the need to conduct an adequate

investigation.

9. Handling ofReported Wrongful Conduct

A representative of the Board of Directors will notify the sender and acknowledge receipt of the reported

Wrongful Conduct or suspected Wrongful Conduct within five business days, unless such report was

submitted anonymously. All reports will be promptly investigated and appropriate corrective action will be

taken ifwarranted by the investigation.

10. Retention of documents

All Protected Disclosures in writing or documented along with the results of investigation relating thereto

shall be retained by the Company fora minimum period of seven years.

11. Amendment

The Company reserves its right to amend ormodify this Policy in whole or in part, at any time without

assigning any reason whatsoever. However, no such amendment or modification will be binding on the

Employees and Directors unless the same is notified to the Employees and Directors in writing.
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is intended to encourage and enable employees and others to raise serious concerns within the Company prior 

to seeking resolution outside the Company. 

 

6.  Reporting Wrongful Conduct 

 

Syschem (India) Limited encourages its Directors, Officers, and Employees to share their questions, concerns, 

suggestions, or complaints with someone who can address them properly. Any Director, officer, or employee 

may report Wrongful Conduct to the Executive Director or the Chairman of the Board of Directors / Audit 

committee. If the Wrongful Conduct implicates one or both of the Executive Director or the Chairman of the 

Board of Directors / Audit Committee, or if the reporting individual is not comfortable speaking with or not 

satisfied with response of the foregoing individuals, the issue may be reported to any member of the Board of 

Directors. The Executive Director, Chairman of the Board of Directors, and all members of the Board of 

Directors to whom a report of Wrongful Conduct is made are required to immediately advise the full Board of 

Directors of such report of Wrongful Conduct. 

 

7. Acting in Good Faith 

 

Anyone filing a complaint of Wrongful Conduct must be acting in good faith and have reasonable grounds for 

believing the information disclosed indicates Wrongful Conduct. Any allegations that prove not to be 

substantiated and which prove to have been made maliciously or knowingly to be false will be viewed as a 

serious disciplinary offense. 

 

8. Confidentiality 

 

Reports of Wrongful Conduct or suspected Wrongful Conduct may be submitted on a confidential basis by 

the complainant or may be submitted anonymously. Reports of Wrongful Conduct or suspected Wrongful 

Conduct will be kept confidential to the extent possible, consistent with the need to conduct an adequate 

investigation. 

 

9.  Handling of Reported Wrongful Conduct 

 

A representative of the Board of Directors will notify the sender and acknowledge receipt of the reported 

Wrongful Conduct or suspected Wrongful Conduct within five business days, unless such report was 

submitted anonymously. All reports will be promptly investigated and appropriate corrective action will be 

taken if warranted by the investigation. 

 

10. Retention of documents 

 

All Protected Disclosures in writing or documented along with the results of investigation relating thereto 

shall be retained by the Company for a minimum period of seven years. 

 

11. Amendment 

 

The Company reserves its right to amend or modify this Policy in whole or in part, at any time without 

assigning any reason whatsoever. However, no such amendment or modification will be binding on the 

Employees and Directors unless the same is notified to the Employees and Directors in writing. 

 

 

 

  



DECLARATION OF THE DIRECTOR

This is to certify that the Company haslaid down code of conduct for all Board Members and Senior

Management of theCompany and thecopies of the same areuploaded on the website of the Company

www.syschem.in.Further certified that the Members of theBoard of Directors and Senior Management

personnel have affirmed having complied with the code applicable to them during the year ended March 31,

2024.

Place: CHANDIGARH

Date: 06.05.2024
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Sd/-

Ranjan Jain

Managing Director
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DECLARATION OF THE DIRECTOR 

 

 

This is to certify that the Company has laid down code of conduct for all Board Members and Senior 

Management of the Company and the copies of the same are uploaded on the website of the Company 

www.syschem.in.Further certified that the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management 

personnel have affirmed having complied with the code applicable to them during the year ended March 31, 

2024.  

 

 

   

 

 

         Sd/- 

Place: CHANDIGARH       Ranjan Jain 

Date: 06.05.2024       Managing Director 

  

http://www.emeraldfin.com/


CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

TheMembers of

Syschem (India)Limited

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Syschem

(India)Limited (“the Company”) forthe Financial Year ended 3lstMarch, 2024, as perthe relevant

provisions of Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Listing Obligations andDisclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 as referred to in Regulation 15 (2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regu1ations, 2015.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management of

theCompany. Our examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as

adopted by the Company forensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is

neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Inouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given tous, and the

representations made by theDirectors and the Management, we certify that the Company hascomplied

with the conditions of Corporate Governance as mentioned in the above mentioned Securities and

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as

applicable.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company

noroftheefficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

Company.

Assumptions & Limitation of scope and Review:

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information

furnished, are the responsibilities of the management ofthelisted entity.

2. Our responsibility is to certify based upon ourexamination of relevant documents and information.

This is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion.
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

To  

The Members of 

Syschem (India)Limited 

 

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Syschem 

(India)Limited (“the Company”) for the Financial Year ended 31stMarch, 2024, as perthe relevant 

provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations andDisclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 as referred to in Regulation 15 (2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015. 

 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management of 

the Company. Our examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as 

adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is 

neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given tous, and the 

representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied 

with the conditions of Corporate Governance as mentioned in the above mentioned Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 

applicable. 

 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

 

Assumptions & Limitation of scope and Review: 

 

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information 

furnished, are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity. 

2. Our responsibility is to certify based upon our examination of relevant documents and information. 

This is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion. 



3. We have notverified the correctness and appropriateness of financial Records and Books ofAccounts

ofthelisted entity.

4. This Report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 34 read with

Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and is

neither an assurance as to the future viability of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness

with which themanagement hasconducted theaffairs of the listed entity.

Place: Chandigarh

Date: 04.07.2024

UDIN: F00590lF000670818
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KANWALJIT SINGH THANEWAL

FCSNo.5901

C P No.: 5870

Peer review Cert No. 2319/2022
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3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial Records and Books of Accounts 

of the listed entity. 

4. This Report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 34 read with 

Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and is 

neither an assurance as to the future viability of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the listed entity. 

 

 

Place: Chandigarh         

Date: 04.07.2024 

UDIN: F005901F000670818  
 
 
 

 

       KANWALJIT SINGH THANEWAL 

         FCS No. 5901 

C P No.: 5870 

Peer review Cert No. 2319/2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CEO/CFO DECLARATION

TheBoard ofDirectors of,

Syschem (India) Limited,

Village Bargodam, Tehsil Kalka,

DisttPanchkula

Haryana.

Date: 06.05.2024

We hereby certify that for the financial year ending 31-03-2024, on the basis of review of Financial

Statements and the Cash Flow Statement forthe year and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1. These Statements of Syschem (India) Limited forthe Financial year ending 31-03-2024, do

not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements

that might be misleading;

2. These statements together presenta true and fair view of theCompany's affairs and are in

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

3. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the

Company during the year which arefraudulent, illegal or volatile of the Company's code of

conduct.

4. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial

reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company

pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Statutory Auditors and the

Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of

which we areaware and we have taken steps from time totime torectify these deficiencies.

5. We further certify that we have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:

a) there have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during

the year;

b) there have been no significant changes inaccounting policies during the year and

c) there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the

involvement therein, if any, of the management oran employee havinga significant role

in the Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

Sd/-

(Sanjeev Agrawal)

CFO
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Sd/-

(Ranjan Jain)

Managing Director
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CEO/CFO DECLARATION 

 

 

The Board of Directors of,       Date: 06.05.2024 

Syschem (India) Limited, 

Village Bargodam, Tehsil Kalka,  

DisttPanchkula 

Haryana. 

 

 

We hereby certify that for the financial year ending 31-03-2024, on the basis of review of Financial 

Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 

1. These Statements of Syschem (India) Limited for the Financial year ending 31-03-2024, do 

not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 

that might be misleading; 

 

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

 

3. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the Company’s code of 

conduct.   

 

4. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 

reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company 

pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Statutory Auditors and the 

Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of 

which we are aware and we have taken steps from time to time to rectify these deficiencies. 

 

5. We further certify that we have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that: 

 

a) there have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during 

the year; 

b) there have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and  

c) there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the 

involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role 

in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

 

 

 

Sd/-       Sd/- 

  (Sanjeev Agrawal )     (Ranjan Jain) 

       CFO      Managing Director 

 

 

 

 

  



S.NO

DISCLOSURE OF PARAA OF SCHEDULE V OF LISTINGAGREEMENT

InAccount of Disclosure amount attheyear end and themaximum amount of

loans/advances investment outstanding during theyear

Holding Company • Loan and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries by

name andaccount.

• Loan and advances in the nature of loans to associates by

name andamount.

• Loans advance inthe nature of loans to firms/companies in

which directors are interested by name andamount: NA

2. Subsidiary Company • Some disclosures as applicable to the parent Company in

theaccounts of subsidiary Company: NA

3. Holding Company • Investments by the loanee in the shares of parent company

and subsidiary company, when company hasmadea loan or

advance inthenature of loan.

For details of transactions of the Company with thepersons or entity belonging to the Promoters/promoters

group which hold(s) 10% or more shareholding in the Company, if any refer to ‘Related Party” transactions

“ provided inthenotes to Financial statements.

Place: Chandigarh

53

S/d

Ranjan Jain

DIN: 00635274
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DISCLOSURE OF PARA A OF SCHEDULE V OF LISTING AGREEMENT 

 

S.NO In Account of  Disclosure amount at the year end and the maximum amount of 

loans/advances investment outstanding during the year 

1 Holding Company • Loan and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries by 

name and account. 

• Loan and advances in the nature of loans to associates by 

name and amount. 

• Loans advance in the nature of loans to firms/companies in 

which directors are interested  by name and amount: NA 

2. Subsidiary Company • Some disclosures as applicable to the parent Company in 

the accounts of subsidiary Company: NA 

3. Holding Company • Investments by the loanee in the shares of parent company 

and subsidiary company, when company has made a loan or 

advance in the nature of loan. 

 

For  details  of transactions  of the Company with the persons or entity belonging to the Promoters/promoters 

group which hold(s) 10% or more shareholding in the Company, if any  refer to ‘Related Party”  transactions 

“ provided  in the notes  to Financial  statements. 

 

Place: Chandigarh       S/d 

         Ranjan Jain 

         DIN: 00635274  

https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do


To,

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and ScheduleV ParaC clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure RequirementsJ Regulations, 2015)

The Members of

Syschem (India) Limited,

VillBargodam, Tehsil Kalka,

Distt Panchkula,

Haryana.

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of

Syschem (India) Limited having CIN: L24219HR1993PLC032195and having registered office at VillBargodam, Tehsil

Kalka, District Panchkula, Harvana(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company

forthepurpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with ScheduleV Para-C Sub

clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations

furnished to us by the Company& its officers, We hereby certify that none ofthe Directors on the Board ofthe

Company asstated below forthe Financial Year ended on 31'tMarch, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified

from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. NameoftheDirector

1. Mr. Suninder Veer Singh

2. Ms. Arshdeep Kaur

3. Ms. RenuRawat

4. Ms. NeenaBatra

5. Mr. Ranjan Jain

DIN

07693557

08056826

08161739

07846399

00635274

Date ofappointment in the

company

30.12.2016

02.11.2022

02.11.2022

16.06.2017

13.01.2015

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the

management oftheCompany. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This

certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company noroftheefficiency or effectiveness

with which the management hasconducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Chandigarh

Date: 04.07.2024

UDIN: F00590lF000670642
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
 

To, 
 
The Members of  
Syschem (India) Limited, 
VillBargodam, Tehsil Kalka, 

Distt Panchkula, 

Haryana. 

 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 
Syschem (India) Limited having CIN: L24219HR1993PLC032195and having registered office at VillBargodam, Tehsil 
Kalka, District Panchkula, Haryana(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company 
for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub 
clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on 31stMarch, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 
 

Sr. No. 
 

Name of the Director DIN Date of appointment in the 
company 

1. Mr. Suninder Veer Singh 07693557 30.12.2016 

2. Ms. Arshdeep Kaur 08056826 02.11.2022 

3. Ms. RenuRawat 08161739 02.11.2022 

4. Ms. NeenaBatra 07846399 16.06.2017 

5. Mr. Ranjan Jain 00635274 13.01.2015 

 
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

Place: Chandigarh         

Date: 04.07.2024 

UDIN: F005901F000670642  
 
 

 

       KANWALJIT SINGH THANEWAL 

         FCS No. 5901 

C P No.: 5870 

Peer review Cert No. 2319/2022 

 



Ref: SIL/204-25/25

To

IMPACT OF AUDIT QUALIFICATIONS

TheManager

Department ofCorporate Relationship

BSE Limited

25h Floor P. J. Towers, Dalai Street

Mumbai -400 001.

Subject: Impact ofAudit Qualification for the Financial Year 2023-24

Dear Sir/Ma’am,

Pursuant to the SEBI Notification No SEBI/ LAD-NRO/GN2016-17/001 DatedMay 26th, 2016 and Circular

No CIR/CFD/CMD/56/2016 Dated May 27,2016 issued by the Securities& Exchange Board ofIndia (SEBI)

on Disclosure of the Impact of Audit qualifications by the Listed Entities prescribed in Schedule VII

read with Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 of SEBI (LODR), (Amendment), Regulations, 2016. We confirm

and undertake that there is no impact of Audit Qualifications for the financial result of the company March

31st, 2024.

You are requested to take it on record.

Thanking You

Yours Faithfully

Place: Chandigarh

Date: 04.07.2024

55

S/d

Ranjan Jain

Managing Director

DIN: 00635274
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IMPACT OF AUDIT QUALIFICATIONS 

 

Ref: SIL/204-25/25 

To 

The Manager 
Department of Corporate Relationship 
BSE Limited 
25th Floor P. J. Towers, Dalal Street 
Mumbai -400 001. 

 

Subject: Impact of Audit Qualification for the Financial Year 2023-24 

 

Dear Sir/Ma`am, 

 

Pursuant to the SEBI Notification No SEBI/ LAD-NRO/GN2016-17/001 DatedMay 26th, 2016 and Circular 

No CIR/CFD/CMD/56/2016 Dated May 27, 2016 issued by the Securities& Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 

on Disclosure of the Impact of Audit qualifications by the Listed Entities prescribed in Schedule VII 

read with Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 of SEBI (LODR), (Amendment), Regulations, 2016. We confirm 

and undertake that there is no impact of Audit Qualifications for the financial result of the company March 

31st, 2024. 

 

You are requested to take it on record. 

 

 

Thanking You 

Yours Faithfully 

 

 

 

 

Place: Chandigarh       S/d 

Date: 04.07.2024       Ranjan Jain 

         Managing Director 

         DIN: 00635274 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do


T A V & CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

HOUSE NO.3 130-P, SECTOR 22-D, CHANDIGARH —160022

(M)98880 - 55545, email: cavarinder.chauhan@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

TOTHEMEMBERS OF

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED ("the

Company") which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2024, the statement of profit

and loss including other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement

of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a

summary ofmaterial accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred

to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us,

the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013

("the Act") in the manner so required and givea true and faire view in conformity with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind

AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the

company as atMarch 31,2024, its losses (financial performance including other comprehensive

income), and its cash flows and the changes in equity, for the year ended on that date.

Basis forOpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (SAs) specified under

section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013. Our responsibilities under those standards are

further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statement section

of our report. We are independent ofthe company in accordance with the code ofethics issued

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are

 

 

  S T A V & CO 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

HOUSE NO. 3130-P, SECTOR 22-D, CHANDIGARH – 160022 

(M) 98880 - 55545, email: cavarinder.chauhan@gmail.com 

 

  
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF  

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED (''the 

Company") which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2024, the statement of profit 

and loss including other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement 

of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 

summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 

to as “the financial statements”). 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, 

the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 

("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and faire view in conformity with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 

AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the 

company as at March 31, 2024, its losses (financial performance including other comprehensive 

income), and its cash flows and the changes in equity, for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (SAs) specified under 

section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013. Our responsibilities under those standards are 

further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statement section 

of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the code of ethics issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 



relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provision of the Companies Act, 2013

and theRules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance

with these requirements and the Code ofEthics. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to providea basis for our unqualified opinion on the

financial statement.

Key Audit Matters

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information other than the financial statement and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board ofDirector is responsible forthe preparation of the other information. The

other information comprise the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures

toBoard's Report but does notinclude the financial statement and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statement does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our report of the financial statements our responsibility is to read the other

information and in doing so, consider whether, the other information is materially inconsistent

with the financial statement or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or

otherwise appears tobe materially misstated.

If, based on thework we have performed, we conclude that there isa material misstatement of

this other information, we are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

Responsibility of Management forFinancial Statements

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matter stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements

that givea true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flow of the company in accordance with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standard

 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 

with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our unqualified opinion on the 

financial statement. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

 
Information other than the financial statement and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Director is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 

other information comprise the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures 

to Board's Report but does not include the financial statement and our auditor's report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statement does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our report of the financial statements our responsibility is to read the other 

information and in doing so, consider whether, the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the financial statement or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information, we are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard. 

 

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements 

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matter stated in section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements 

that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flow of the company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standard 



(IndAS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the

assets ofthe company and forpreventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection

and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making

judgment and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and

maintenance ofadequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and

presentation of the financial statement that givea true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due tofraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management in responsible for assessing the company's

ability to continue asa going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matter related to going concern

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the company ortocease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board ofdirectors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting

process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objective are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement asa

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance,

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detecta

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due tofraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to providea basis for
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•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
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our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(I) of the

Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether

the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made bymanagement.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use ofthe going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whethera material uncertainty

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's

ability to continue asa going concern. If we conclude thata material uncertainty exists,

we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to

continue asa going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events ina manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance witha statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statement that individually or in

aggregate make it probable that the economic decision ofa reasonably knowledgeable user of

the financial statement may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative

factor in (i) planning the scope ofour audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statement.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best

of our knowledge and belief were necessary forthe purposes ofour audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the

company sofaras it appears from our examination ofthose books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule7 of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st

March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on 31st March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of

section 164(2) of the Act.

f) with respect to adequacy oftheinternal financial controls over financial reporting of the

company and theoperating effectiveness of such control, refer to our separate report in

"Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and

operative effectiveness of the Company's internal financial control over financial

reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with the requirement ofthe section 197(16) of the Act, as amended;
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reporting.  
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with the requirement of the section 197(16) of the Act, as amended; 



-Inouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given

to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in

accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company hasdisclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in

its Ind AS Financial Statements.

ii) The company didnothave any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by theCompany.

iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any

other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or

entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of

the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by

the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding

Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the

Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified

in any manner whatsoever by oron behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)

or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come toournotice that has caused us to

 

  -In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 

accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors ) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 

its Ind AS Financial Statements.  

ii) The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 

other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or 

entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by 

the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding 

Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 

in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 

or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 



believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided

under (a)and (b)above, contain any material misstatement.

v) The Company hasneither declared not paid any dividend during the year.

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an

accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of

recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same hasoperated throughout the year for

all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course ofour audit

we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

As provision to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from

April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g)ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements forrecord retention

is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,2024.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub- section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in

the Annexure "B"a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs3 and4 ofthe order, to the

extent applicable.

DATED: 06.05.2024

PLACE: CHANDIGARH

ForS T A V & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 024510C)

(CA VARINDER SINGH)

PARTNER

M.No.542573

UDIN: 24 542573 BKELE B6362
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For S T A V & CO. 

Chartered Accountants      

      (Firm Registration No. 024510C)  

 

  

       (CA VARINDER SINGH) 

DATED : 06.05.2024                 PARTNER 

PLACE : CHANDIGARH             M. No. 542573 

            UDIN : 24 542573 BKELE B6362 

      

  



ANNEXURE A"TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred in paragraph 1(f) under "Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements' section

of our report to the members ofSYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED ofeven date;

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause

(i) of Sub-section3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (’the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SYSCHEM (INDIA)

LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial

statements ofthe Company fortheyear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal

financial controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting ("IFCOFR") criteria

established by the Company considering the essential components ofinternal control stated in

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the

“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of

its business, including adherence to respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its

assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness ofthe

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required

under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over

financial reporting based on ouraudit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the guidance

note on the Audit of Internal financial control over financial reporting ("the Guidance Note"),

issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standard on Auditing prescribed

under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
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Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained

and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ofthe

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our

audit of IFCOFR included obtaining an understanding of IFCOFR, assessing the risk thata

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on theauditor's

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due tofraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence, we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to providea

basis forour audit opinion on the Company's IFCOFR.

Meaning ofInternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's IFCOFR isa process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements forexternal purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCOFR includes

those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company; (2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because oftheinherent limitations of IFCOFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper

management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and

not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCOFR tofuture periods are subject

to the risk that IFCOFR may become inadequate because ofchanges in conditions, or that the

degree ofcompliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating

effectively as at March 31,2024, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria

established by the Company considering the essential components ofinternal control stated in

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

DATED: 06.05.2024

PLACE: CHANDIGARH

ForS T A V & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 024510C)

(CA VARINDER SINGH)

PARTNER

M.No.542573
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For S T A V & CO. 

Chartered Accountants      

                                                               (Firm Registration No. 024510C)  

 

  

                   (CA VARINDER SINGH) 

DATED : 06.05.2024         PARTNER 

PLACE : CHANDIGARH                M. No. 542573 

              

  



ANNEXURE "B"TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section

of our Report of even date on the accounts for the year ended on 31st March, 2024 of

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED.

On the basis of such checks of the books and records of the company as we considered

appropriate and according to the information and explanation given to us during the course of

audit, we state that: -

(i) (a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of its

Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment ofthe company have been physically verified

by the management atreasonable intervals and no discrepancies were noticed on

such verification.

(c) Title deeds ofimmovable properties are held in the name oferstwhile name ofthe

company i.e. Anil Pesticides Limited. The name ofcompany was changed from Anil

Pesticides Limited to Syschem (India) Limited w.e.f. 26.12.2001. However name in

the revenue records have notbeen updated.

Description Gross Held in Whether Period held Reason for

ofproperty carrying name of promoter, — indicate not being

value director or range, held in

their where name of

relative or appropriate company

employee

Land & 6,14,82,192 Anil

Building Pesticides

Ltd former

Name of

28.07.1994 Held in the

name of

erstwhile

name of
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such verification. 

 

 (c) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of erstwhile name of the 

company i.e. Anil Pesticides Limited. The name of company was changed from Anil 

Pesticides Limited to Syschem (India) Limited w.e.f. 26.12.2001. However name in 

the revenue records have not been updated. 

 

Description 

of property 

Gross 

carrying 

value 

Held in 

name of 

Whether 

promoter, 

director or 

their 

relative or 

employee 

Period held 

– indicate 

range, 

where 

appropriate 

Reason for 

not being 

held in 

name of 

company 

Land & 

Building 

6,14,82,192 Anil 

Pesticides 

Ltd former 

Name of 

- 28.07.1994 Held in the 

name of 

erstwhile 

name of 



(ii) (a)

(iii) (a)

Syschem

India Ltd

the

company

i.e. Anil

Pesticides

Limited

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has notrevalued its

Property, plant and equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets

or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or

pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the

Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

As explained to us, the physical verification of the inventory has been conducted by

the management atreasonable intervals during the year. No material discrepancies

have been noticed on physical verification. The balances of stock as established on

physical verification as at the year-end have been incorporated in the books of

accounts. Consequently, the shortage/ excess, if any have been adjusted in the

consumption ofmaterials.

(b) The company has notsanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore

rupees, in aggregate, from banks orfinancial institutions on the basis of security of

current assets during any point of time ofthe year.

(A) Since there is no subsidiary, associate or Joint Ventures of the company.

Accordingly, paragraph3 (iii)(a)(A) of the Order is not applicable.

(B) Based on theaudit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and

explanations given to us, the Company has provided guarantee toa party other

than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates as under.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(d) 

 

 

 

 

(e) 

Syschem 

India Ltd 

the 

company 

i.e. Anil 

Pesticides 

Limited 

 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its 

Property, plant and equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets 

or both during the year. 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or 

pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the 

Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

 
(ii) (a) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(b) 

 

As explained to us, the physical verification of the inventory has been conducted by 

the management at reasonable intervals during the year. No material discrepancies 

have been noticed on physical verification. The balances of stock as established on 

physical verification as at the year-end have been incorporated in the books of 

accounts. Consequently, the shortage / excess, if any have been adjusted in the 

consumption of materials. 

 

The company has not sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore 

rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of 

current assets during any point of time of the year. 

 

(iii) (a) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(A) Since there is no subsidiary, associate or Joint Ventures of the company. 

Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii)(a)(A) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(B) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and 

explanations given to us, the Company has provided guarantee to a party other 

than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates as under.  

 



(c)

Particulars

Aggregate amount during the year

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet

date.

Guarantees

5000.00

Amt. in Lakhs

Loans

NA

NA

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit

procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the guarantees provided during the

year and the terms and conditions of the guarantees provided during the year are,

prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, Company hasnotgranted any loan,

Accordingly, paragraph3 (iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, theCompany hasnotgiven any loans

and advances in the nature of loans to any party during the year. Accordingly,

paragraph3 (iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, theCompany hasnotgiven any loans

and advances in the nature of loans to any party during the year. Accordingly,

paragraph3 (iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not

granted any loans either repayable on demand orwithout specifying any terms or

period of repayment. Accordingly, paragraph3 (iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, theCompany hasnotgiven any loans,

or made anyinvestment, provided any security as specified under Section 185 and

186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). In respect of the guarantee provided by

the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been

complied with.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

(b) 

 

 

 

 

 

(c) 

 

 

 
 

(d) 

 

 

 

 
 

(e) 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

(f)      

Amt. in Lakhs 
Particulars Guarantees Loans 

Aggregate amount during the year 5000.00 NA 

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet 

date. 
 NA 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 

procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the guarantees provided during the 

year and the terms and conditions of the guarantees provided during the year are, 

prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, Company has not granted any loan, 

Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable.  

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans 

and advances in the nature of loans to any party during the year. Accordingly, 

paragraph 3 (iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable.  

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans 

and advances in the nature of loans to any party during the year. Accordingly, 

paragraph 3 (iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.  

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not 

granted any loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or 

period of repayment. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, 

or made any investment, provided any security as specified under Section 185 and 

186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). In respect of the guarantee provided by 

the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been 

complied with. 



(vii) (a)

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

company has notaccepted any deposits with the meaning of section 73 of the

Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the company pursuant to

the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended and

prescribed by the Central Government under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act,

2013 and areoftheopinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have been

made andmaintained. As informed to us, cost audit will be conducted in due course

of time. We have, however, not madea detailed examination of the cost records

witha view todetermine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of

records produced before us, the Company is not regular in depositing undisputed

statutory dues including Goods& Service Tax, provident fund, employees state

insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value

added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities

applicable to the Company. Wherever thestatutory dues have been deposited late,

the same hasbeen deposited with interest and late fee The arrears of outstanding

statutory dues as at the last day of financial year fora period of more than six

months from the date they became payable is as under: - NIL

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material

statutory referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the

appropriate authorities on account ofany dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, theCompany hasnotsurrendered or

disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of

account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during

the year.

 

 

(v)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

company has not accepted any deposits with the meaning of section 73 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(vi)  We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the company pursuant to  

the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended  and 

prescribed by the Central Government under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 

2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have been 

made and maintained. As informed to us, cost audit will be conducted in due course 

of time. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records 

with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

records produced before us, the Company is not regular in depositing undisputed 

statutory dues including Goods & Service Tax, provident fund, employees state 

insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value 

added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities 

applicable to the Company.  Wherever the statutory dues have been deposited late, 

the same has been deposited with interest and late fee  The arrears of outstanding 

statutory dues as at the last day of financial year for a period of more than six 

months from the date they became payable is as under : - NIL 

 

 

 

 

 

(viii) 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material 

statutory referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the 

appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or 

disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of 

account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during 

the year. 

 

 

 



(x) (a)

(xi) (a)

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on

the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, theCompany didnot

have any loans or borrowings from any lender during the year. Accordingly, clause

3(ix)(a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable.

The company didnot raise money by way of initial public offer or further offer

(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph

3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company hasmade

Preferential allotment of shares during the year under review. In respect of the

above issue, we further report that:

a) the requirement of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, have

been complied with; and

b) the amounts raised have been applied by the Company during the year forthe

purposes forwhich the funds were raised.

According to information given to us, no fraud by or on the company by its officers

or employees has been noticed or reported during the course ofour audit.

(b) According to information given to us, No report under sub-section (12) of section

143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as

prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the

Central Government;

(c) According to information given to us, the Company has notreceived any whistle-

blower complaints during the year.

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is

not applicable.

(xiii) According tothe information and explanation given to us and based on examination

of the record of the company, transactions with the related parties are in

compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of

such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by

the applicable accounting standards.

 

(ix) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on 

the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not 

have any loans or borrowings from any lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 

3(ix)(a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) (a) 

 

 

 

(b) 

The company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further offer 

(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 

3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made 

Preferential allotment of shares during the year under review. In respect of the 

above issue, we further report that: 

a) the requirement of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, have 

been complied with; and 

b) the amounts raised have been applied by the Company during the year for the 
purposes for which the funds were raised. 
 

(xi) (a) 

 

 

(b) 

 

 

 

 

(c) 

According to information given to us, no fraud by or on the company by its officers 

or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit. 

 

According to information given to us, No report under sub-section (12) of section 

143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as 

prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 

Central Government; 

 

According to information given to us, the Company has not received any whistle-

blower complaints during the year. 

 

(xii)  The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is 

not applicable. 

 

(xiii)  According to the information and explanation given to us and based on examination 

of the record of the company, transactions with the related parties are in 

compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of 

such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by 

the applicable accounting standards. 



(xiv) (a) The company hasan internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature

of its business

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit have been

considered.

(xv) The company has notentered into any non-cash transactions with directors or

person connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not

applicable.

(xvi) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of Reserve Bank

ofIndia Act 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) The company has notincurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the

immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial

statements, our knowledge ofthe Board of Directors and management plans and

based on ourexamination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has

come toourattention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty

exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its

liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due withina

period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not

an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our

reporting is based on thefacts up to the date ofthe audit report and we neither give

any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due withina period of one

year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company asandwhen

they fall due.

 

 

(xiv) (a) 

 

 

(b) 

The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature 

of its business 

 

The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit have been 

considered. 

 

(xv)  The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 

person connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not 

applicable.   

 

(xvi) 

 

 

(xvii) 

 

 

(xviii) 

 

 

(xix) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of Reserve Bank 

of India Act 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.   

 

The company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the 

immediately preceding financial year. 

 

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 

Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 

statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 

based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 

come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty 

exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its 

liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 

period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not 

an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 

reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give 

any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one 

year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when 

they fall due. 



(xxi)

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there

is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to

any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not

applicable

Since there is no subsidiary, associate or Joint Ventures of the company, so

company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements. Accordingly

reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

DATED: 06.05.2024

PLACE: CHANDIGARH

ForS T A V & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 024510C)

(CA VARINDER SINGH)

PARTNER

M.No.542573

 

 

(xx) 

 

 

 

 

(xxi) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 

is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to 

any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not 

applicable  

 

Since there is no subsidiary, associate or Joint Ventures of the company, so 

company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements. Accordingly 

reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

 

For S T A V & CO. 

Chartered Accountants      

                                                               (Firm Registration No. 024510C)  

 

  

       (CA VARINDER SINGH) 

DATED : 06.05.2024         PARTNER 

PLACE : CHANDIGARH                M. No. 542573 

              

 



Particulars

ASSETS

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

(b) Capital Work-in Progress

(c) Investment Property

(d) Intangible Assets

(e) Intangible Assets Under Development

(f) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

(g) Other Non Current Assets

Total Non-Current Assets

Current Assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments

(ii) Trade Receivables

(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(iv) Olher Bank Balances

(v) Olher Financial Assets

(g) Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EOUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital

(b) Other Equity (Refer SOCE)

Total Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ia) Lease Liabilities

(ii) Trade Payable

- Total Outstanding Dues ofMicro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

- Total Outstanding Dues ofcreditors other than micro and small enterprises

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Long Term Provisions

(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ia) Lease Liabilities

(ii) Trade Payables

- Total Outstanding Dues ofMicro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

- Total Outstanding Dues ofcreditors other than micro and small enterprises

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Short Term Provisions

(g) Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Material Accounting Policies6 Notes on Accounts

Notes on Financial Statements

The Notes referred to above form an integral

As per our report of even date attached

forS T A V & CO

Chanered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.: 024510C)

(VARINDER SINGH)

Panner

Membership No.542573

Chandigarh, 6th May, 2024

Note 31st March, 2024

3

4

5

6

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

1 to26

410.72

0.00

0.00

0.00

94.61

206.13

3768.10

5139.59

0.00

6843.41

9.57

0.11

0.00

642.03

12634.71

16402.81

1709.34

5695.64

45.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

985.00

1030.00

0.00

0.00

65.96

9471.99

0.00

40.91

98.31

9677.17

16402.81

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

(SHIKHA KATARIA)

Company Secretary

PAN : EGDPS5904L

(SANJEEV AGRAWAL)

Chief Financial Officer

PAN : ADGPA3342Q

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

(RANJAN JAIN)

Managing Director

DIN : 00635274

3065.44

14.54

0.00

0.00

0.00

229.78

105.00

3414.76

1551.71

0.00

4194.05

57.09

8.71

0.00

45.03

5856.58

9271.35

3189.04

958.57

2230.47

160.51

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

2582.86

2743.37

0.00

0.00

51.75

3993.77

0.00

28.89

22310

4297.51

9271.35

(SUNINDER VEER SINGH)

Whole Time Director

DIN : 07693557

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Note 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

I ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 3056.64 3065.44

(b) Capital Work-in-Progress - 410.72 14.54

(c) Investment Property - 0.00 0.00

(d) Intangible Assets 2 0.00 0.00

(e) Intangible Assets Under Development - 0.00 0.00

(f) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 3 94.61 229.78

(g) Other Non-Current Assets 4 206.13 105.00

Total Non-Current Assets 3768.10 3414.76

Current Assets

(a) Inventories 5 5139.59 1551.71

(b) Financial Assets 

(i)    Investments - 0.00 0.00

(ii)   Trade Receivables 6 6843.41 4194.05

(iii)  Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 9.57 57.09

(iv) Other Bank Balances 8 0.11 8.71

(v) Other Financial Assets - 0.00 0.00

(c) Other Current Assets 9 642.03 45.03

Total Current Assets 12634.71 5856.58

TOTAL ASSETS 16402.81 9271.35

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital 10 3986.30 3189.04

(b) Other Equity (Refer SOCE) - 1709.34 -958.57

Total Equity 5695.64 2230.47

LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i)  Borrowings 11                         45.00                     160.51 

(ia)  Lease Liabilities 0.00 0.00

(ii) Trade Payable -

- Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 0.00 0.00

- Total Outstanding Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 0.00 0.00

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities - 0.00 0.00

(b) Long Term Provisions - 0.00 0.00

(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - 0.00 0.00

(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities 12 985.00 2582.86

Total Non-Current Liabilities 1030.00 2743.37

Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i)  Borrowings - 0.00 0.00

(ia)  Lease Liabilities 0.00 0.00

(ii)  Trade Payables 13

- Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 65.96 51.75

- Total Outstanding Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 9471.99 3993.77

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities - 0.00 0.00

(b) Short Term Provisions 14 40.91 28.89

(c) Other Current Liabilities 15 98.31 223.10

Total Current Liabilities 9677.17 4297.51

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16402.81 9271.35

Material Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts -

Notes on Financial Statements 1 to 26                           0.01                       (0.00)

The Notes referred to above form an integral 

As per our report of even date attached

for  S T A V & CO FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm Registration No. : 024510C)

(VARINDER SINGH) (SHIKHA KATARIA) (RANJAN JAIN)

Partner Company Secretary Managing Director

Membership No. 542573 PAN : EGDPS5904L DIN : 00635274

(SANJEEV AGRAWAL) (SUNINDER VEER SINGH)

Chief Financial Officer Whole Time Director

PAN : ADGPA3342Q DIN : 07693557

Chandigarh, 6th May, 2024

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024



Particulars

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Revenue from operations (Gross)

Other Income

Total Income

EXPENSES

Cost ofRaw Materials Consumed

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress

Goods6 Services Tax

Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Cost

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit Before Exceptional items and Tax

Exceptional Items

Profit Before tax

Tax Expense

(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax

(3) Mat Credit Entitlement

Total Tax expense

Profit After tax

Other Comprehensive Income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

(ii) Income taxrelated to above

B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss

(ii) Income taxrelated to above

Total Comprehensive Income fortheperiod

Earning per Equity Share:

(1) Basic Earning Per Share (Rs.)

(2) Diluted Earning Per Share (Rs.)

Material Accounting Policies& Notes on Accounts

Notes on Financial Statements

The Notes referred to above form an integral

As per our report of even date attached

forS T A V & CO

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.: 024510C)

(VARINDER SINGH)

Partner

Membership No.542573

Chandigarh, 6th May, 2024

Note

46

47

48

49

20

21

1 & 3

22

23

1 to26

31st March, 2024

23347.69

17.01

23364.70

19790.57

(2225.32)

3481.98

608.16

25.26

278.87

993.87

22953.39

411.31

0.00

411.31

68.66

135.17

(68.66)

135.17

276.14

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

276.14

0.78

0.78

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

(SHIKHA KATARIA)

Company Secretary

PAN : EGDPS5904L

(SANJEEV AGRAWAL)

Chief Financial Officer

PAN : ADGPA3342Q

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

(RANJAN JAIN)

Managing Director

DIN: 00635274

13037.69

24.83

13062.51

9245.97

112.24

1682.05

439.72

4.21

270.26

692.99

12447.44

615.07

0.00

615.07

29.60

163.76

(29.60)

163.76

451.31

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

451.31

(SUNINDER VEER SINGH)

Whole Time Director

DIN: 07693557

1.53

1.42

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Note 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Revenue from operations (Gross) 16 23347.69 13037.69

Other Income 17 17.01 24.83

Total Income 23364.70 13062.51

EXPENSES

Cost of Raw Materials Consumed 18 19790.57 9245.97

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress 19 (2225.32) 112.24

Goods & Services Tax 3481.98 1682.05

Employee Benefits Expense 20 608.16 439.72

Finance Cost 21 25.26 4.21

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 1 & 3 278.87 270.26

Other Expenses 22 993.87 692.99

Total Expenses 22953.39 12447.44

Profit Before Exceptional items and Tax 411.31 615.07

Exceptional Items 0.00 0.00

Profit Before tax 411.31 615.07

Tax Expense

(1) Current tax - 68.66 29.60

(2) Deferred tax - 135.17 163.76

(3) Mat Credit Entitlement - (68.66) (29.60)

Total Tax expense 135.17 163.76

Profit After tax 276.14 451.31

Other Comprehensive Income 0.00 0.00

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 0.00 0.00

(ii) Income tax related to above 0.00 0.00

B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss 0.00 0.00

(ii) Income tax related to above 0.00 0.00

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 276.14 451.31

Earning per Equity Share : 23

(1) Basic Earning Per Share (Rs.) 0.78 1.53

(2) Diluted Earning Per Share (Rs.) 0.78 1.42

Material Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts -

Notes on Financial Statements 1 to 26

The Notes referred to above form an integral 

As per our report of even date attached

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

for  S T A V & CO

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm Registration No. : 024510C)

(SHIKHA KATARIA) (RANJAN JAIN)

Company Secretary Managing Director

(VARINDER SINGH) PAN : EGDPS5904L DIN : 00635274

Partner

Membership No. 542573

(SANJEEV AGRAWAL) (SUNINDER VEER SINGH)

Chief Financial Officer Whole Time Director

PAN : ADGPA3342Q DIN : 07693557

Chandigarh, 6th May, 2024

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024



Particulars

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

A.CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax forthe year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Adjustment in Reserve6 Surplus

Employee Stock Compensation

Loss on sale of FA

Interest (Received)/ Paid( Net)

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on re-measurement ofDefined Benefit Liability

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes

Movements in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (Non-Current/Current)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (Non-Current/Current)

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid (Net of refund)

Cash Flow Before Extraordinary Items

Extraordinary Items

Net cash generated from operating activities

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Bank Deposit (Placed)/ Matured (Net)

Interest received

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment& IntangibIe^

Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities

(^excIudes Capital Advances)

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid to owners oftheCompany (including DDT)

Proceeds from share capital

Interest and Finance Charges paid

Net cash used infinancing activities

Net increase/ (Decrease) inCash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents atthe end of the year

Note: Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever found necessary.

As per our report of even date attached

forS T A V & CO

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.: 024510C)

(VARINDER SINGH)

Partner

Membership No.542573

Chandigarh, 6th May, 2024

31st March, 2024

411.31

278.87

0.00

0.00

0.28

13.83

0.00

704.29

(3212.33)

(3587.88)

3666.28

(2429.64)

(135.17)

(2564.81)

(2564.81)

8.60

11.43

(668.24)

1.72

(646.49)

0.00

3189.04

(2s.26)

3163.78

(47.52)

57.09

9.57

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

(SHIKHA KATARIA)

Company Secretary

PAN : EGDPS5904L

(SANJEEV AGRAWAL)

Chief Financial Officer

PAN : ADGPA3342Q

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

645.07

270.26

11.99

0.00

0.00

(0.62)

0.00

896.69

(3698.61)

361.92

1754.26

(685.74)

(163.76)

(849.50)

(849.50)

26.02

4.83

(195.81)

0.00

(164.96)

0.00

1073.01

(4.21)

1068.80

54.35

2.74

57.09

(RANJAN JAIN)

Managing Director

DIN : 00635274

(SUNINDER VEER SINC

Whole Time Director

DIN : 07693557

Rupees in Lakhs

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax for the year 411.31 615.07

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortisation 278.87 270.26

Adjustment in Reserve & Surplus 0.00 11.99

Employee Stock Compensation 0.00 0.00

Loss on sale of FA 0.28 0.00

Interest (Received) / Paid ( Net ) 13.83 (0.62)

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on re-measurement of Defined Benefit Liability 0.00 0.00

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 704.29 896.69

Movements in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (Non-Current/Current) (3212.33) (3698.61)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (3587.88) 361.92

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (Non-Current/Current) 3666.28 1754.26

Cash generated from operations (2429.64) (685.74)

Income taxes paid (Net of refund) (135.17) (163.76)

Cash Flow Before Extraordinary Items (2564.81) (849.50)

Extraordinary Items                                      -                                       -   

Net cash generated from operating activities (2564.81) (849.50)

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Bank Deposit (Placed) /  Matured (Net) 8.60 26.02

Interest received 11.43 4.83

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible^ (668.24) (195.81)

Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 1.72 0.00

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (646.49) (164.96)

(^excludes Capital Advances)

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid to owners of the Company (including DDT) 0.00 0.00

Proceeds from share capital 3189.04 1073.01

Interest and Finance Charges paid (25.26) (4.21)

Net cash used in financing activities 3163.78 1068.80

Net increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents                               (47.52)                              54.35 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year                                57.09                                 2.74 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year                                  9.57                              57.09 

Note : Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever found necessary.

As per our report of even date attached

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

for  S T A V & CO

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm Registration No. : 024510C)

(SHIKHA KATARIA) (RANJAN JAIN)

Company Secretary Managing Director

PAN : EGDPS5904L DIN : 00635274

(VARINDER SINGH)

Partner

Membership No. 542573

(SANJEEV AGRAWAL) (SUNINDER VEER SINGH)

Chief Financial Officer Whole Time Director

PAN : ADGPA3342Q DIN : 07693557

Chandigarh, 6th May, 2024

Particulars

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024



STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY (SOCE) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

A.Changes inEquity Share Capital Rupees inLakhs

Particulars As at

31st March 24 31st March 23

Outstanding at the beginning

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year

Outstanding atthe end

A.Changes inOther Equity

For the year ended 31st March, 2024

Particulars

As at 1st April 2023

Profit/ (Loss) forthe Year

Premium on Equity Shares issued during the year

Adjustment in Reserve and Surplus

Share Warrants issued during the year

As at 31st March 2024

Fortheyear ended 31st March 2023

Particulars

As at 1st April 2022

Transitional Changes due Ind-AS

Restated Balance as at 1stApril 2022

Profit/ (Loss) forthe Year

Premium on Equity Shares issued during the year

Adjustment in Reserve and Surplus

Share Warrants issued during the year

As at 31st March 2023

Asperourreport of even date attached

for S T A V & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.: 024510C)

(VARINDER SINGH)

Partner

Membership No.542573

Chandigarh, 6th May, 2024

Reserves and Surplus

Retained General Capital

Earnings Reserve Reserve

(1386.57) 0.00

3,189.04

797.26

3986.30

Securities Preference

Premium Share

Reserve

6.28 421.71

276.14 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 2391.78

0.00

0.00

(1110.42)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

6.28 2813.49

Retained General Capital

Earnings Reserve Reserve

(1849.86)

0.00

(1849.86)

451.31

Reserves and Surplus

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Securities Preference

Premium Share

Reserve

0.00 6.28 119.21

0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 6.28 119.21

0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 302.50

11.99 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

(1386.57)

0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 6.28 421.71

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

2,329.04

860.00

3189.04

Rupees inLakhs

Money received

against shares

warrants

Total

0.00 (958.58)

0.00 276.14

0.00 2391.78

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 1709.34

Rupees inLakhs

Money received

against shares

warrants

Total

89.49 (1634.88)

0.00 0.00

89.49 (1,634.88)

0.00 451.31

0.00 302.50

0.00 11.99

0.00 (89.49) (89.49)

0.00

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

(SHIKHA KATARIA)

Company Secretary

PAN : EGDPS5904L

(SANJEEV AGRAWAL)

Chief Financial Officer

PAN : ADGPA3342Q

0.00 (958.57)

(RANJAN JAIN)

Managing Director

DIN : 00635274

(SUNINDER VEER SINGH)

Whole Time Director

DIN : 07693557

A. Changes in Equity Share Capital Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

31st March 24 31st March 23

Outstanding at the beginning 3,189.04          2,329.04            

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year 797.26             860.00               

Outstanding at the end 3986.30 3189.04

A. Changes in Other Equity

For the year ended 31st March, 2024

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

Retained

 Earnings

General 

Reserve

 Capital 

Reserve

Securities 

Premium 

Reserve

As at 1st April 2023 (1386.57) 0.00 6.28 421.71 0.00 0.00 (958.58)

Profit / (Loss) for the Year 276.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 276.14

Premium on Equity Shares issued during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 2391.78 0.00 0.00 2391.78

Adjustment in Reserve and Surplus 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Share Warrants issued during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

As at 31st March 2024 (1110.42) 0.00 6.28 2813.49 0.00 0.00 1709.34

For the year ended 31st March 2023

Rupees in Lakhs

Retained

 Earnings

General 

Reserve

 Capital 

Reserve

Securities 

Premium 

Reserve

As at 1st April 2022 (1849.86) 0.00 6.28 119.21 -                   89.49 (1634.88)

Transitional Changes due Ind-AS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Restated Balance as at 1st April 2022 (1849.86) 0.00 6.28 119.21 -                   89.49 (1,634.88)     

Profit / (Loss) for the Year 451.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 451.31

Premium on Equity Shares issued during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 302.50 0.00 0.00 302.50

Adjustment in Reserve and Surplus 11.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11.99

Share Warrants issued during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (89.49) (89.49)

As at 31st March 2023 (1386.57) 0.00 6.28 421.71 0.00 0.00 (958.57)

As per our report of even date attached

for  S T A V & CO. FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm Registration No. : 024510C)

(VARINDER SINGH) (SHIKHA KATARIA) (RANJAN JAIN)

Partner Company Secretary Managing Director

Membership No. 542573 PAN : EGDPS5904L DIN : 00635274

(SANJEEV AGRAWAL) (SUNINDER VEER SINGH)

Chief Financial Officer Whole Time Director

PAN : ADGPA3342Q DIN : 07693557

Chandigarh, 6th May, 2024

Money received 

against shares 

warrants

TotalParticulars

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  (SOCE)  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Money received 

against shares 

warrants

Total

Reserves and Surplus

                     As at 

Reserves and Surplus

Preference 

Share

Preference 

Share



SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

COMPANY'S OVERVIEW, MATERIALACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND OTHERNOTESFOR THE YEARENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

1. Companv's Overview

Syschem India Limited (the ‘Company’) was incorporated on 31.12.1993 and is engaged in

production of Active Pharmaceuticals Ingredients (APIs) and bulk drugs. The Shares of the

Company arelisted on BSE Limited.

2. Summarv ofmaterial accounting policies

2.1 Basis ofpreparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis, the provisions of the Companies Act,

2013 (”Act') (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule3 of the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Effective from 01st April, 2017, the Company hasadopted all the Ind AS standards and the

adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting

Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in

India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule7 of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was theprevious GAAP.
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Syschem India Limited (the ‘Company’) was incorporated on 31.12.1993 and is engaged in 
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2.1 Basis of preparation 

 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis, the provisions of the Companies Act , 

2013 (`Act') (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

 

Effective from 01st April, 2017, the Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the 

adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting 

Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in 

India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP. 

 

 

 

 



Allassets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's

normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

Based on thenature of products and the time between theacquisition of assets for processing and

their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company hasascertained its operating cycle as

12 months forthepurpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

2.2 Property, Plant& Equipments and Intangible Assets

Property, Plant& Equipments are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of fixed asset

are added toits book value only if they increase the future benefits from theexisting asset beyond

its previously assessed standard of performance.

Items of fixed assets that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at

the lower of their net book value and net realizable value and are shown separately in the financial

statements. Any expected loss is recognized immediately inthe Statement of Profit and Loss.

Losses arising from theretirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets

which arecarried at cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation is provided on the Straight Line Method over the useful life of the assets as

prescribed under Schedule II PartC of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on assets sold

during the year is provided upto the date of sale of fixed assets.

Intangible Assets

Cost of development in case of self generated asset is recognized on the basis of actual cost

incurred and directly attributable expenses incurred thereon.

 

 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s 

normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and 

their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 

12 months for the purpose of current – non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

 

2.2 Property, Plant & Equipments and Intangible Assets 

Property, Plant & Equipments are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of fixed asset 

are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond 

its previously assessed standard of performance.  

 

Items of fixed assets that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at 

the lower of their net book value and net realizable value and are shown separately in the financial 

statements. Any expected loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets 

which are carried at cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

Depreciation is provided on the Straight Line Method over the useful life of the assets as 

prescribed under Schedule II Part C of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on assets sold 

during the year is provided upto the date of sale of fixed assets. 

 

Intangible Assets 

Cost of development in case of self generated asset is recognized on the basis of actual cost 

incurred and directly attributable expenses incurred thereon. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2.3 Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or

production of qualifying assets, which areassets that necessarily takea substantial period of time

to get ready fortheir intended use or sale, are added tothecost of those assets, until such time as

the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are

recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss intheperiod in which they are incurred.

2.4 Impairment

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset

may be impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets

that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows

from other assets or groups of assets, is considered asa cash generating unit. If any such indication

exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash generating unit is made. Assets

whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to therecoverable

amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's net selling price and

its value in use. Value inuse is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise

from thecontinuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is

also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss

recognized foran asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased.

2.5 Revenue Recognition

As per the requirements of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1988, all expenses and income are

generally accounted foron accrual basis.

 

 

 

2.3 Borrowing Costs 

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
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2.4 Impairment 

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset 
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2.6 Current and deferred tax

Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the

determination of the net profit or loss for the period. Current tax is measured at the amount

expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the taxation laws prevailing. Deferred

tax is recognized for all timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of

deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax assets in respect of timing differences on account of unabsorbed business loss and

unabsorbed depreciation as per Income taxlaws, are recognized and carried forward only to the

extent that there isa virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future

taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Deferred tax assets in respect of timing differences, other than unabsorbed business loss and

unabsorbed depreciation as per Income taxlaws, are recognized and carried forward only to the

extent that there isa reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available

against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date, the

Company reassesses unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there isa legally enforceable right to

set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net

basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there isa legally enforceable

right to set off assets against liabilities.

Minimum Alternative Tax credit is recognized as an asset only when andtotheextent there is

convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income taxduring the specified period.

Such asset is reviewed ateach Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount oftheMAT credit asset

is written down totheextent there is no longera convincing evidence to the effect that the

Company will pay normal income taxduring the specified period.

 

 

2.6 Current and deferred tax 

Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the 

determination of the net profit or loss for the period. Current tax is measured at the amount 

expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the taxation laws prevailing. Deferred 

tax is recognized for all timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of 

deferred tax assets.  

 

Deferred tax assets in respect of timing differences on account of unabsorbed business loss and 

unabsorbed depreciation as per Income tax laws, are recognized and carried forward only to the 

extent that there is a virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future 

taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.  

 

Deferred tax assets in respect of timing differences, other than unabsorbed business loss and 

unabsorbed depreciation as per Income tax laws, are recognized and carried forward only to the 

extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available 

against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.  

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date, the 

Company reassesses unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any.  

 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to 

set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net 

basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable 

right to set off assets against liabilities. 

 

Minimum Alternative Tax credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is 

convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. 

Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset 

is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the 

Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. 

 

 



2.7 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions: Provisions are recognized when there isa present obligation asa result ofa past event,

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle

the obligation and there isa reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are

measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the

Balance sheet date and are not discounted to its present value.

2.9

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there isa possible obligation

arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or

a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of

resources will be required to settle ora reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed

asa contingent liability.

2.8 Inventories

The stocks of raw materials and stores & spares are valued at cost price. Finished Goods have been

valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Cost includes purchase price, freight

inward, clearing charges, custom duty and other related expenses. Net realizable value is the

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and

estimated costs necessary to make thesale. Work inprogress is valued at estimated cost. Goods in

transit are carried at cost.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to

equity shareholders by the weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the

period. Earning considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit for

the period after deducting taxes thereto for the period. The weighted average number of Equity

Shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as

bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential Equity Shares that have changed thenumber

of Equity Shares outstanding, withouta corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of

calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity

shareholders and the weighted average number ofshares outstanding during the period is adjusted

for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

 

 

2.7 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

Provisions: Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, 

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are 

measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the 

Balance sheet date and are not discounted to its present value.  

 

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation 

arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non 

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or 

a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed 

as a contingent liability. 

 

2.8 Inventories 

The stocks of raw materials and stores & spares are valued at cost price. Finished Goods have been 

valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Cost includes purchase price, freight 

inward, clearing charges, custom duty and other related expenses. Net realizable value is the 

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and 

estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Work in progress is valued at estimated cost. Goods in 

transit are carried at cost. 

 

2.9 Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 

equity shareholders by the weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the 

period. Earning considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share is the net profit for 

the period after deducting taxes thereto for the period. The weighted average number of Equity 

Shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as 

bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential Equity Shares that have changed the number 

of Equity Shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of 

calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted 

for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 



2.10 Employee Benefits

The contribution to provident fund, under the defined contribution plans is charged to revenue.

The Company has also provided towards the Gratuity benefits and Leave encashment, of the

eligible employees. No provision is made towards bonus during the year. The provisions for the

above benefit relating to the current year arecharged totherevenue.

2.11 Foreign Currency Transactions

Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign

currency amount theexchange rate between the reporting currency, and the foreign currency at

average rate at each month.

Conversion —

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-Monetary items which

are carried in terms of historical cost denominated ina foreign currency are reported using the

exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Exchange Differences —

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at

which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements are

recognized as income orasexpense intheyear inwhich they arise.

2.12 Leases

Leases arerecognised asa right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the

leased asset is available for use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease

components. The Company allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease

components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, forleases of real estate for which

theCompany isa lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead

accounts for these asa single lease component. Assets and liabilities arising froma lease are

initially measured ona present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the

following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

 

 

 

2.10 Employee Benefits 

 

The contribution to provident fund, under the defined contribution plans is charged to revenue.  

The Company has also provided towards the Gratuity benefits and Leave encashment, of the 

eligible employees. No provision is made towards bonus during the year. The provisions for the 

above benefit relating to the current year are charged to the revenue. 

 

2.11 Foreign Currency Transactions 

Initial Recognition  

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign 

currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency, and the foreign currency at 

average rate at each month. 

 

Conversion – 

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-Monetary items which 

are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the 

exchange rate at the date of transaction. 

 

Exchange Differences – 

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at 

which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements are 

recognized as income or as expense in the year in which they arise. 

2.12 Leases 

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the 

leased asset is available for use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease 

components. The Company allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease 

components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which 

the Company is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead 

accounts for these as a single lease component. Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are 

initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the 

following lease payments: 

� fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable 



amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

the exercise price ofa purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that

option, and

O payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company

exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the

measurement of theliability. The lease payments arediscounted using the interest rate implicit in

the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the

Company, thelessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee

would have topay toborrow thefunds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-

use asset ina similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

2.13Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year represent cash and deposit with banks. The cash

flow statement is made using the indirect method.

3. Other Notes and disclosures:

3.1 The management hascertified cash inhand ason 31st March, 2024.

3.2 Deferred tax resulting from “timing difference” between books and taxable profits is recognized

using tax rates and laws that have been enacted as on Balance Sheet date.

3.3 The balance of Security Deposits and Advances recoverable are subject to the confirmation of the

parties.

3.4 In the opinion of the Board of Directors, current assets and advances havea value on realization

in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the

Balance Sheet.

3.5 In terms of notification no. G.S.R. 719(E) dated November 16,2007 issued by the Central

Government ofIndia, the disclosure of payments due toany supplier as at March 31,2024 areas

follows:

 

� amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees 

� the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that 

option, and 

� payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company 

exercising that option. 

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the 

measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in 

the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the 

Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee 

would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-

use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions. 

 

2.13Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year represent cash and deposit with banks. The cash 

flow statement is made using the indirect method. 

 

3. Other Notes and disclosures: 

 

3.1 The management has certified cash in hand as on 31st March, 2024. 

 

3.2 Deferred tax resulting from “timing difference” between books and taxable profits is recognized 

using tax rates and laws that have been enacted as on Balance Sheet date. 

 

3.3 The balance of Security Deposits and Advances recoverable are subject to the confirmation of the 

parties. 

 

3.4 In the opinion of the Board of Directors, current assets and advances have a value on realization 

in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the 

Balance Sheet. 

 

3.5 In terms of notification no. G.S.R. 719(E) dated November 16, 2007 issued by the Central 

Government of India, the disclosure of payments due to any supplier as at March 31, 2024 are as 

follows: 

 

 



Particulars

Balance ofSundry Creditors as on March 31,2024

Principal amount due toMicro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Principal amount due toOthers

Total

Interest accrued and due as on March 31,2024

Interest on payments due toMicro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Interest on payments due toOthers

Interest due and payable on amounts paid during the year to Micro, -

Small and Medium Enterprises beyond theappointed date

Paid during theyear

Principal amount (including interest) paid to Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises beyond theappointed date

Principal amount

Interest thereon

Principal amount (excluding interest) paid to Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises beyond theappointed date

Others

Interest accrued inthe prior year and paid during the year

Interest accrued during the year and paid during the year

As at

31.03.2024

Rs. in lacs

65.96

9471.99

9537.95

The above disclosure is based on information available with theCompany regarding status of the

suppliers as defined under Section2 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006.

 

 

 

Particulars As at  

31.03.2024 

 Rs. in lacs 

Balance of Sundry Creditors as on March 31, 2024  

Principal amount due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 65.96 

Principal amount due to Others 9471.99 

Total 9537.95 

  

Interest accrued and due as on March 31, 2024  

Interest on payments due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - 

Interest on payments due to Others - 

Interest due and payable on amounts paid during the year to Micro, 

Small and Medium Enterprises beyond the appointed date 

- 

  

Paid during the year  

Principal amount (including interest) paid to Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises beyond the appointed date 

 

Principal amount - 

Interest thereon - 

Principal amount (excluding interest) paid to Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises beyond the appointed date 

- 

  

Others  

Interest accrued in the prior year and paid during the year - 

Interest accrued during the year and paid during the year - 

 

The above disclosure is based on information available with the Company regarding status of the 

suppliers as defined under Section 2 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 

Act, 2006. 

  



3.6 Details of non-resident shareholdings

Number ofnonresident share holders

Number ofshares held by non resident

shareholders

Amount remitted during the year in

foreign currency on account of

dividends

31.03.2024

236

3,08,464

31.03.2023

158

5,12,835

3.7 The management hascertified the Fixed Assets installed and put to use & relied upon by the

Auditors, beinga technical matter. During the year, Borrowings cost capitalized up to

March 31,2024 is Nil (As at March 31,2023 is Rs. Nil)

3.8 Previous year's figures have been re-arranged and reclassified wherever necessary to make

them comparable with the current year's figures. The amounts have been rounded offto

nearest lakh.

3.9 Approval offinancial statements

The financial statements are approved by the Company's Board of Directors and authorised for

issue on 06'h May 2024.

3.10 Additional Regulatorv Information:

(i) Title deeds ofImmovable Property not held inname oftheCompany

Relevant Description Gross carrying Title deeds Whether title deed Property Reason

line item in of item of value held in the holder isa promoter, held since for not

the property name of director or re1ative# which date being

Balance

sheet

PPE-

Investment

property-

PPE retired

from active

use and

held for

disposal-

others

Land and

Building

6,14,82,192.20

Anil

Pesticides

Ltd former

Name of

Syschem

India Ltd

OI

promoter*/director

or employee of

promoter/director

_ 28.07. 1994

held in

the name

ofthe

company

Held in

thename

of

erstwhile

name of

the

company

i.e. Anil

Pesticides

Limited

 

3.6 Details of non-resident shareholdings 

      31.03.2024   31.03.2023 

Number of non resident share holders 236 158 

 

 

Number of shares held by non resident 

shareholders  

 

3,08,464 5,12,835 

 Amount remitted during the year in 

foreign currency on account of 

dividends - - 

 

3.7      The management has certified the Fixed Assets installed and put to use & relied upon by the 

Auditors, being a technical matter. During the year, Borrowings cost capitalized up to 

March 31, 2024 is Nil (As at March 31, 2023 is Rs. Nil) 

 

3.8 Previous year’s figures have been re-arranged and reclassified wherever necessary to make 

them comparable with the current year’s figures. The amounts have been rounded off to 

nearest lakh. 

 

3.9  Approval of financial statements 

The financial statements are approved by the Company’s Board of Directors and authorised for 

issue on 06th May 2024. 

  

3.10 Additional Regulatory Information: 

 (i) Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company 

Relevant 

line item in 

the 

Balance 

sheet 

Description 

of item of 

property 

Gross carrying 

value 

Title deeds 

held in the 

name of 

Whether title deed 

holder is a promoter, 

director or relative# 

of 

promoter*/director 

or employee of 

promoter/director 

Property 

held since 

which date 

Reason 

for not 

being 

held in 

the name 

of the 

company 

PPE-

Investment 

property-

PPE retired 

from active 

use and 

held for 

disposal-

others 

Land and 

Building 

6,14,82,192.20 

Anil 

Pesticides 

Ltd former 

Name of 

Syschem 

India Ltd 

_ 28.07.1994 

Held in 

the name 

of 

erstwhile 

name of 

the 

company 

i.e. Anil 

Pesticides 

Limited 



(ii) Capital-Work-in-Progress (CWIP):

CWIPAgeing Schedule March 2024

CWIP Amount inCWIPfora period of

(Amount inRs.)

Total

Less than1 1-2years 2-3 years More than3 years

year

Projects in progress 4,10,741,940.00

CWIP

CWIPAgeing Schedule March 2023

(Amount inRs.)

Amount inCWIPfora period of

Less than1 1-2years 2-3 years More than3 years

year

Projects in progress 14,53,554.00 Nil

Total

(iii) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability

threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three

financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities:

Average netprofit of the company aspersection 135(5)

Gross Amount required to be spent during the year

Amount ofexpenditure incurred

Shortfall at the end of the year

Total of previous years shortfall

Reason forshortfall

Nature of CSR activities

Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution toa trust controlled by

the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting

Standard

wherea provision is made with respect toa liability incurred by entering intoa

contractual obligation, the movements intheprovision during the year should

be shown separately.

(9199666.67)

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NA

NA

 

 

(ii) Capital-Work-in-Progress (CWIP): 

CWIP Ageing Schedule March 2024 

  (Amount in Rs.) 

CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total 

Less than 1 

year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years   

Projects in progress 4,10,741,940.00 -    

 

CWIP Ageing Schedule March 2023 

  (Amount in Rs.) 

CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total 

Less than 1 

year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years   

Projects in progress 14,53,554.00 Nil    

 

(iii) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability 

threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three 

financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities: 

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) (9199666.67) 

Gross Amount required to be spent during the year NIL 

 Amount of expenditure incurred  NIL 

Shortfall at the end of the year NIL 

Total of previous years shortfall NIL 

Reason for shortfall NIL 

Nature of CSR activities - 

Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by 

the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting 

Standard NA 

where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a 

contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year should 

be shown separately. NA 

 

 



(iv) RATIOS:

S.NO

1.

2.

RATIO

Current Ratio

times)

NUMERATOR DENOMINATOR
31st March, 31st March,

2024 2023

I
Total current assets Total current liabilities 1.31 1.36

Debt-Equity Ratio Debt consists of

(in times) borrowings

Debt Service

3. Coverage Ratio

(intimes)

4.
Return on Equity

Ratio (inNo)

Earning forDebt Service

= Net Profit after taxes

+ Non-cash operating

expenses+ Interest+

Other non-cash

adjustments

Profit for the year less

Total equity

Debt service = Interest
+

Principal repayments

0.01

Preference dividend (if Average total equity 7.849c

any)

Inventory

5. turnover ratio (in Cost of goods sold

times)

Trade Receivables

6. turnover ratio (in Revenue from operations

times)

Trade payables

7. turnover ratio (in

times)

Purchases

Net capital

8. turnover ratio (in Revenue from operations

times)

9.
Net profit ratio

œ)
'
ÎR

Profit for the year

Average Inventory

Average trade

receivables

5.62

Average trade payables 3.1 l

Average working

capital (i.e. Total

current assets

less Total current

liabilities)

Revenue from

operations

7.89

1.76%

15.319o

5.91

CHANGE

-49c

REASON FOR

VARIANCE

Duetodecrease

0.07 -89% in Unsecured

Loan

-49%

2.81 1l No

Due to Decrease

inprofit

Due to Increase

4.23 5.76 -279c in Trade

Receivables.

856

4.72%

Due toDecrease

-639c in Profit after

tax.

 

(iv) RATIOS: 
 

 

 

 

S.NO RATIO NUMERATOR DENOMINATOR 
31st March, 

2024 

31st March, 

2023 
CHANGE 

REASON FOR 

VARIANCE 

1. 
Current Ratio (in 

times) 
Total current assets Total current liabilities 1.31 1.36 -4% - 

2. 
Debt-Equity Ratio 

(in times) 

Debt consists of 
borrowings  

Total equity 0.01 0.07 -89% 

Due to decrease 

in Unsecured 

Loan 

3. 

Debt Service 

Coverage Ratio 

(in times) 

Earning for Debt Service 

= Net Profit after taxes 

+ Non-cash operating 
expenses + Interest + 

Other non-cash 

adjustments 

Debt service = Interest 

+ 

Principal repayments 

- - - - 

4. 
Return on Equity 

Ratio (in %) 

Profit for the year less 

Preference dividend (if 

any) 

Average total equity 7.84% 15.31% -49% 
Due to Decrease 

in profit 

5. 

Inventory 

turnover ratio (in 

times) 

Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 5.62 5.91 -5% - 

6. 

Trade Receivables 

turnover ratio (in 

times) 

Revenue from operations 
Average trade 

receivables 
4.23 5.76 -27% 

Due to Increase 

in Trade 

Receivables. 

7. 

Trade payables 

turnover ratio (in 

times) 

Purchases Average trade payables 3.11 2.81 11% - 

8. 

Net capital 

turnover ratio (in 

times) 

Revenue from operations 

Average working 

capital (i.e. Total 

current assets 

less Total current 

liabilities) 

7.89 8.36 -6% - 

9. 
Net profit ratio (in 

%) 
Profit for the year 

Revenue from 

operations 
1.76% 4.72% -63% 

Due to Decrease 

in Profit after 

tax. 



10.

11.

Return on Capital Profit before tax and

employed (in9r) finance costs

Return on Income generated from

Investment (in9r) invested funds

As per our attached report of even date

ForS T A V & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(CA VARINDER SINGH)

PARTNER

M.No.542573

FRN No. 024510C

DATE : 06'h May, 2024

PLACE: CHANDIGARH

Capital employed = Net

worth+ Deferred tax 7.23%

liabilities

Average invested funds 241.929c

27.37% -749•

Due to decrease

in Profit before

interest

and taxes.

Due to

21.359a 10339c investment done

on uneven dates

For & on behalf of the Board

(SUNINDER VEERSINGH) (RANJAN JAIN)

WHOLETIMEDIRECTOR MANAGINGDIRECTOR

DIN: 07693557 DIN : 00635274

 

10. 
Return on Capital 

employed (in %) 

Profit before tax and 

finance costs 

Capital employed = Net 

worth + Deferred tax 

liabilities 

7.23% 27.37% -74% 

Due to decrease 

in Profit before 

interest 

and taxes. 

11. 
Return on 

Investment (in %) 

Income generated from 

invested funds 
Average invested funds  241.92% 21.35% 1033% 

Due to 

investment done 

on uneven dates 

 

 

As per our attached report of even date  

For S T A V & CO.          For & on behalf of the Board 

Chartered Accountants 

 

 (CA VARINDER SINGH)        (SUNINDER VEER SINGH)       (RANJAN JAIN) 

               PARTNER       WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR 

 M. No. 542573       DIN : 07693557   DIN : 00635274 

FRN No. 024510C 

DATE   : 06th May, 2024 

PLACE : CHANDIGARH  



1 Property, Plant and Equipment

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes tothefinancial statements forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

Following are the changes inthecarrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment fortheyear ended 31st March, 2024:

Description of Assets

Gross Carrying Value as at 1stApril 2023

Additions during the year*

Disposals/ Adjustment during the year

Rupees inLakhs

Land Buildings Plant and Office Furniture Electrical Vehicles Computer Total

Equipment Equipments & Fixture Installation

19.07 673.92 4661.79

0.00 18.82 228.33

25.23 8.06 191.12 55.36 20.26 5654.82

0.83 3.19

0.00 0.00 3.80 0.00 0.00

Gross Carrying Value as at31st March 2024 (A) 19.07 692.74 4886.32

Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2023

Depreciation expense fortheyear

Accumulated depreciation on disposal/adjustment

during the year

0.00 272.78 2091.13

0.00 21.37 231.99

2.16 13.00 5.72 272.05

0.00 0.00 0.00 3.80

26.06 11.25 193.28 68.36 25.98 5923.07

23.79 7.10 143.87 31.12 19.58 2589.37

0.12 0.78

0.00 0.00 1.81 0.00 0.00

Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March 2024 (B) 0.00 294.15 2321.32

Carrying Value as at31st March 2024 (A-B) 19.07 398.59 2565.00

23.91

17.40 3.87 3.34 278.87

0.00 0.00 0.00 1.81

7.88 161.26 34.99 22.92 2866.43

2.16 3.37

Following are the changes inthecarrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment fortheyear ended 31st March, 2023:

Description of Assets

Gross Carrying Value as at 1stApril 2022

Others - Classified as Investment Property

Restated Gross Carrying Value as at1stApril 2022

Additions during the year

Disposals/ Adjustment during the year

Gross Carrying Value as at 31st March 2023 (A)

Accumulated depreciation of 1st April 2022

Others- Classification of Investment Property

Restated Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2022

Depreciation expense fortheyear

Accumulated depreciation on Disposals/ Adjustment

during the year

Accumulated Depreciation as at 31st March 2023 (B)

Carrying Value as at31st March 2023

Carrying Value as at 1stApril 2022

(A-B)

32.01 33.36 3.06 3056.64

Rupees inLakhs

Land Buildings Plant and Office Furniture Electrical Vehicles Computer Total

Equipment Equipments and Installations

Fixtures

19.07 624.28 4554.45 25.23 7.85 191.12 32.56 18.98 5473.54

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19.07 624.28 4554.45

0.00 49.64 ]07.34

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

25.23 7.85 191.12 32.56 18.98 5473.54

0.00 0.21

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19.07 673.92 4661.79

0.00 252.99 1868.08

0.00 22.80 1.29 181.27

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

25.23 8.06 191.12 55.36 20.26 5654.82

23.70 6.34 126.62 30.94 16.47 2325.14

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 252.99 1868.08

0.00 19.79 223.06

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

23.70 6.34 126.62 30.94 16.47 2325.14

0.09 0.76

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 272.78 2091.13

19.07 401.14 2570.67

19.07 371.29 2686.38

17.24 0.18 3.11 264.23

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

23.79 7.10 143.87 31.12 19.58 2589.37

1.44 0.96 47.25 24.24 0.68 3065.44

1.53 1.51 64.50 1.62 2.50 3148.40

1  Property, Plant and Equipment

Rupees in Lakhs

Description of Assets

Land Buildings Plant and 

Equipment 

Office 

Equipments

Furniture 

& Fixture

Electrical 

Installation

Vehicles Computer Total

Gross Carrying Value as at 1st April 2023 19.07 673.92 4661.79 25.23 8.06 191.12 55.36 20.26 5654.82

Additions during the year* 0.00 18.82 228.33 0.83 3.19 2.16 13.00 5.72 272.05

Disposals / Adjustment during the year 0.00 0.00 3.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.80

Gross Carrying Value as at 31st March 2024           (A) 19.07 692.74 4886.32 26.06 11.25 193.28 68.36 25.98 5923.07

Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2023 0.00 272.78 2091.13 23.79 7.10 143.87 31.12 19.58 2589.37

Depreciation expense for the year 0.00 21.37 231.99 0.12 0.78 17.40 3.87 3.34 278.87       

Accumulated depreciation on disposal/adjustment 

during the year
0.00 0.00 1.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.81

Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March 2024   (B) 0.00 294.15 2321.32 23.91 7.88 161.26 34.99 22.92 2866.43

Carrying Value as at 31st March 2024                  (A-B) 19.07 398.59 2565.00 2.16 3.37 32.01 33.36 3.06 3056.64

Rupees in Lakhs

Description of Assets

Land Buildings Plant and 

Equipment 

Office 

Equipments

Furniture 

and 

Fixtures

Electrical 

Installations

Vehicles Computer Total

Gross Carrying Value as at 1st April 2022 19.07 624.28 4554.45 25.23 7.85 191.12 32.56 18.98 5473.54

Others - Classified as Investment Property 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Restated Gross Carrying Value as at 1st April 2022 19.07 624.28 4554.45 25.23 7.85 191.12 32.56 18.98 5473.54

Additions during the year 0.00 49.64 107.34 0.00 0.21 0.00 22.80 1.29 181.27

Disposals / Adjustment during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Gross Carrying Value as at  31st March 2023           (A) 19.07 673.92 4661.79 25.23 8.06 191.12 55.36 20.26 5654.82

Accumulated depreciation of 1st April 2022 0.00 252.99 1868.08 23.70 6.34 126.62 30.94 16.47 2325.14

Others- Classification of Investment Property 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Restated Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2022 0.00 252.99 1868.08 23.70 6.34 126.62 30.94 16.47 2325.14

Depreciation expense for the year 0.00 19.79 223.06 0.09 0.76 17.24 0.18 3.11 264.23

Accumulated depreciation on Disposals / Adjustment 

during the year
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Accumulated Depreciation as at 31st March 2023    (B) 0.00 272.78 2091.13 23.79 7.10 143.87 31.12 19.58 2589.37

Carrying Value as at 31st March 2023                  (A-B) 19.07 401.14 2570.67 1.44 0.96 47.25 24.24 0.68 3065.44

Carrying Value as at 1st April 2022 19.07 371.29 2686.38 1.53 1.51 64.50 1.62 2.50 3148.40

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

Following are the changes in the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment for the year ended 31st March, 2024 :

Following are the changes in the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment for the year ended 31st March, 2023 :

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024



2 ln‹angibleAssets

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes tothe financial statements forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

Following are the changes inthecarrying value of Intangible Assets forthe year ended 31st March, 2024:

Description of Assets

Gross Carrying Value as at 1stApril 2023

Additions during the year

Disposals/Adjustment during the year

Gross Carrying Value as at 31st March 2024

Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2023

Amortisation expense fortheyear

Accumulated depreciation on disposal/adjustment during the year

Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March 2024

Carrying Value as at31st March 2024

(A)

(B)

(A-B)

Following are the changes inthecarrying value of Intangible Assets forthe year ended 31st March, 2023:

Description of Assets

Gross Carrying Value as at1 stApril 2022

Additions during the year

Disposals/Adjustment during the year

Gross Carrying Value as at 31st March 2023

Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2022

Amortisation expense fortheyear

Accumulated depreciation on disposal/adjustment during the year

Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March 2023

Carrying Value as at31stMarch 2023

Carrying Value as at 1stApril 2022

(A)

(B)

(A-B)

Rupees inLakhs

Process know-how

80.00

80.00

80.00

80.00

Rupees inLakhs

Process know-how

80.00

80.00

73.97

6.03

80.00

6.03

2  Intangible Assets

Following are the changes in the carrying value of  Intangible Assets for the year ended 31st March, 2024 :

Rupees in Lakhs

Description of Assets
 Process know-how  

Gross Carrying Value as at 1st April 2023 80.00                         

Additions during the year -                            

Disposals/Adjustment during the year -                            

Gross Carrying Value as at  31st March 2024                                                                               (A) 80.00                         

Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2023 80.00                         

Amortisation expense for the year -                            

Accumulated depreciation on disposal/adjustment during the year -                            

Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March 2024                                                                        (B) 80.00                         

Carrying Value as at 31st March 2024                                                                                          (A-B) -                            

Following are the changes in the carrying value of  Intangible Assets for the year ended 31st March, 2023 :

Rupees in Lakhs

Description of Assets  Process know-how  

Gross Carrying Value as at 1st April 2022 80.00                         

Additions during the year -                            

Disposals/Adjustment during the year -                            

Gross Carrying Value as at  31st March 2023                                                                               (A) 80.00                         

Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2022 73.97                         

Amortisation expense for the year 6.03                           

Accumulated depreciation on disposal/adjustment during the year -                            

Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March 2023                                                                       (B) 80.00                         

Carrying Value as at 31st March 2023                                                                                       (A-B) -                            

Carrying Value as at 1st April 2022 6.03                           

 SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024



Notes tothefinancial statements forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

3 Current Tax and Deferred Tax

(a)Deferred Tax

Particulars

Deferred Tax Assets

- On Property, Plant& Equipment

Deferred Tax Assets

- On Employee benefits

Deferred Tax Liabilities/ (Assets)

(b)Income Tax recognised inProfit and Loss

Particulars

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

Total income taxexpense

4 Other Non-Current assets

Particulars

Capital advances - Considered Good

Secured

Unsecured

Security Deposits-Considered Good

Unsecured

Other advances -Unsecured, Considered Good

Income Tax (Net of Provisions)

Advances toSuppliers

Others

Total

5 Inventories

Particulars

Raw Materials& Components

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Stores and Spares

Total

31st March, 2024

94.61

94.61

Year ended

31st March, 2024

68.66

135.17

203.82

31st March, 2024

58.92

147.21

206.13

31st March, 2024

2910.79

0.00

2228.80

0.00

5139.59

As at

As at

As at

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

229.78

229.78

Rupees inLakhs

Year ended

31st March, 2023

29.60

163.76

193.36

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

26.45

78.55

1 05.00

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

1548.23

0.00

3.48

0.00

1551.71

3  Current Tax and Deferred Tax

(a) Deferred Tax

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Deferred Tax Assets

- On Property, Plant & Equipment 94.61                     229.78                     

Deferred Tax Assets

- On Employee benefits -                         -                           

Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets) 94.61                     229.78                     

(b) Income Tax recognised in Profit and Loss

Rupees in Lakhs

Year ended            

31st March, 2024

Year ended               

31st March, 2023

Current Tax 68.66                     29.60

Deferred Tax 135.17                    163.76                     

Total income tax expense 203.82                    193.36                     

4  Other Non-Current assets

Rupees in Lakhs

 Particulars 

 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

 Capital advances - Considered Good 

 Secured  -                         -                           

 Unsecured  -                         -                           

 Security Deposits-Considered Good 

 Unsecured 58.92                     26.45                       

 Other advances -Unsecured, Considered Good 

Income Tax (Net of Provisions) -                         -                           

 Advances to Suppliers -                         -                           

Others 147.21                    78.55                       

Total 206.13                    105.00                     

5  Inventories

Rupees in Lakhs

 Particulars 

 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

2910.79 1548.23

 Work-in-progress 0.00 0.00

 Finished goods 2228.80 3.48

0.00 0.00

Total 5139.59 1551.71

 Stores and Spares  

 Raw Materials & Components 

Particulars

   
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

As at

As at

As at



Notes tothefinancial statements forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

6 Trade Receivables

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good

Oftheabove, Trade Receivables from:

- Related Panies

- Others

31st March, 2024

6843.41

5367.90

1475.51

As at

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

4194.05

3937.74

256.31

Ageing fortrade receivables — current outstanding as at March 31,2024 isas follows:

Rupees inLakhs

Outstanding forfollowing periods from date of transaction

Particulars

- Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good

- Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered doubtful

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered good

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

Total

Particulars

- Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good

- Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered doubtful

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered good

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

Total

Less than 6 months

6 months -1 year

6,789.08

6,789.08 - -

1 -2 years

Rupees inLakhs

Outstanding forfollowing periods from date of transaction

2 -3 years

54.33

54.33 -

More than

3 years
Total

6,843.41

6,843.41

Ageing fortrade receivables — current outstanding as at March 31,2023 isas follows:

Rupees inLakhs

Outstanding forfollowing periods from date of transaction

Particulars

- Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good

- Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered doubtful

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered good

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

Total

Particulars

- Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good

- Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered doubtful

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered good

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

Total

Less than 6 months

6 months -1 year

4,139.72

4,139.72

1 -2 years

54.33

54.33

Rupees inLakhs

Outstanding forfollowing periods from date of transaction

2 -3 years
More than

3 years
Total

4,194.05

4,194.05

   
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

6  Trade Receivables

Rupees in Lakhs

 Particulars 

 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

 ` 

 Unsecured, considered good 6843.41 4194.05

 Of the above, Trade Receivables from: 

  - Related Parties 5367.90 3937.74

  - Others 1475.51 256.31

Ageing for trade receivables – current outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Rupees in Lakhs

Less than 

6 months

6 months

- 1 year
1 - 2 years

- Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 6,789.08                 -           -                           

- Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered doubtful -                         -           -                           

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered good -                         -           -                           

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful -                         -           -                           

Total 6,789.08                 -           -                           

Rupees in Lakhs

2 - 3 years
More than 

3 years
Total

- Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 54.33                     -           6,843.41                  

- Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered doubtful -                         -           -                           

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered good -                         -           -                           

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful -                         -           -                           

Total 54.33                     -           6,843.41                  

Ageing for trade receivables – current outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Rupees in Lakhs

Less than 

6 months

6 months

- 1 year
1 - 2 years

- Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 4,139.72                 -           54.33                       

- Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered doubtful -                         -           -                           

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered good -                         -           -                           

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful -                         -           -                           

Total 4,139.72                 -           54.33                       

Rupees in Lakhs

2 - 3 years
More than 

3 years
Total

- Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good -                         -           4,194.05                  

- Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered doubtful -                         -           -                           

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered good -                         -           -                           

- Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful -                         -           -                           

Total -                         -           4,194.05                  

Outstanding for following  periods from date of transaction

Particulars

Outstanding for following  periods from date of transaction

Particulars

Outstanding for following  periods from date of transaction

Particulars

Outstanding for following  periods from date of transaction

As at

Particulars



Notes tothefinancial statements forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

7 Cash and Bank Balance

Particulars

Cash and Cash equivalents

Balances with banks

Cash in hand

Total

8 Other Bank Balances

Particulars

Balances with Bank held as Margin Money& Deposit

against Guarantees.

Fixed Deposits with Original maturity greater than3

months butupto 12 months

Earmarked balances with banks

Total

9 Other Current Assets

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good

Balance with Excise Authorities

Prepaid Expenses

Other Advances recoverable incash or kind

- Advance toSuppliers

- Others

Total

31st March, 2024

3.57

6.00

9.57

31st March, 2024

0.00

0.11

0.00

0.11

31st March, 2024

0.00

10.87

232.20

398.97

642.03

As at

As at

As at

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

52.26

4.83

57.09

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

0.00

8.71

0.00

8.71

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

0.00

14.82

5.13

25.08

45.03

   
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

7  Cash and Bank Balance

Rupees in Lakhs

 Particulars 

 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

 Cash and Cash equivalents 

 Balances with banks 3.57                       52.26                       

 Cash in hand 6.00                       4.83                         

Total 9.57                       57.09                       

8  Other Bank Balances

Rupees in Lakhs

 Particulars 

 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

0.00 0.00

Fixed Deposits with Original maturity greater than 3 

months but upto 12 months
0.11 8.71

Earmarked balances with banks 0.00 0.00

Total 0.11 8.71

9  Other Current Assets

Rupees in Lakhs

 Particulars 

 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

 Unsecured, considered good 

Balance with Excise Authorities 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Expenses 10.87 14.82

Other Advances recoverable in cash or kind

  - Advance to Suppliers 232.20 5.13

  - Others 398.97 25.08

Total 642.03 45.03

Balances with Bank held as Margin Money & Deposit 

against Guarantees.

As at

As at

As at



SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes tothe financial statements forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

10 Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Preference Shares, Rs. 1/- par value

2,00,00,000 (Previous Year: 2,00,00,000) Preference Shares

Equity Shares, Rs. 10/- par value

4,80,00,000 (Previous Year: 3,20,00,000) Equity Shares

Issued, Subscribed and Paid•Up:

Equity Shares, Rs. 10/- par value

3,98,63,000 (Previous Year: 3,18,90,400) Equity Shares fully paid up

31 st March, 2024

As at

Rupees inLakhs

3400.00

3189.04

3189.04

The Company hasissued only one class of shares referred to as Equity Shares havinga par value of Rs. 10/- Each. Equity Shareholder is

entitled to one vote per share.

Proposed Dividend

The Board of Directors, in their meeting held on 06th May, 2024, has not declared any dividend forthe Current Financial Year 2023-24

(i) Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% shares:

Name olshareholder

M, l/::.a .odtt..›sS a,"

Mr. Bim al Virendra Shah

Mr.Mehul Jagdish Chander Khokhani

Mrs. Ruchika Jain

31st March, 2024

Number of % of

shares held Shareholding

2,025140

2,025140

2,?1110

1,851,954

6.30%

%65%

(ii) Reconciliation of the number ofShares outstanding and the amount olShare Capital:

Description

Number ofEquity Shares atthebeginning

Movement in Equity Shares during the year

Number ofEquity Shares attheclosing

No. of Shares Sñare C.apital

(Rs. in lakh)

7,972,600 797.26

(iii) In the last5 years, the Company hasnot:

- allotted any shares as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash

- allotted any bonus shares,

- bought back its shares.

(iv) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as atMarch 31,2024 is as follows:

Promoter name

Mrs. Gurcharan Kaur

Mr. Ranjan Jain

Mrs. Ruchika Jain

Mr. Suninder Veer Singh

Mr. Dinesh Jagdish Kokhani

Mr. Mahesh Jagdish Kokhani

Mr. Virendra Popatlal Shah

Mr.Bhavesh Virendra Shah

Mr.Bimal Virendra Shah

Mr.Mehul Jagdish Chander Khokhani

31st March, 2024

No. ofshares

500

3,480,386

1,851,954

2,790,825

2,896,079

3,900,308

2,025,1 44

2,025,144

2,511,110

21,481,450

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as atMarch 31,2023 is as follows:

Promoter name

Mrs. Gurcharan Kaur

Mr. Ranjan Jain

Mrs. Ruchika Jain

Mr. Suninder Veer Singh

Mr. Rajesh Gupta

Mr.Dinesh Jagdish Kokhani

Mr. Mahesh Jagdish Kokhani

Mr. Virendra Popatlal Shah

Mr.Bhavesh Virendra Shah

Mr.Bimal Virendra Shah

Mr.Mehul Virendra Shah

Number of % of

shares held Shareholding

3 ,80 8

2,557,550

1,437,500

1,437,500

1,555,700

1,851,954

23,290,400

8,600,000

31,890,400

549%

6.66%

4.51%

4.51%

4.88%

5.81%

No.ofShares Share Capital

Shares held by promoters

%otTota

Shaes

No.ofshares

7,133

3,480,386

1,851,954

959,180

1,750,000

2,125,027

2,557,550

1,437,500

1,437,500

1,555,700

0.00%

8.73%

4.65%

0.00%

7.00%

7.27%

9.78%

5.08%

5.08%

6.30%

(Rs. in lakh)

2329.04

860.00

3,189.04

31st March, 2023

No ofShares % ofTotal Shares

7,133

3480,386

1,851,954

959,180

1,750,000

2,125,027

2,557,550

1,437,500

1,437,500

1,555,700

17,161,930

Shares held by promoters

%otTota

Sares

0.02%

10.91%

5.81%

3.01%

0.00%

5.49%

6.66%

8.02%

4.51%

4.51%

4.88%

53.82%

As at

0.02%

10.91%

5.81%

3.01%

549%

6.66%

8.02%

4.51%

4.51%

4.88%

31st March, 2022

No of Shares % ofTotal Shares

7,133

480,386

1,851,954

1,059,180

406,260

3,804,913

0.03%

2.06%

7.95%

4.55%

1.74%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

16.34%

% Change

during the year

-94.39%

-20.00%

-20.00%

-100.00%

27.58%

9.03%

22.00%

12.70%

12.70%

29.13%

•121.24%

% Change

during the year

-26.97%

42912%

-26.97%

-33.86%

-100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

841.32%

10 Equity Share Capital

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Authorised: 

Preference Shares, Rs. 1/- par value 5000.00 3400.00

2,00,00,000 (Previous Year : 2,00,00,000) Preference Shares

Equity Shares, Rs. 10/- par value

4,80,00,000 (Previous Year : 3,20,00,000) Equity Shares

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up: 3986.30 3189.04

Equity Shares, Rs. 10/- par value

3,98,63,000 (Previous Year : 3,18,90,400) Equity Shares fully paid-up

3986.30 3189.04

Proposed Dividend

.
(i) Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% shares:

Name of shareholder 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Number of

 shares held

% of

Shareholding

Number of 

shares held

% of 

Shareholding

Mr. Dinesh Jagdish Kokhani 2,790,825            7.00% 1,750,000             5.49%
Mr. Mahesh Jagdish Kokhani 2,896,079            7.27% 2,125,027             6.66%
Mr. Ranjan Jain 3,480,386            8.73% 3,480,386             10.91%
Mr. Virendra Popatlal Shah 3,900,308            9.78% 2,557,550             8.02%

Mr. Bhavesh Virendra Shah 2,025,144            5.08% 1,437,500             4.51%

Mr. Bimal Virendra Shah 2,025,144            5.08% 1,437,500             4.51%

Mr. Mehul Jagdish Chander Khokhani 2,511,110            6.30% 1,555,700             4.88%

Mrs. Ruchika Jain 1,851,954            4.65% 1,851,954             5.81%

(ii) Reconciliation of the number of Shares outstanding and the amount of Share Capital :

Description

No. of Shares Share Capital No. of Shares Share Capital

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

Number of Equity Shares at the beginning 31,890,400           3189.04 23,290,400            2329.04

Movement in Equity Shares during the year 7,972,600            797.26              8,600,000              860.00                    

Number of Equity Shares at the closing 39,863,000           3,986.30           31,890,400            3,189.04                 

(iii) In the last 5 years, the Company has not :

   - allotted any shares as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash

   - allotted any bonus shares, 

   - bought back its shares.

(iv) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

As at

No. of shares
% of Total 

Shares
No of Shares % of Total Shares

Mrs. Gurcharan Kaur 500                      0.00% 7,133                    0.02% -94.39%

Mr. Ranjan Jain 3,480,386            8.73% 3,480,386             10.91% -20.00%

Mrs. Ruchika Jain 1,851,954            4.65% 1,851,954             5.81% -20.00%

Mr. Suninder Veer Singh -                       0.00% 959,180                3.01% -100.00%

Mr. Dinesh Jagdish Kokhani 2,790,825            7.00% 1,750,000             5.49% 27.58%

Mr. Mahesh Jagdish Kokhani 2,896,079            7.27% 2,125,027             6.66% 9.03%

Mr. Virendra Popatlal Shah 3,900,308            9.78% 2,557,550             8.02% 22.00%

Mr. Bhavesh Virendra Shah 2,025,144            5.08% 1,437,500             4.51% 12.70%

Mr. Bimal Virendra Shah 2,025,144            5.08% 1,437,500             4.51% 12.70%

Mr. Mehul Jagdish Chander Khokhani 2,511,110            6.30% 1,555,700             4.88% 29.13%

21,481,450          53.89% 17,161,930           53.82% -121.24%

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

As at

No. of shares
% of Total 

Shares
No of Shares % of Total Shares

Mrs. Gurcharan Kaur 7,133                   0.02% 7,133                    0.03% -26.97%

Mr. Ranjan Jain 3,480,386            10.91% 480,386                2.06% 429.12%

Mrs. Ruchika Jain 1,851,954            5.81% 1,851,954             7.95% -26.97%

Mr. Suninder Veer Singh 959,180               3.01% 1,059,180             4.55% -33.86%

Mr. Rajesh Gupta -                       0.00% 406,260                1.74% -100.00%

Mr. Dinesh Jagdish Kokhani 1,750,000            5.49% -                        0.00% 100.00%

Mr. Mahesh Jagdish Kokhani 2,125,027            6.66% -                        0.00% 100.00%

Mr. Virendra Popatlal Shah 2,557,550            8.02% -                        0.00% 100.00%

Mr. Bhavesh Virendra Shah 1,437,500            4.51% -                        0.00% 100.00%

Mr. Bimal Virendra Shah 1,437,500            4.51% -                        0.00% 100.00%

Mr. Mehul Virendra Shah 1,555,700            4.88% -                        0.00% 100.00%

17,161,930          53.82% 3,804,913             16.34% 841.32%

As at 

% Change 

during the year

31st March, 2023

 31st March, 2023  31st March, 2024 

Shares held by promoters

The Company has issued only one class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- Each.  Equity Shareholder is 

entitled to one vote per share.

Promoter name

31st March, 2024

Promoter name

Shares held by promoters

% Change 

during the year
 31st March, 2023  31st March, 2022 

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

The Board of Directors, in their meeting held on 06th May, 2024, has not declared any dividend for the Current Financial Year 2023-24



SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes tothefinancial statements forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

11 Borrowings

Particulars

1) Secured Loans:

a) Term Loans

- from Banks

- from Others

b) Letter of Credit

- from Banks

Total (1)

2) Unsecured Loans:

a) Loans and advances from related parties#

Total (2)

Total Borrowings (1+2)

# includes loans from Directors and Corporates

12 Other Non-Current Liabilities

Particulars

a) Advances

b) Others

Total

31st March, 2024

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

45.00

45.00

45.00

31st March, 2024

0.00

985.00

985.00

As at

As at

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

160.51

160.51

160.51

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

0.00

2582.86

2582.86

11  Borrowings

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

1)  Secured Loans :

    a)  Term Loans

         - from Banks 0.00 0.00

         - from Others 0.00 0.00

    b) Letter of Credit

         - from Banks 0.00 0.00

Total (1) 0.00 0.00

2)  Unsecured Loans :

    a)  Loans and advances from related parties # 45.00 160.51

Total (2) 45.00 160.51

Total Borrowings (1+2) 45.00                     160.51                   

# includes loans from Directors and Corporates

12  Other Non-Current Liabilities

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

    a)  Advances 0.00 0.00

    b)  Others 985.00 2582.86

Total 985.00 2582.86

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

As at

As at



13 Trade Payables

Particulars

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes tothefinancial statements forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

Trade payable - Micro, Small and Medium enterprises

Trade payable - Other than Micro, Small and Medium enterprises

Total

31st March, 2024

65.96

9471.99

9537.95

As at

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

51.75

3993.77

4045.52

Ageing fortrade payables outstanding as at March 31,2024 isas follows:

Rupees inLakhs

Outstanding forfollowing from Transaction date

(i) MSME

(ii) Others

(iii) Disputed dues MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Total

(i) MSME

(ii) Others

(iii) Disputed dues MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Total

Particulars

Particulars

Less than1

year

65.96

9,015.23

9,081.19 -

1-2 years 2-3years

456.75

456.75

Rupees inLakhs

Outstanding forfollowing from Transaction date

More than3 years Total

65.96

9,471.99

- - 9,537.95

Ageing fortrade payables outstanding as at March 31,2023 isas follows:

Rupees inLakhs

Outstanding forfollowing from Transaction date

(i) MSME

(ii) Others

(iii) Disputed dues MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Total

(i) MSME

(ii) Others

(iii) Disputed dues MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Total

Particulars

Particulars

Less than1

year

51.75

3,447.80

3,499.55

1-2 years 2-3years

7.28

7.28

Rupees inLakhs

Outstanding forfollowing from Transaction date

More than3 years Total

529.54

9.15

538.69

51.75

3,984.62

9.15

4,045.52

13 Trade Payables

Rupees in Lakhs

 Particulars 

 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Trade payable - Micro, Small and Medium enterprises 65.96 51.75

Trade payable - Other than Micro, Small and Medium enterprises 9471.99 3993.77

Total 9537.95 4045.52

Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Rupees in Lakhs

Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

(i) MSME 65.96         -                         -                           

(ii) Others 9,015.23     -                         456.75                     

(iii) Disputed dues MSME -             -                         -                           

(iv) Disputed dues - Others -             -                         -                           

Total 9,081.19     -                         456.75                     

Rupees in Lakhs

More than 3 years Total

(i) MSME -             -                         65.96                       

(ii) Others -             -                         9,471.99                  

(iii) Disputed dues MSME -             -                         -                           

(iv) Disputed dues - Others -             -                         -                           

Total -             -                         9,537.95                  

Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Rupees in Lakhs

Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

(i) MSME 51.75         -                         -                           

(ii) Others 3,447.80     7.28                       -                           

(iii) Disputed dues MSME -             -                         -                           

(iv) Disputed dues - Others -             -                         -                           

Total 3,499.55     7.28                       -                           

Rupees in Lakhs

More than 3 years Total

(i) MSME -                         51.75                       

(ii) Others 529.54                    3,984.62                  

(iii) Disputed dues MSME -                         -                           

(iv) Disputed dues - Others 9.15                       9.15                         

Total 538.69                    4,045.52                  

 SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Particulars

Outstanding for following from Transaction date

Particulars

Outstanding for following from Transaction date

Outstanding for following from Transaction date

Particulars

Outstanding for following from Transaction date

As at

Particulars



SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes tothefinancial statements forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

14Short Term Provisions

Particulars

Provision for Employee Benefits

- Provision for Gratuity

- Provision for Leave Encashment

Total

15 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars

Advances received from customers

Cheque Pending Encashment

Expenses payable

Statutory dues payable

Total

16 Revenue from Operations

Particulars

Revenue from sale of products (including Goods and Service Tax)

Revenue from rendering of services

Other operating revenue

Total

31st March, 2024

22.11

18.80

40.91

31st March, 2024

0.00

0.00

85.77

12.54

98.31

31st March, 2024

23332.58

0.00

15.11

23347.69

As at

As at

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

19.66

9.23

28.89495

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

0.00

0.00

65.02

158.08

223.10

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

13027.51

0.00

10.17

13037.69

 SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

14 Short Term Provisions

Rupees in Lakhs

 Particulars 

 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Provision for Employee Benefits 

- Provision for Gratuity 22.11 19.66

- Provision for Leave Encashment 18.80 9.23

Total 40.91 28.89495

15  Other Current Liabilities

Rupees in Lakhs

 Particulars 

 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Advances received from customers 0.00 0.00

Cheque Pending Encashment 0.00 0.00

Expenses payable 85.77 65.02

Statutory dues payable 12.54 158.08

Total 98.31 223.10

16  Revenue from Operations

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars 31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023 

Revenue from sale of products (including Goods and Service Tax) 23332.58 13027.51

Revenue from rendering of services 0.00 0.00

Other operating revenue 15.11 10.17

Total 23347.69 13037.69

As at

As at



17 Other Income

Particulars

Interest Income

Misc Income

Total

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes tothe financial statements forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

18 Cost ofmaterials consumed

Particulars

Opening stock

Add: Purchases

Less:

Closing Stock

Total

19 Changes ininventories of Finished Goods andWork-in-Progress

Particulars

Inventories at the end of the year-

Finished goods

Work-in-progress

Inventories at the beqinninq of the year

Finished goods

Work-in-progress

Net (increase)/ decrease

20 Employee Benefits Expense

Particulars

Salaries and Wages

Contribution to provident and other funds

Staff welfare expenses

Total

31st March, 2024

11.43

5.58

17.01

31st March, 2024

1548.23

21153.13

22701.36

2910.79

19790.57

31st March, 2024

2228.80

0.00

2228.80

3.48

0.00

3.48

-2225.32

31st March, 2024

552.94

25.63

29.59

608.16

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

4.83

20.00

24.83

Rupees inLakhs

31stMarch, 2023

1797.91

8996.29

10794.20490

1548.23

9245.97

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

3.48

0.00

3.48

115.71

0.00

115.71

112.24

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

393.52

18.10

28.10

439.72

17  Other Income

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars  31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023 

Interest Income 11.43 4.83

Misc Income 5.58 20.00

Total 17.01 24.83

18  Cost of materials consumed

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Opening stock 1548.23 1797.91

Add: Purchases 21153.13 8996.29

22701.36 10794.20490

Less: 

Closing Stock 2910.79 1548.23

Total 19790.57 9245.97

19  Changes in inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars  31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023 

Inventories at the end of the year:

Finished goods 2228.80 3.48

Work-in-progress 0.00 0.00

2228.80 3.48

Inventories at the beginning of the year:

Finished goods 3.48 115.71

Work-in-progress 0.00 0.00

3.48 115.71

Net (increase) / decrease -2225.32 112.24

20  Employee Benefits Expense

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars  31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023 

Salaries and Wages 552.94 393.52

Contribution to provident and other funds 25.63 18.10

Staff welfare expenses 29.59 28.10

Total 608.16 439.72

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024



21 Finance Cost

Particulars

Interest

Bank Charges

Exchange Fluctuation

Total

22 Other Expenses

Particulars

Direct Expenses

Power, Fuel& Water Charges

Consumption ofStores& Spares

Repairs and Maintenance

- Buildings

- Machinery

Watch& Ward

Indirect Expenses

Advenisement& Publicity

Rates and Taxes

Insurance

Legal& Professional Expenses

Rent - Office

Postage& Telephone

Printing& Stationery

Travelling& Conveyance

Auditors' Remuneration

- Statutory Audit Fee

- Secretarial Audit Fee

- Cost Audit Fee

Fines& Penalties

Other Marketing Expenses

Business Support Services

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets

Electricty& Water - Office

Freight& Forwading

Miscellaneous Expenses

Total

23 Earning per Share

Particulars

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes tothe financial statements forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

Profit for the year

Profit for the year fordiluted earning per share

Weighted average number ofOrdinary Equity Shares used in Computing basic earning per share

Effect of potential Ordinary Equity shares on employee stock options

Weighted average number ofOrdinary Equity Shares used in Computing diluted earning per share

Basic earning per share (Rs.) (Face Value of Rs. 10 per share)

Diluted earning per share (Rs.)

31st March, 2024

20.95

4.31

0.00

25.26

31st March, 2024

282.37

331.51

0.00

97.54

5.99

9.47

31.08

21.73

39.61

18.03

2.88

8.32

8.56

2.50

1.50

0.45

1.33

5.66

12.81

0.28

1.22

87.35

23.68

993.87

31st March, 2024

276.14

276.14

35212317

0

35212317

0.78

0.78

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

1.96

2.25

0.00

4.21

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

213.98

276.74

0.00

13.26

4.85

4.56

16.45

6.71

59.83

17.29

3.39

4.23

6.95

2.50

1.95

0.66

26.08

9.56

1 0.17

0.00

1.29

3.29

9.26

692.99

Rupees inLakhs

31st March, 2023

451.31

451.31

29486233

0

31890400

1.53

1.42

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

21  Finance Cost

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars  31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023 

Interest  20.95 1.96

Bank Charges 4.31 2.25

Exchange Fluctuation 0.00 0.00

Total 25.26 4.21

22  Other Expenses

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars  31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023 

Direct Expenses

Power, Fuel & Water Charges 282.37 213.98

Consumption of Stores & Spares 331.51 276.74

Repairs and Maintenance

   - Buildings 0.00 0.00

   - Machinery 97.54 13.26

Watch & Ward 5.99 4.85

Indirect Expenses

Advertisement & Publicity 9.47 4.56

Rates and Taxes 31.08 16.45

Insurance 21.73 6.71

Legal & Professional Expenses 39.61 59.83

Rent - Office 18.03 17.29

Postage & Telephone 2.88 3.39

Printing & Stationery 8.32 4.23

Travelling & Conveyance 8.56 6.95

Auditors' Remuneration

   - Statutory Audit Fee 2.50 2.50

   - Secretarial Audit Fee 1.50 1.95

   - Cost Audit Fee 0.45 0.66

Fines & Penalties 1.33 26.08

Other Marketing Expenses 5.66 9.56

Business Support Services 12.81 10.17

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 0.28 0.00

Electricty & Water - Office 1.22 1.29

Freight & Forwading 87.35 3.29

Miscellaneous Expenses 23.68 9.26

Total 993.87 692.99

23  Earning per Share

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars  31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023 

Profit for the year 276.14 451.31

Profit for the year for diluted earning per share 276.14 451.31

Weighted average number of Ordinary Equity Shares used in Computing basic earning per share 35212317 29486233

Effect of potential Ordinary Equity shares on employee stock options 0 0

Weighted average number of Ordinary Equity Shares used in Computing diluted earning per share 35212317 31890400

Basic earning per share (Rs.) (Face Value of Rs. 10 per share) 0.78 1.53

Diluted earning per share (Rs.) 0.78 1.42



O

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes tothefinancial statements forthe year ended 31st March, 2024

24 Related Party Transactions

Key Management Personnel

Ranjan Jain - Managaing Director

Suninder Veer Singh - Whole Time Director

Sanjeev Aggrawal - Chief Financial Officer

Shikha Kataria - Company Secretary

Promoters

Bhavesh Virendra Shah

Bimal Virendra Shah

Enterprises significantly influenced by Promoters

Pharmacare International

Relatives of key management personnel

Ruchika Jain - Director's Spouse

Gurcharan Kaur - Director's Spouse

Details of transaction between theCompany andits related parties are disclosed below:

Particulars

i) Key Manaqement Personnel

a)Remuneration

Ranjan Jain

Suninder Veer Singh

Sanjeev Agrawal

Shikha Kataria

b) Loans received/ paid (Net)

Ranjan Jain

Ruchika Jain

Rajesh Gupta

Aggregate balances outstanding as atthe year end

a)Loans - Key Management Personnel

Ranjan Jain

Ruchika Jain

a) Loans - Promotors

Rajesh Gupta

ii) Enterprises significantly influenced by Other Related Party

a) Sales

Pharmacare International

b) Purchases

Pharmacare International

c) Security

Pharmacare International

Aggregate balances outstanding as atthe year end

- Receivables

Pharmacare International

- Payables

Pharmacare International

iii) Relatives of Key Management Personnel

a)Remuneration

Gu hha a:.Kaur

‘)

Ruchae

o Fixed Assets

25 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments( To theextent not provided for)

Particulars

Contingent Liabilities

- Excise matters in dispute

Commitments

Estimated amount ofcontracts remaining to be executed on capital

account and not provided for (net of advances and deposits)

26SegmentReporting

Rupees in Lakhs

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

78.67

27.00

30.00

1 6.13

5.54

-5.51

31.40

-7.00

-29.91

45.00

45.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

8335.93

8335.93

13720.84

13720.84

-1597.86

-1597.86

5367.90

5367.90

-8821.24

-8821.24

65.04

21.00

24.00

15.00

5.04

-24.23

-31.23

7.00

0.00

20.60

13.60

7.00

29.91

29.91

7914.02

7914.02

7441.26

7441.26

24.86

24.86

3937.74

3937.74

5395.98

5395.98

42.00

24.00

0.00

Rupees in Lakhs

As at

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

0.00

111.86

0.00

144.00

The Company is working under one business segment only i.e. Pharmceuticals. These pharmaceutical products are having different

applications. Besides there is not any significant variances on geographical basis, so the segment reporting defined under IndAS 108 is

not applicable.

0.00

24  Related Party Transactions

Key Management Personnel

Ranjan Jain - Managaing Director

Suninder Veer Singh - Whole Time Director

Sanjeev Aggrawal - Chief Financial Officer

Shikha Kataria - Company Secretary

Promoters

Bhavesh Virendra Shah

Bimal Virendra Shah

Enterprises significantly influenced by Promoters

Pharmacare International

Relatives of key management personnel  

Ruchika Jain - Director's Spouse

Gurcharan Kaur - Director's Spouse

Details of transaction between the Company and its related parties are disclosed below:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

i) Key Management Personnel

a) Remuneration 78.67 65.04

Ranjan Jain 27.00 21.00

Suninder Veer Singh 30.00 24.00

Sanjeev Agrawal 16.13 15.00

Shikha Kataria 5.54 5.04

b) Loans received / paid (Net) -5.51 -24.23

Ranjan Jain 31.40 -31.23

Ruchika Jain -7.00 7.00

Rajesh Gupta -29.91 0.00

Aggregate balances outstanding as at the year end

a) Loans - Key Management Personnel 45.00 20.60

Ranjan Jain 45.00 13.60

Ruchika Jain 0.00 7.00

a) Loans - Promotors 0.00 29.91

Rajesh Gupta 0.00 29.91

ii) Enterprises significantly influenced by Other Related Party

a) Sales 8335.93 7914.02

Pharmacare International 8335.93 7914.02

b) Purchases 13720.84 7441.26

Pharmacare International 13720.84 7441.26

c) Security -1597.86 24.86

Pharmacare International -1597.86 24.86

Aggregate balances outstanding as at the year end

- Receivables 5367.90 3937.74

Pharmacare International 5367.90 3937.74

- Payables -8821.24 5395.98

Pharmacare International -8821.24 5395.98

iii) Relatives of Key Management Personnel

a) Remuneration 42.00 42.00

Gurcharan Kaur 24.00 24.00

Ruchika Jain 18.00 18.00
a) Purchase of Fixed Assets 13.00 0.00

Ruchika Jain 13.00 0.00

25  Contingent Liabilities and Commitments ( To the extent not provided for)

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Contingent Liabilities 

- Excise matters in dispute 0.00 0.00

- Other monies for which company is contigently liable 111.86                      144.00                       

Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 

account and not provided for (net of advances and deposits)

0.00 0.00

26 Segment Reporting

As at

SYSCHEM (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

The Company is working under one business segment only i.e. Pharmceuticals. These pharmaceutical products are having different 

applications. Besides there is not any significant variances on geographical basis, so the segment reporting defined under Ind AS 108 is 

not applicable.
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